
 

 

 
 
 
 

Sheffield Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
 

Sheffield City Council ● Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
 
 
Thursday 26 March 2015 at 2.00 pm 
 
Town Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Dore Leader of the Council 
Dr Tim Moorhead Chair of the Clinical Commissioning Group 
Ian Atkinson Accountable Officer, Clinical Commissioning 

Group 
Dr Nikki Bates Governing Body Member, Clinical 

Commissioning Group 
Maggie Campbell Healthwatch Sheffield 
Councillor Jackie Drayton Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and 

Families 
Councillor Mazher Iqbal Cabinet Member for Communities and Public 

Health 
Alison Knowles NHS England 
Councillor Mary Lea Cabinet Member for Health Care and 

Independent Living 
Jayne Ludlam Executive Director, Children, Young People & 

Families 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Laraine Manley Executive Director, Communities 
Dr Zak McMurray Clinical Director, Clinical Commissioning Group 
John Mothersole Chief Executive, Sheffield City Council 
Dr Ted Turner Governing Body Member, Clinical 

Commissioning Group 
Dr Jeremy Wight Director of Public Health 
 

  

 
 



 

 

 

SHEFFIELD’S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Sheffield City Council ● Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board started to meet in shadow form in January 
2012 and became a statutory group in April 2013. The Health and Social Care Act 
2012 states that every local authority needs a Health and Wellbeing Board. It is a 
group of local GPs, local councillors, a representative of Sheffield citizens, and 
senior managers in the NHS and the local authority, all of whom seek to make local 
government and local health services better for local people. Its terms of reference 
sets out how it will operate. 
 
Sheffield's Health and Wellbeing Board has a formal public meeting every three 
months as well as a range of public events held at least once a quarter. 
 
Sheffield's Health and Wellbeing Board has a website which tells you more about 
what we do. www.sheffield.gov.uk/healthwellbeingboard 
 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.  You may not be allowed to see some reports 
because they contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on 
the agenda.  
 
Meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Board may have to 
discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any private 
items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting please report 
to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the meeting room. 
 
If you require any further information please contact Jason Dietsch on 0114 273 
4117 or email jason.dietsch@sheffield.gov.uk    
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 



 

 

 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD AGENDA 
 

Sheffield City Council ● Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

26 MARCH 2015 
 

Order of Business 

 
1. Apologies for Absence  
   
2. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting. 
 

 

3. Public Questions  
 To receive any questions from members of the public. 

 
 

4. Update on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy: 
Outcomes 4 and 5 

(Pages 5 - 40) 

 Report of the Co-Chairs of the Board concerning Outcomes 
4 and 5 of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

• Outcome 4: People get the help and support that 
they need and feel is right for them  

• Outcome 5: The health and wellbeing system is 
innovative, affordable and provides good value for 
money 

 

 

5. Health, Disability and Employment in Sheffield (Pages 41 - 44) 
 Report of the Head of Health Improvement, Sheffield City 

Council 
 

 

6. Update on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
Work Programmes 

(Pages 45 - 52) 

 Report of the Director of Business Planning and 
Partnerships, NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 
and the Director of Commissioning, Sheffield City Council 
 

 

7. Children and Young People's Emotional Wellbeing and 
Mental Health 

(Pages 53 - 66) 

 Report of the Executive Director, Children, Young People 
and Families, Sheffield City Council, concerning the 
response and progress update from the Health and 
Wellbeing Board to its Emotional Wellbeing and Mental 
Health Engagement Event with Chilypep, Sheffield Futures 
and Young Healthwatch in November 2014. 
  
 
 
 

 



 

 

8. Health and Wellbeing Plans for Sheffield in 2015/16: 
Sheffield City Council and NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

(Pages 67 - 76) 

 Report of the Director of Business Planning and 
Partnerships, NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 
and the Director of Commissioning, Sheffield City Council. 
 

 

9. Director of Public Health Annual Report 2014 (Pages 77 - 98) 
 Report of the Director of Public Health 

 
 

10. Air Quality and Health in Sheffield (Pages 99 - 114) 
 Report of the Director of Public Health 

 
 

11. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 115 - 
128) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 
11 December 2014. 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 2

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 

 

 

Report of: Councillor Julie Dore and Dr Tim Moorhead 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Date: 26 March 2015 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Subject:                    Update on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Outcome 4: 

People get the help and support that they need and feel is right for them Outcome 5: The 

health and wellbeing system is innovative, affordable and provides good value for money 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report: Louisa Willoughby, 0114 205 7143 and other authors as stated 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:   The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy is the Health and Wellbeing 

Board’s strategy for Sheffield and as such is Sheffield’s overarching city strategy in all 

matters relating to health and wellbeing. Outcomes 4 and 5 of the Strategy focus on the 

health and social care system’s working and performance. This report sets out what has 

happened under each action over the past year and any issues and opportunities. 

Recommendations: Health and Wellbeing Board members are invited to: 

� Actively support the recommendations made under each action in the report. 

� Discuss in depth and pay particular attention to the following areas: 

o The greater inclusion of children and young people’s issues and mental health in 

future reports. 

o How affordability and value for money are tested and covered on the Health and 

Wellbeing Board’s agendas and in the Strategy. 

o The alignment of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy with the Integrated 

Commissioning Programme. 

� Support the ongoing programme of needs assessment. 

� Request another update on this outcome in March 2016. 

Background Papers:  

• Work of the Sheffield Safeguarding Boards – appended to this paper. 

• Sheffield Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-18 –

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/caresupport/health/health-wellbeing-board/what-the-board-

does/joint-health-and-wellbeing-strategy.html.  

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

PAPER 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



2 

 

Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 

Update on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

Outcome 4 – People get the help and support they need 

and feel is right for them 
and 

Outcome 5 – The health and wellbeing system is 

innovative, affordable and provides good value for money 
March 2015 

1. What are these outcomes about? 

Outcome 4 is about how people of all ages should experience services in Sheffield. This is 

about Sheffield’s health and wellbeing system working better based on the needs of people 

in the city. It is important to focus not only on outcomes for people, but to consider people’s 

knowledge of, access to, and experience of services. Currently, these are not all accurately 

measured but are important and must be given greater emphasis.  

Outcome 5 is about how Sheffield’s commissioners and service providers will deliver 

services. As with outcome 4, it is our intention to make the changes to the way the health 

and wellbeing system works in Sheffield over the next 5 years to make the system 

sustainable and affordable in the long‐term. The City’s population is rising as a result of an 

increasing birth rate, inward migration and people living longer. Over the next 10 to 20 

years there will be an increase in the number of older people in Sheffield alongside 

increasing numbers of children and working age adults with disabilities and complex needs. 

We know that this population change is likely to place a significant and increasing demand 

on health, social care, children’s and housing resources. 

 

2. How are we performing? – Indicators for outcomes 4 and 5 

Section completed by Louise Brewins 

In terms of position relative to the England average, ranking among the core cities and local 

trend over the last three years, Sheffield is experiencing worse outcomes for the majority of 

indicators related to how well services are being delivered and meeting need and 

expectations. The two main exceptions are older people still at home 91 days after transfer 

to rehabilitation/reablement and the rate of permanent admissions of older people to care 

homes. This is set within the current context of increasing pressures on A&E, emergency 

and primary care services.  

Further information about these indicators can be found in Appendix A. Please note, the 

Board agreed that the indicators initially selected for Outcome 4 would also be used for 

Outcome 5 given that they provided a reasonable summary for the two indicators 

combined; would limit the total number of indicators included in the Strategy’s framework to 

30; and mirrored the indicators used by NHS England in its local authority improvement 

profile.  

Page 6



3 

 

In addition, the indicators relating to A&E attendance rate and proportion of pregnant 

women receiving 13 week antenatal assessment have been temporarily dropped because it 

has not been possible to obtain timely enough national or meaningful comparable data for 

these indicators. Further work is being undertaken to identify more timely data for these 

indicators. 

 

3. What do we need to know? – The evidence base for outcomes 4 and 5 

Section completed by Louise Brewins 

The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment identified a number of topics where more detailed 

analysis and research would be required to develop the evidence for prevention and early 

intervention, integrated working, building social capital and improving quality of experience. 

The following specific areas of work were highlighted: 

• Managing long term conditions 

There are a number of pieces of work being taken forward to provide evidence for achieving 

better outcomes for people with long term conditions and preventing unnecessary variation 

in and use of health and social care services. Detailed evaluations are being undertaken, 

for example, in relation to the care planning approach within the City and the Community 

Wellbeing Programme, together with a cost benefit analysis of the ‘Patient Activation’ 

model. An application to the Health Foundation for funding to test and develop innovative 

ideas and approaches to improve health care delivery is also under consideration. 

• Children with complex needs 

A detailed Health Needs Assessment (HNA) to understand the health and wellbeing needs 

of children with complex needs was completed in 2014 and is being used to inform 

future service planning for this group of children. The HNA covers numbers of children and 

young people with LDD and other complex health needs within Sheffield and predicts future 

trends, based upon diagnostic profile and DDA criteria; identifies both current and predicted 

future needs in order to inform appropriate planning and delivery of services and; identifies 

health and wellbeing needs across the different groups of children and young people as 

defined within the agreed scope, and by age range within each condition.  

 

• Access to and use of services 

A paper is currently being prepared by the SCC Healthcare Public Health Team, as part of 

the core offer to the CCG, to consider the options for exploring the extent to which health 

services meet need in the City, and the resources that would be required to support this 

analytical work. 

• Experience of care services, especially GP practices. 

Utilising and understanding patient, user and carer experience was a high priority for the 

JSNA. However national data and related initiatives (e.g. Family and Friends Test, GP 

Patient Survey) need to go further in terms of their ability to deliver more granular 

intelligence that can be used to improve care quality at a local level. Further work locally 

Page 7



4 

 

should therefore be undertaken to assess the use and impact of data currently available 

and where, with relatively modest enhancements, we could improve our understanding of 

people’s experience of services in Sheffield. 

• Urgent and non-elective care 

The Quality Metrics and Intelligence Group of the Integrated Commissioning Programme for 

Sheffield is focussed on what we need to measure so we can show what is really working 

for people in the local care system.  It includes how the programme overall will be 

evaluated. A further external evaluation (funded by a Transformation Challenge award) will 

also be commissioned to support analysis of the ‘Keeping People Well’ strand of the 

Integrated Commissioning Programme. 

  

Page 8



5 

 

4. Examining outcome 4, action by action 

 

Theme: Person-centred care and support 

Sheffield people receiving excellent services which support their unique needs 

 

Action 4.1: Continue to work with providers in the city to integrate the 

health, social care, education and housing support and care that is 

available, to establish a person centred approach to care. 
Section completed by Dorne Collinson, Antony Hughes, Joe Fowler and Tim Furness 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

Consultation as part of development of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and more 

specifically on integration, has shown general support for the view that services should be 

more joined up and people not handed over from one professional to another wherever that 

can be avoided. The CCG and Sheffield City Council have agreed plans for integrated 

commissioning of a range of services: 

Older people and those most at risk of needing hospital care 

We have agreed to establish a pooled budget of around £250m for 2015/16, which will 

establish a shared responsibility to meet needs and commission services in the following 

areas: 

• Keeping People Well in their Community – primary care, social care and non-clinical 

interventions to support people identified as at risk of needing hospital or social care to 

stay independent, safe and well 

• Active Support and Recovery – non-hospital clinical and social care services that 

provide short term interventions that help people maintain or regain their independence 

and wellbeing - preventing or reducing the use of acute health and care services 

(including intermediate care and community nursing) 

• Independent Living Solutions – recommissioning of community equipment services as 

a genuinely integrated and user focussed service 

• Long Term / High Support – integration of assessment, care management, and 

funding streams for people that need significant levels of care and support over a 

sustained period of time. This includes NHS CHC and SCC funding of residential care. 

• Non-elective (non-surgical) hospital admissions – because our plans will reduce 

expenditure mainly in this area, this funding is included to release money, and to share 

risk. 

• We expect to expand the pooled budget in time to include relevant children’s service 

areas, mental health and learning disabilities, and possibly drug and alcohol services. 

Integration of commissioning functions and budgets enables us to specify and contract for 

services that meet health and social care needs together. This will lead to changes to many 
Page 9



6 

 

health and care services, and we are working with providers of health and social care in 

Sheffield to support the development of provider partnerships that will support integration 

and the delivery of more person-centred services.  We are building on our current 

productive partnership with our providers (“Right First Time”), supporting stronger provider 

alliances so that providers can being together their considerable expertise to design and 

deliver a truly integrated health and care service for the people of Sheffield. 

Children and young people 

The Sheffield Children’s Joint Commissioning group (CJCG) leads the work to ensure 

integrated health, social care and education support for children and families. The group 

includes key representation from Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group, Sheffield City 

Council Children and Families Portfolio and Public Health England. There is a work 

programme which currently is focusing on delivering a joint commissioning approach to the 

following areas: 

• Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health. 

• Early Years (A Great Start in Life). 

• Supporting Children with Complex Health Needs. 

• Sexual Health Services for adults and young people. 

• Vulnerable Children and Young People – including Looked After Children. 

The focus of the group is to ensure that service provision is jointly integrated, 

commissioned and redesigned where necessary. An example of joint commissioning 

activity currently overseen by the CJCG includes the redesign and review of the Healthy 

Child Programme 5-19 years in Special Schools. 

Specifically partners are engaged in ensuring a person/child centred approach to improve 

health and wellbeing. The CJCG collectively works to address the needs of vulnerable 

groups including Looked After Children and Care Leavers.  

 

2. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

The Health and Wellbeing Board sponsors the development of integrated commissioning 

and provides strategic direction and oversight for the work of the two commissioning 

organisations. The Health and Wellbeing Board should continue to request further updates 

in the future on progress with both the children’s and adults’ joint commissioning agendas. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 10



7 

 

Action 4.2: Commit to implementing the statutory requirements of the 

Children and Families Act supporting the integration of planning for 

children with complex needs and disabilities. 
Section completed by Tony Tweedy 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

The Children and Families Act 2014 has a focus on improving outcomes for children and 

young people with special educational needs and/or disabilities (SEND). It extends the 

Special Educational Needs (SEN) system from birth to 25, giving children, young people 

and their parents greater control and choice in decisions and ensuring needs are properly 

met.  

Key changes include:  

• Replacing statements with a new birth- to-25 education, health and care (EHC) plan. 

• Producing an accessible Local Offer of all services.  

• Offering families personal budgets. 

• Improving cooperation between all the services that support children and their families, 

particularly requiring local authorities and health authorities to work together (and 

specifically Clinical Commissioning Groups requirement to comply with health service 

requirements in EHC plans). 

Progress so far: 

• Local offer website delivered ahead of plan.  

• Six step pathway guide for families for Education, Health and Care (EHC) plans. 

• High level pathway process. 

• EHC plan template. 

• New schools EHC referral process and guidance. 

• Personal budgets position statement and service delivery arrangements. 

• Conversion plan for SEN statements to EHCs. 

• Joint commissioning position statement. 

• Communication and engagement plan. 

• Resource pack for schools and SENCOs.   

• Independent supporters, Independent Mediation and disagreement resolution.  

• Multi -agency 0–25 team to co- work on complex cases and develop joined up ways of 

working. 

 
 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

Our challenges are to implement and next stage of the legislation. With this comes an 

opportunity for increased joint working across services to improve outcomes for children, 

young people and their families. 

 Page 11



8 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

• Ensure that all Health and Wellbeing services which encompass the 0–25 age range are 

fully engaged with the legislative changes. 

• Commit to representation at the appropriate level to planning, decision making and 

resource allocation meetings particular around the needs of complex cases. 

• Agree to the data sharing requirements to enable a comprehensive and robust 

commissioning framework. 

• Agree to the co-location of the appropriate representation from Children’s 

Commissioning services into the 0–25 team to develop connectivity and consolidate the 

effective ways of working established through the creation of the 0–25 Scratch team. 

 

To note: the Children and Families Act also brings in the following changes: 

• Adoption and Contact: the Act will now allow children and grandchildren including 

descendants, spouses or adoptive relatives to apply to an intermediary agency for help 

tracing relatives of the adopted person. It brings into force new duties that enable 

children to be placed earlier with prospective adopters who are already approved foster 

parents and changes the weight given to consideration of ethnicity, religious persuasion, 

racial origin and cultural and linguistic background in matching children to perspective 

adopters. The Act also increases the support given to families who adopt and brings in 

the concept of ‘Staying Put’, clarifying the circumstances in which CYPF will support a 

former fostering arrangement beyond a young person’s 18th birthday. 

• Family Justice: the Act reduces the time limits on care proceedings to 26 weeks and 

brings into force new rules on the use of expert witness evidence. The Act also 

introduces Child Arrangements Orders which replace Residence and Contact Orders. 

• Childcare Reforms: the Act introduces a new mechanism for the registration of 

childminders via childminder agencies and repeals the Section 11 Duty  to prepare, at 

least every three years, an assessment of the sufficiency of the provision of childcare in 

their area but duty to secure where practicable sufficient childcare remains. 

 

  

Page 12



9 

 

Action 4.3: Ensure the experience of transition from child to adult services 

supports and promotes health and wellbeing. 
Section completed by Kevin Clifford, Sue Fiennes, Tony Tweedy and Moira Wilson 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

The transition point between children’s and adult services for those with complex SEND   

has been recognised as the most stressful and confusing period in the lives of families and 

carers. It is acknowledged as an extremely difficult phase for both parents/carers, children 

and young people. Thresholds for the movement between age determined services and for 

funding eligibility vary across education, health and social care. Services are complex to 

navigate.  

• The recent parent carers forum State of Sheffield report declared that Transition from 

child to adult services was slammed as a ‘drawn-out, faceless and fragmented process 

punctuated by long delays’. 

• The Sheffield Complex Child Health Needs Assessment 2014 provides insight into the 

changing nature of and Special Educational Needs and Disability in the city. This will 

help to inform the longer term model which may include prevention activity as well as 

assessment of need support.   

• Both the Children and Families Act 2014 and the Care Act 2014 place new 

responsibilities on children and adult social care to improve the transition to adulthood 

for young people with ongoing care and support needs. Adults and Children’s services 

have been involved in working groups to develop improved pathways and this work will 

continue throughout the coming year.    

• The recent assessment of Child Sexual Exploitation arrangements and practice 

highlighted the need to improve access and provision for ongoing support for young 

people in relation to counselling and mental health needs. In addition, the recent CDOP 

report on suicides in Sheffield gives cause for concern. 

In order to deliver on our vision to smooth the progression of young people with Special 

Educational Needs (SEND) into adulthood we must bring together all the transition 

elements into a coherent and cohesive single service. Within the last year there has been 

some progress, specifically within the area of CAHMS, where the transfer of provision of 

most secondary care for 16/17 year olds from the Sheffield Health and Social Care Trust to 

Sheffield Children’s Hospital is currently being piloted. 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

It is clear that the complexities of young people’s needs in transition are not fully 

understood, and that despite efforts, the understanding of mental capacity legislation, 

working across clinical boundaries and the focus on the young person is not robust. 

Unfortunately, we have also had some examples of less than ideal transitions, including a 

case which is currently subject to a case review by the Children’s Safeguarding Board.  

The main challenges facing the transition to adulthood are: 
Page 13



10 

 

• Different eligibility thresholds and funding between Children’s and Adult services, both in 

health and social care. 

• A range of transition points across different legislation – 16, 18, 19 and 25 years – which 

can create barriers between services and/or eligibility rules. 

• Fragmented commissioning within the NHS, with some inadequate communication 

between the CCG and NHS England at key points in the young people’s journey. 

• Poor communication and handover between both services and commissioners of 

services. 

• Ensuring involvement with adult services at an earlier stage in planning for a young 

person’s future beyond school and further education.  

• Managing expectations during a period of ongoing local authority budget reductions and 

changes in welfare reform. 

• Developing a more consistent approach to promoting independence and personalisation  

so that young people and their families experience a better outcome and are fully 

involved in planning across social care, health and education or life-long learning. 

• Capacity and conflicting priorities, meaning transition planning does not always begin 

early enough. 

The Children and Families Act and the Care Act provides us with the legislative driver and 

an opportunity to move quickly to address these issues. Education, social care and health 

services must commit to the creation of the single service. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

• The Health and Wellbeing Board should refresh and strengthen its commit to high 

quality transition to adulthood for Sheffield Young People to include: 

o Redesigning the customer pathway in line with the Children and Families Act 

and the Care Act.  

o Redesign of processes to remove duplication and make them efficient. 

o Joining Safeguarding Boards in making transitions a key objective within its 

business plan, so that mental health outcomes are improved for young people 

in Sheffield. 

• The Board should also support a cultural and systemic change which will potentially 

include: 

o Changes to roles and responsibilities. 

o Maximisation of use of ICT to enable efficient practice and robust data for 

performance monitoring and to support joint commissioning.    

o Understanding usage of and cost of SEND provision and developing a 

financial model which includes pooled budgets.   

o Alignment with the Better Care Fund and Care Act programmes.  

o The consolidation of the key health functions impacting on transitions. 

 

 

 

  

Page 14



11 

 

Action 4.4: Work with GP practices to improve the ways people can access 

their services. 
Section completed by Katrina Cleary 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

• GP practices have been encouraged to look at how, within the current workforce 

constrains, access might be improved, and many have put in place such initiatives as 

phone triage, increased access to allied health professionals and nurse practitioners, 

and the ability for patients to book appointments/order prescriptions on line. 

• The Care Planning Approach is now in its second year of implementation and 

encourages practices to focus on proactively managing the needs of those in the 

practice who without such an approach would most likely end up accessing urgent care.  

• Via System Resilience funding, further resource has been allocated to general practices 

to enable extra appointments to be put in place by the end of March 2015.   

• The emerging GP Provider Board has developed a Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund 

(PMCF) bid which aims to increase on an ongoing basis the availability of GP 

appointments, provide a more seamless transition between in- and out-of hours services 

and promote technological advances to support access and self-care more effectively. 

• The Children’s Health and Wellbeing Board is working with primary care to ensure that 

families are supported to ensure that they are registered with a GP. There is also a 

specific focus to ensure ‘early booking’ for pregnant women so that individuals receive 

support and services as soon as possible once pregnancy is confirmed. 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

• Workforce pressures pose a challenge. More experienced clinicians (GPs and Nurses) 

are taking retirement. Recruitment to key clinical posts is proving difficult, particularly in 

some of the more deprived areas in particular. At the same time practices are starting to 

feel the impact of the national policy imperative to equalise the finances available to 

practices for the delivery of core primary care services. 

• The PMCF bid provides a significant opportunity to put in place locally-based and 

consistent levels of access to primary care in a way which includes health and social 

care providers across the whole system. If the bid is not successful we will have to 

consider across the whole system how much of the bid’s ambition (albeit toned down) 

might be realised within existing resources. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

• The Integrated Commissioning Programme is integral to enabling primary care to offer 

increased access. 

• Recognising the workforce and financial pressures facing General Practice it would be 

helpful if the whole system encouraged Sheffield patients to manage their own health as 

far as possible and to use services (including primary care) responsibly, promoting the 

use of appropriate alternatives (community pharmacy, NHS Choices, 111 etc). 

Page 15



12 

 

Action 4.5: Ensure equality of access to services. 

Section completed by Tim Furness and Adele Robinson 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

NHS Sheffield CCG 

Ensuring equality of access to services is one of the key elements of addressing health 

inequalities.  There is evidence that some sections of the population of Sheffield do not 

access health services in the same way as the general population, as described in the 

CCG’s publication of equality monitoring information. Collection of demographic information 

to enable us to fully understand how people access services is weak in some areas, and 

improvement in that is a priority. To supplement our understanding of equality issues 

provided by data the NHS runs an Equalities Engagement Group, where CCG and 

Foundation Trust representatives meet representatives of people with each of the protected 

characteristics set out in equality legislation to understand and address issues with access 

to service that they experience. 

The CCG has an equality action plan, with five key objectives: 

1. Ensuring equality is core commissioning business 

2. Improve the range of activity information we have about patients in protected groups 

and how this is being used 

3. Improve our understanding of patient experience of services, re E&D, and act upon 

instances of potential discrimination 

4. Developing strong and consistent leadership on equality issues 

5. Improving access to services i.e. contracting 

Progress on the actions is reported to the CCG Governing Body on a six monthly basis.  

Consideration of equality issues, including health inequalities, is now embedded in our 

approach to managing our programmes of work. 

A paper has recently been approved by the SCC Health and Wellbeing Strategic Outcomes 

Board and NHSS CCG CET which outlines actions to improve access to services, reduce 

inequalities in access and promote health literacy. Actions are outlined to reduce 

inequalities in the demand on and supply of services; they include immediate actions, 

further investigation of the issues and how to measure impact.   

Sheffield City Council 

Ensuring the Council’s services are fair and accessible and customer experiences are 

positive is one of our Equality and Fairness Objectives 2014-18 as outlined in the Annual 

Equality reports 2013/14 and 2014/15. The objectives are overseen by the Strategic 

Equality and Inclusion Board and reported on the Annual Equality Report. 

In the past year in line with the objectives on accessible services and advancing health and 

wellbeing we have updated our monitoring form and Adult Social Care customers are now 

asked about their sexual orientation alongside other equality monitoring questions. To help 

supplement our monitoring we have updated and expanded our suite of Community 
Page 16



13 

 

Knowledge Profiles These profiles now cover a range of the different communities of 

identity in Sheffield including Lesbian Gay Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT), disability, 

women, lone parents, carers, as well as Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) communities. The 

profiles help inform services that we both provide or commission, though supporting a 

better understanding of our diverse customers.  

Another way we have tried to understand issues identified by different communities is 

through the newly developed a city-wide Equality Hub Network to strengthen the voice and 

influence of communities of identity (COIs) in Sheffield. These are specifically identified as 

a protected characteristic within the Equality Act 2010. We chose to focus on people with 

protected characteristics, because we know that these particular groups face additional 

barriers and therefore have difficulties accessing services and engagement routes. The 

Network enables the Council engage with these COIs to help shape policy and services in 

the city. The aim is to provide more effective and efficient routes for people to have a say 

on the issues that affect them and influence the decisions that are made.  

We are also working collaboratively and in partnership with non for profit organisations 

Disabled Go, Disability Sheffield and CredAbility to support the ambitions of Sheffield to 

become an accessible and fairer city for all. The partnership is supporting the development 

and delivery of a new city access guide in 2015. The new city wide access guide is an 

empowering tool that enables people to make informed choices about the services they 

want to access.  

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

The main challenges are inconsistent monitoring across protected characteristics. Without 

reliable consistent data it is difficult to ensure that services are fair and accessible. To this 

end a task and finish group of the Strategic Equality and Inclusion Board has recently been 

set up to look at this issue and suggest priority improvements to be made across the 

Council’s services. In addition, the new Equality Hub Network that we have developed is 

providing an opportunity for groups to come together to identify and discuss relevant issues. 

There is an opportunity to include health venues as part of future Accessible Sheffield 

access guide. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

The Health and Wellbeing Board can continue to support the objectives of the Fairness 

Commission and its Health Inequalities Action Plan. The Health and Wellbeing Board are 

requested to support actions to improve access as it will require a system-level response. 

In addition, the Board can work with the new Equality Hub Network and support the work of 

the Accessible Sheffield Project. 

 

 

 Page 17



14 

 

Action 4.6: Commit to reducing waiting times to at least national 

standards/averages for health and social care. 
Section completed by Dorne Collinson, Tim Furness, Idris Griffiths and Moira Wilson 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

There are a set of national waiting time targets that the CCG is committed to ensuring its 

providers achieve.1 As at December 2014, 12 of the 17 NHS Constitution core rights and 

pledges were being successfully delivered, with challenges in achieving the pledge for 95% 

of patients to be treated and discharged within 4 hours in A&E and the pledge for at least 

90% of patients to start treatment within 18 weeks of referral by a GP.  With respect to 

cancer waiting times our local providers continue to meet all the relevant standards. 

Adult social care assessment times have reduced significantly over the last 2 years from an 

average of 90 days in 2012/13 to 31 days in quarter 3 14/15.  Although there is no national 

target, Sheffield has set an internal target of 28 days and we are now very close to 

achieving this.  Further performance information relating to Adult Social care can be found 

within the 2014 Local Account. Adult social care will continue to benchmark Sheffield’s 

performance against the national Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) and 

regional or core city comparators. 

Children’s Social Care are committed to ensuring the right level of support to families is 

provided at the right time.  The deliverable outcomes are to provide services that are timely, 

high quality and responsive to need.  Recent increases in demand for both services have 

however created pressure in being able to allocate all work for more in depth work after 

cases after been subject to initial screening. Local procedures (based upon statutory 

guidance) determine that a decision should be taken by Social Care in respect of what 

action is required within 24 hours of receipt of the referral. As an authority we are compliant 

with this requirement. Following this decision, the local authority then has up to 45 days to 

complete an assessment. Performance shows that we are only achieving this in 70% of 

cases. A number of actions have been put in place to improve this performance, these 

include: 

• Developing community hubs 

• Streamlining social care referrals and allocation  

• Realignment of Social Care staffing 

• ‘Back to Basics’ Training for all front-line staff 

Children’s social care is currently experiencing pressures in respect of the allocation of 

lower priority cases within our Early Intervention and Prevention Service. All of these cases 

have been subject to initial screening and priority work has continued to be allocated. 

These delays have been created by a combination of increases in demand and difficulties 

in recruiting to vacant positions.  

 

                                                           
1
 These are set out in the CCG’s monthly quality and outcomes report to its Governing Body each month, 

available here. Page 18



15 

 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

• The CCG and local authority continually review the achievement of the standards and 

where there are challenges, as above, we work with providers to address problems and 

ensure compliance.  This includes the enforcement of contractual action, including 

requirement for remedial action plans and penalties for failure to achieve standards, and 

targeted investment, for example the use of System Resilience funding to increase 

capacity at the busiest times of the year. 

• The 2015/16 planning guidance includes new waiting time and access standards for 

mental health care, as part of the NHS’s commitment to achieving parity of esteem for 

mental health.  These cover waiting time for treatment for first episodes of psychosis 

(i.e. early intervention services), and for IAPT, together with expectations about 

availability of liaison psychiatry and implementation of the Crisis Care Concordat. 

• Achievement of NHS waiting time standards is continually challenging, mainly due to 

increasing demand for services, as demonstrated in the national issues on A&E waiting 

times before Christmas, which affected Sheffield.  Simply increasing activity levels in 

contracts to achieve targets is neither affordable not practical for providers and this 

challenge is a key driver for our plans to redesign services. 

• Pressures in children’s social care mean that the early help mechanism is not as 

effective as we would help in a minority of cases. We are consequently undertaking an 

analysis of the recruitment and retention strategy and some immediate plans have been 

put in place to recruit temporary staff to fill staffing gaps. Longer-term, thresholds of 

intervention into targeted services will be reviewed as part of the redesign of prevention 

and early intervention services, bringing clarity about the universal offer and 

consequently reducing cases from escalating within the system. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

• Health and Wellbeing Board members should continue to receive relevant performance 

management information to review progress against agreed targets. 

• The Board could continue to recognise the challenge of maintaining and improving 

access to services in the context of the difficult financial position and support the 

redesign of service delivery necessary to achieve this. 

 

  

Page 19



16 

 

Action 4.7: Commit to: providing care closer to home; keeping hospital and 

short term care as effective as possible; and providing rehabilitation to help 

people stay independent for as long as possible. 
Section completed by Joe Fowler and Tim Furness 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

• Our integrated commissioning plans set out our commitment to providing care closer to 

home. In particular, the Keeping People Well in Their Communities strand of the 

integrated commissioning programme sets out a clear aim to provide more care and 

support to people closer to home.  It consists of: 

o Working in partnership with primary care and local communities to identify 

people at risk of declining wellbeing. 

o Frontline workers reaching out to people at risk. 

o People being supported to do or get things that help them achieve their goals 

and reduce the risk of declining wellbeing / increased use of formal health and 

care services. 

• This includes better provision of information to help people to stay well, promoting the 

availability of community resources activities to maintain physical and mental health, 

commissioning a “sort and support” local services that helps people find the information 

they need and connects them to community and statutory services to resolve problems 

and “life navigators” to provide more intensive support for people at the highest risk, 

care planning with GPs and other health services to help people manage their health 

conditions, and integrated local services. 

• The Active Support and Recovery workstream of the integrated commissioning 

programme will lead to an integrated service that brings together health and social care 

services in patients’ homes, providing, where possible, an alternative to hospital care 

and supporting people to get home and retain their independence after a hospital stay. 

• The Community Wellbeing Programme contributes to this work by empowering local 

people in the poorest areas to improve their health and wellbeing.  

• For children and young people there is a commitment across Sheffield City Council and 

NHS Sheffield CCG to ensure that children and young people are cared for in Sheffield 

and that the number of ‘out of city’ placements are reduced.  

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

Elements of this have already been implemented. Using funding obtained through the 

Government’s Transformation Challenge Award the approach of Keeping People Well will 

be fully tested in around half of the city’s communities, where the existing community assets 

and relationship between local services and voluntary organisations is the strongest. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

Continue to support the integrated commissioning programme. 

Page 20



17 

 

Theme: Self-help 

Clear availability of information and support about health and wellbeing so that 

Sheffield people are able to help themselves 

Action 4.8: Encourage an integrated ‘Sheffield offer’ on the help, care and 

support available to people so that they can access guidance, advice, 

signposting, advocacy and self-assessment tools themselves. 
Section filled out by Dorne Collinson, Joe Fowler, Tim Furness and Phil Reid 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

Information and advice is fundamental to enabling people, carers and families to take 

control of, and make well-informed choices about, their care and support and how they fund 

it. Not only does information and advice help to promote people’s wellbeing by increasing 

their ability to exercise choice and control, it is also a vital component of preventing or 

delaying people’s need for care and support. 

Sheffield’s health and care economy is typical in that it has a fragmented offer on 

information and advice – with a bewildering array of leaflets, posters, and web-based 

material. In the last 12 months the Government has issued Guidance about the duties 

contained within the Care Act for Local Authorities about the delivery of a City-wide 

information and advice service. In addition, as part of the 0-25 SEND reforms the city was 

charged with creating a single website for information for parents, cares and young people. 

Identifying gaps in provision and services will help inform joint commissioning strategies. 

The information required by the Care Act can sit on the same IT platform as the 0 – 25 local 

offer thus maximising resources and presenting a comprehensive view of services.  

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

It is both a challenge and an opportunity to create maintain an information and advice 

service for people in Sheffield. The service must cover the needs of all our population, not 

just those who are in receipt of local authority funded care or support. The service will 

address prevention of care and support needs, finances, health, housing, employment, 

what to do in cases of abuse or neglect of an adult and other areas where required. The 

duty extends beyond the direct provision of information and advice to ensuring the 

coherence, sufficiency and availability of information and advice across Sheffield and 

facilitating access to it. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

The Health and Wellbeing Board can ensure that it participates in the Advice & Information 

Work stream established to oversee the delivery of the practical and strategic advice and 

information for the City. 

Page 21



18 

 

Action 4.9: Commit to working with partners on a model of active 

citizenship that promotes health literacy and supports people to look after 

themselves as well as possible. 
Section completed by Chris Nield 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs?  

Citizenship that promotes health literacy is more than being able to read leaflets and make 

appointments. It is about being able to decide whether information is relevant and how it 

can be used to improve health and the ability communicate health needs. People from the 

most deprived areas have low expectations about health services and low aspirations about 

their own health. This can lead to poor access to services and reluctance to make demands 

on services regarding their own needs.    

Research shows that community-based peer support is likely to improve health literacy, and 

in the last year significant progress has been made in the development of community 

programmes. For example: 

• The Community Wellbeing Programme empowers local people in the poorest areas to 

improve their health and wellbeing by developing social capital and building on 

community assets. The new contract focuses on building social capital asset based 

community development.   

• A new Evaluation Framework is being developed by Sheffield and Sheffield Hallam 

University. It is anticipated that a new commissioning strategy will be developed as part 

of the wider work around the Integrated Health and Social Care Strategy.  

• Health trainers support people to improve their health and wellbeing by increasing 

confidence and skills. They take referrals from GP Practices.  

• Health Champions and Practice Champions are mainly recruited from disadvantaged 

communities and draw on their own knowledge and life experience to undertake 

community interventions to improve health, wellbeing and social connectedness.  

• The Sheffield Executive Board has led an initiative to develop resilient communities. A 

task and finish group gathered evidence from a range of agencies working with 

communities. A  Fuzzy Framework for building community resilience was developed and 

SEB members will be asked to consider how they could support the work. 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

• There are opportunities to integrate this work with GP Personal Centred Care.  

• The resilience work led by the Strategic Executive Board is to be developed in localities.  

• A community development strategy is currently being developed. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

The Health and Wellbeing Board and its members can continue to recognise the value of a 

health literacy and empowerment approach to self-management of health and long term 

conditions.  It is also important to recognise the value of a neighbourhood approach when 

developing citizenship, resilience and health literacy. 

Page 22



19 

 

Theme: Engagement and Participation 

Patients and service users involved in decisions and their opinions valued 

Action 4.10: Require both commissioners and providers to have effective 

engagement processes in place that take what service users think into 

account in all decisions. 
Section completed by Dorne Collinson, Tim Furness, Kate Register and Maggie Campbell 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

• The CCG has strengthened its engagement with patients and public over the last year 

and has increased its capacity to do this. Primarily this has been through the 

establishment of the CCG “Involve Me” network – a means of people registering their 

interest in being informed about, and contributing to, the CCG’s work.   

• The CCG has also run specific engagement exercises on development of plans for 

musculoskeletal services and the development of a strategy for mental health in the city, 

and have tested our commissioning plans with the public. Some of this work has been 

carried out in partnership with Healthwatch Sheffield who will continue to assist the CCG 

with data collection and contract monitoring of musculoskeletal services going forward. 

• NHS providers have strong mechanisms to gain patient views and understand service 

users’ experience.  The CCG is working with the Foundation Trusts to align our 

engagement work and wherever possible to speak with one voice in communicating with 

the public.  We will be running a joint engagement exercise to discuss our views about 

how healthcare should be delivered in the future. 

• Sheffield City Council has a range of regular involvement mechanisms for users of adult 

social care and their carers.  These provide a rich, ongoing source of customer 

perspective and an opportunity to coproduce plans, specifications and agree priorities 

together.  The involvement work has been reviewed and evaluated, and some proposed 

changes are being consulted on. In addition to regular routine involvement, throughout 

the year emphasis has been placed on increasing contact with those who are seldom 

heard, and specific consultations have been run during the year, such as on the 

Learning Disability Commissioning Strategy. 

• Right First Time involvement has seen the continuation of a citizens’ reference group.  

This has increased in membership and representatives have joined the board and 

project groups of Right First Time.  In addition specific consultations under Right first 

Time have included consultation with those with a Serious Mental Illness around their 

physical health needs, patient feedback from the new Care Planning approach.   

• The voice and influence of Children, Young People and families is a priority. In 

conjunction with Young Healthwatch (part of Healthwatch Sheffield) and CHILYPEP, the 

Young Commissioners pilot has been developed. These young people have then 

worked alongside commissioning staff within the NHS and Local Authority to 

commission 4 new local services. In addition, the Sheffield Children’s Health and 

Wellbeing Partnership Board and the Sheffield Children’s Joint Commissioning Group 

both have recognised work streams focusing upon engagement and participation.  

Page 23



20 

 

• Healthwatch Sheffield is developing an ‘assurance mechanism’ where Healthwatch 

Sheffield could advise about and/or offer external assurance to support in-house 

engagement work. 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

• One challenge is to continue to work closely with the different teams who run 

engagement to ensure joint working and that resources are best used, including running 

engagement exercises jointly wherever appropriate. An opportunity therefore is that 

increasingly the health and care system will work as one on public communication and 

engagement, and that therefore duplication is avoided and information already gathered 

is used effectively. 

• It is a continued priority and challenge to reach those citizens (including vulnerable 

children and young people) whose views are seldom heard, particularly those who do 

not have access to online information.  Priorities for the coming year include those living 

in Care Homes, Looked After Children and Young People, children and young people 

experiencing mental health issues, adult self-funders and members of Black and 

Minority Ethnic groups. Healthwatch Sheffield was set up to support the Health and 

Wellbeing Board in fulfilling the priority to engage with those hard to reach. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

• Continue its own engagement work, continuing particularly to seek the views of children, 

young people and families, and to work with Healthwatch Sheffield in doing so. 

• Work with Healthwatch Sheffield’s growing ‘network of networks’ to continue reach 

those who are seldom heard. 

  

Page 24



21 

 

Action 4.11: Use patient/service user experience as a significant measure of 

quality. 
Section completed by Dorne Collinson, Tim Furness and Kate Register 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

The Health and Wellbeing Board’s partners puts patient and service user experience very 

high on their quality agenda reports and have a number of measures of experience 

including: 

• Provider-generated Patient Experience data. In addition, there is an annual Department 

of Health Survey for users and carers of adult social care services. 

• Friends and Family Test (FFT) implementation in A&E, in-patient care and Maternity at 

STH. FFT is now being role out to other services over 2015/16, including primary and 

community care. 

• Work with Healthwatch Sheffield to encourage people to share their experiences of 

services. 

• Utilising online patient experience via Patient Opinion, Care Opinion and NHS Choices.  

The CCG is working with Patient Opinion to develop further new and innovative ways of 

collecting and collating experiences of services to help assess the quality they provide. 

• Including service users to help inform how our services are commissioned in future.   

• The Right First Time involvement project developed and consulted on a set of patient 

satisfaction measures. 

• Adult Social Care in the Council has a Service Improvement Forum with a quality 

assurance brief for services to older people and disabled adults.  There is a proposal to 

develop a similar Service Improvement Forum for adults with a learning disability. 

• The Children and Families Service in the Council have embedded service user feedback 

into much of their routine casework activity. In addition to routine activity, they also 

incorporate service user consultations into key service reviews. 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

The challenges are many and varied in collecting and interpreting good patient experience 

information. This can only be achieved by using a variety of means to collect experiences 

and collate this with the other intelligence we have around servicesAs a result high quality 

robust patient experience information can be very labour intensive to collect. In addition, 

due to the varied range of services delivered it is difficult to capture views across all activity 

whilst still ensuring that the wishes and feelings of the most vulnerable and hard to reach 

groups are appropriately represented.  

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

The Health and Wellbeing Board can help by ensuring the patient/service user is 

encouraged and seen as essential to the city’s decision making processes and by 

continuing to raise the profile and value of patient or user experiences of our services.   

Page 25



22 

 

6. Examining outcome 5, action by action 

 

Theme: Joint commissioning and whole-system transformation 

Sheffield people at the centre of the Sheffield health and wellbeing system, 

underpinned by strong working relationships between commissioners with a clear 

methodology for joint working and pooled budgets underpinned by an innovative 

and affordable health and wellbeing system fit for the twenty-first century 

 

Action 5.1: Build on existing joint working to establish a clear joint 

commissioning methodology, including the consideration of pooled budgets 

in areas such as the health and social care budget for older people with long 

term conditions and children with complex needs. The joint commissioning 

methodology will include a commitment to the co-production of strategic 

plans to ensure services are delivered in the most effective way for the 

benefit of all. 
 

Please see the report under action 4.1, which covers this action too. 

 

  

Page 26



23 

 

Action 5.2: Address city-wide causes of high hospital use by promoting 

innovative ideas and models for whole system change. This will include 

working with providers to find the best way to redesign systems upstream, 

and engagement to build awareness of appropriate access to services. 
Section completed by Joe Fowler and Tim Furness 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

Sheffield, in common with the national picture, continues to have increasing levels of 

demand for hospital services, particularly urgent care (both for adults and children and 

young people), as was seen in the high demand for A&E services in December 2014 and 

the impact that had on waiting times and on the consequent demand for inpatient care and 

rehabilitation services. 

The health and social care system is addressing this through the Integrated Commissioning 

Programme and the Right First Time Partnership.  Through Right First Time the NHS and 

social care in Sheffield has reduced the average length of stay in hospital, primarily by 

developing and investing in services to enable people to be discharged from hospital more 

quickly, including expanded rehabilitation services and greater availability of intermediate 

care beds out of hospital.  We have also been able to reduce the growth in ambulatory care 

sensitive admissions (those considered most avoidable) compared to total urgent 

admissions.  The Integrated Commissioning Programme will build on these successes to 

establish services that reduce demand for hospital care by supporting people to keep well 

at home and providing alternatives to hospital care in response to health crises.  In addition, 

the CCG is instigating a review of urgent care services in the city to ensure that when 

people do need hospital care, those services are as efficient and high quality as possible. 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

We need to make much more progress to achieve our stated aim of reducing urgent care 

admissions by 20% over the next five years.  This is the key impact, in service terms, of the 

Integrated Commissioning Programme. Through the Keeping People Well in Their 

Communities work we aim to help people avoid health crises and manage crises better, so 

that, where it is best for that person, they can stay at home and be treated there.  This work 

includes and further develops the established Community Wellbeing Programme. Through 

the Active Support and Recovery work, we will be commissioning out of hospital services 

differently so that there is increased support to provide alternatives to hospital admission 

and to support a quick discharge from hospital where a period of hospital care is needed. 

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

Continue to support the Integrated Commissioning Programme. 

  

Page 27



24 

 

Theme: Prevention and early intervention 

A preventative system that seeks to help and identify people before they are really 

sick, enabling Sheffield people to stay health and well for longer 

 

Action 5.3: Establish more preventative and targeted approaches to the 

provision of health and social care by extending the application of 

population risk profiling (predicted risk of future health crisis) to enable a 

closer alignment between services and people’s needs. This should inform 

the development of integrated care and reablement services to help people 

stay at home, be healthy for longer and avoid hospital and long-term care. 
Section completed by Lorraine Jubb 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been 

made in the past year to meet these needs? 

Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group has identified that 40%-60% of “ambulatory care 

sensitive” hospital admissions are avoidable. Within this target cohort there are about 

12,000 avoidable admissions per year – costing more than £20m every year. Admission 

and discharge to hospital is also in itself an expensive process with significant knock on 

costs over and above this headline figure. 

The risk stratification tool (Combined Predictive Model – CPM) used by health to determine 

the risk of hospital admission was the basis for targeted preventative work undertaken in 

Lowedges, Batemoor and Jordanthorpe and subsequently by Community Support Workers 

in other areas. These pilots demonstrated small but significant net reductions in the 

number of people requiring formal social care and considerable success in reducing the 

number of A&E attendances by those with a history of four or more attendances in the 

previous year.  

Significant consultation with stakeholders has taken place to both develop and promote the 

Keeping People Well outcomes framework. A key element of this has been to explain the 

importance of risk stratification in targeting resources and shifting to more proactive 

systems and processes based on the needs of people rather than organisations. 

This approach has also led to the development of a Winter Planning protocol for ensuring 

those identified as vulnerable with no formal or family support receive a wellbeing call at 

times of severe weather to make sure they have sufficient food and medication to prevent 

the need for them to venture out and risk falling etc. Essential supplies are delivered by a 

bank of over 150 volunteers who are predominantly council employees. 

The CPM is also used in Care Planning by GPs to target patients over the age of 75 for 

holistic health and wellbeing interventions. 

 
 
 

Page 28



25 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

Challenges are: 

• Obtaining and sharing reliable baseline data across health and social care remains a 

challenge, without this effective evaluation will be difficult. 

• Significant consultation with stakeholders has taken place to both develop and promote 

the Keeping People Well outcomes framework. A key element of this has been to 

explain the importance of risk stratification in targeting resources and shifting to more 

proactive systems and processes based on the needs of people rather than 

organisations. The majority of systems and processes across health and social care are 

reactive rather than proactive. 

• Work still needs to be done to develop the awareness and understanding of targeting 

resources and services at particular cohorts of people. It is seen by some as “case 

finding” rather than a proactive attempt to prevent or delay people from needing formal 

care and support. Some feel it could put additional strain on an already over stretched 

health and social care system; however, analysis of the use of health and social care by 

those targeted does not reflect this perception; in fact the opposite is true. 

• Investing in preventative interventions where the benefit might not be realised for 

several years is a challenge. Reliable quantitative evidence is hard to come by both 

locally and nationally and could hinder progress. 

• Effective use of risk stratification varies dramatically in GP practices and some have 

reported difficulty in getting updated information.  

Opportunities are: 

• The links and dependencies between re-ablement and prevention present us with an 

opportunity to develop a more proactive approach with people coming out of services 

as well as preventing or delaying people entering. 

• Funding from the TCA presents us with an opportunity to measure the impact of 

preventative approaches over the next year as we scale up the approach. 

• Currently the CPM is based solely on health data, we have an opportunity to develop 

the model to include social risk factors that we know can impact severely on an 

individual’s ability to cope, for example bereavement, caring responsibilities and 

loneliness and isolation. 

• The Housing Plus model currently being piloted by Sheffield Council Housing presents 

an opportunity to target tenancy support at vulnerable people thereby acknowledging 

the role they can play in reducing the need for formal social care services and 

improving the quality of life of tenants. 

• Work is underway to identify those children, young people and families who could be 

vulnerable and ‘at risk’. One tool developed identifies those children at risk of becoming 

NEET those ‘not in employment, education or training’. 

 
 
3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

The Health and Wellbeing Board have a big role to play in promoting proactive approaches 

like risk stratification to ensure resources are targeted efficiently and effectively and by 

supporting the shift in culture to embrace proactivity. 
Page 29



26 

 

Action 5.4: Make best use of available and emerging technology to support 

early and local intervention. 
Section completed by Dorne Collinson and Tim Ellis 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

Our world has been radically transformed by digital technology – smart phones, tablets, and 

web-enabled services have transformed the way we communicate and how many of us go 

about our daily lives. Technology and IT can provide the capability to help health and care 

providers provide better access to care, better communicate with the users of our services, 

improve the experience of care, and enhance teamwork and efficiency.  

In order to make best use of technologies we need to keep abreast of the latest 

developments and also to understand the barriers to adopting these innovations. The 

Health and Wellbeing Board facilitated an event with industry to build an understanding of 

how we can engage with them to capitalise on the great expertise housed within the city 

council, NHS, universities and research centres so that they can create innovative digital 

products that align with our needs.  

In addition the Right First Time and Integrated Commissioning Programme have been 

investigating how new technologies can help achieve their ambitions for integrated care 

closer to home. This has included examining how we can improve access to services, 

share information across organisations, enable collaboration, use digital information to 

improve services and automate routine tasks. Consideration has also been given to how 

services users can be more involved in their care, whether this is by monitoring their own 

health, booking appointments online or finding relevant information on services online.  

Aligned with these programmes many of the main health and care commissioners and 

providers in the region have been refreshing their overarching digital strategies to reflect the 

need for greater integration across providers and the need to enable a connected mobile 

workforce. Sheffield Teaching Hospitals have announced the procurement of an electronic 

patient record system that will deliver on their objective of transforming services through 

technology over the next 5 years. STH has also invested in a technology that enables 

people to monitor their own health at home using their own mobile phone to communicate 

with healthcare staff. Sheffield City Council has also reviewed how it contracts for 

informatics and ensures it is getting the best from its suppliers. 

Social media and the use of new technology is an important theme in the development of 

services for children and young people. The Children’s Health and Wellbeing Partnership 

Board is exploring ways to improve service delivery through the use of new technology. 

This is particularly important for priority issues such as improving children and young 

people’s emotional wellbeing and mental health. There is recognition that providers have to 

engage more innovatively and safely with children and young people through web based 

technology and provide up to date service information via text and email.  

 

 

Page 30



27 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

A key risk of introducing technology is that those with lower levels of digital literacy will be 

left behind. Some of this can be mitigated by making sure the technologies are designed 

with users and are intuitive to use. We must also ensure that we put in appropriate training 

and support to enable people to get the most out of new technologies and recognise that 

digital inequality has several dimensions including equipment, autonomy of use, skill, social 

support, and the purposes for which the technology is employed. Some people will not want 

to interact digitally even if they have the capability. There are a number of national and local 

initiatives around digital participation that we can access.  

There are challenges with adopting emerging technologies because the evidence base for 

their effectiveness is often weak. The close links developed with the Academic Health 

Science Network (AHSN), Collaboration for Leadership in Applied Health Research and 

Care (CLAHRC) and Devices for Dignity (D4D) in the region, together with detailed analysis 

of opportunities by Public Health colleagues, help minimise these risks but it has to be 

expected that not all innovations will be successful. To that end the way in which new 

technologies can be tested safely and rapidly is being explored in the region.  

Another key challenge is that individual organisations may well have well developed digital 

strategies but together they do not support our vision for how seamless services should be 

provided by organisations working in close partnership. From April 2016 CCGs and Local 

Authorities will have to produce a digital roadmap that highlights how all the plans 

coordinate to deliver benefit. This should ensure that we have a coordinated regional 

approach to digitising our processes and information and that any risks arising from 

mismatches in timing or functionality can be mitigated. 

A final challenge relates to the sharing and access of patient identifiable information. 

Organisations need to work closely together to minimise risk and to improve data sharing.  

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

• The development of a city wide digital strategy that embraces the intentions of all the 

providers of health and care in the region should be encouraged. The Board should 

ensure that the digital strategy supports its wider aims and is kept up to date. 

• The Board and its members need to address digital literacy in the recipients of digital 

services. A coordinated effort to identify needs and find solutions for them will help to 

ensure that people are not left behind as more services become available digitally. 

• The relationship with the Yorkshire and Humber AHSN, CLAHRC and D4D should 

strengthen.  

• The way in which the innovations that encourage integration and cooperation can be 

developed and tested without negative impact upon core business needs to be 

explored. The concept of Sheffield as an innovation hub or test bed for new innovations, 

as outlined in the NHS 5 Year Forward View, should be considered. The ambition would 

be that innovators from the UK and internationally would be attracted, and pay, to have 

their proposed discovery or innovation deployed and tested in these sites.  

• The Health and Wellbeing Board has a role in ensuring that all the commissioners and 

providers in the region continue to seek out and deploy technologies to improve our care 

in a safe and secure manner.  
Page 31



28 

 

Theme: Health and wellbeing workforce 

Frontline workers aware of health and wellbeing needs and able to signpost and 

support service users in obtaining the help they need 

Action 5.5: Commission a basic training programme for all frontline 

workers that raises the profile of public health, mental health and 

safeguarding issues and ensures an understanding of services and tools 

available to make ‘Every Contact Count’. 
Section completed by Victoria Horsefield and Chris Nield 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

To enable the Council and its partner organisations to maximize opportunities of day to day 

contact with service users, there is a need to build the competence, confidence and 

commitment of front-line staff and their managers. There is also the opportunity to influence 

Providers to ensure public health considerations inform their practice and opportunities for 

positive health and wellbeing interventions are maximized. ‘Making Every Contact Count’ 

(MECC) encourages conversations about health and wellbeing including consideration of 

social needs which influence health.  

In the last year this work has: 

• Put together a multi-disciplinary, cross-organisation and cross-departmental project 

team to deliver this project.  

• Looked at what is needed to transform the Council in to a public health organization. 

• Public Health have recruited two experienced training and development consultants. 

One post funded through Sheffield Teaching Hospital’s Charitable Trust, will work in 

partnership with ScHARR to carry out a four year piece of work implementing the MECC 

model in identified teams within SCC.  The second post, also working on MECC 

delivery, has a wider remit to address the development of Public Health competence, 

working across Portfolios within SCC, to support the MECC work. 

• Developed and action plan and it is anticipated the first training cohort will be trained in 

summer.   

Sheffield Safeguarding Children Board (SSCB) has an established multi-agency training 

programme that includes opportunities for frontline workers and their managers to increase 

their knowledge, understanding and skills in relation to a number of these issues. The 

SSCB Learning and Improvement framework is informed by practice reviews and audits 

conducted by the SSCB to ensure it is able to respond quickly and efficiently to emerging 

issues and themes. The Sheffield Safeguarding Adults Strategic Partnership ensures that 

training and development on safeguarding issues is made available for staff across the 

multiagency partnership. 

 

Page 32



29 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

• Releasing front-line staff for MECC training will be a challenge. The SSCB training 

programme has been revised to take into account a changing workforce with shorter, 

focused but more intensive training opportunities being offered.  

• The funded MECC project will support a concentrated evaluation to assist in developing 

a robust programme with lasting impact that can be rolled out across the Council and to 

wider partner organisations in the city. 

• The Care Act 2014 puts safeguarding adults on a statutory footing for the first time from 

1 April 2015. A state of readiness review has been undertaken which confirms that 

Sheffield is ready to undertake the new duties under the Act and the opportunities for 

raising the profile of adult safeguarding are welcomed  

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

• Continue to support organisational engagement and development that will assist the 

MECC programme. We can all Make Every Contact Count so encouraging colleagues 

across the board to embrace this as a tool for addressing health inequalities will assist in 

the rollout and recognition of this programme. 

• Work alongside existing training delivery programmes to ensure consistent messages 

are being delivered to the workforce and to use every training opportunity to give these 

key messages. 

 

 

  

Page 33



30 

 

Action 5.6: Commit to working with VCF organisations to find the best way 

of meeting people’s needs locally and ensuring we benefit from the added 

value VCF organisations can bring. 
Section completed by Alexandra Shilkoff 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

Statutory sector partners and Voluntary, Community and Faith (VCF) colleagues have 

formed the ‘Thriving VCF Leadership Group’.  The purpose of this group is to: 

• Develop a culture which values the skills, experience, capability and capacity of the 

sector, and recognises the sector’s contribution as a key element of Sheffield’s success. 

• Champion a strong approach to co-design and co-production and empower citizens and 

communities to be part of designing solutions for the future. 

• Encourage and promote communication and consultation between the private, public 

and Sector to be widespread, strong and robust. 

• Advise a range of boards, including the Health and Wellbeing Board, on the 

development of strategy and action plans that would strengthen and promote the role 

and successes of the sector in the city. 

• Act as custodians of the Sheffield Compact - an agreement between public sector 

organisations and third sector organisations that aims to strengthen working 

relationships between the two sectors. 

• Oversee the allocation of any budget or resources that further the purposes of the 

Leadership Group. 

In 2014/15 the Thriving VCF Leadership Group have worked with partners to arrange three 

events in the city to look collectively at how to best to address the issues of Health & Social 

Care Community Prevention (Keeping People Well in their Community), Welfare Reform 

and Community Cohesion. 

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

There is an opportunity, with the move to more outcomes based commissioning, to 

generate more innovative and locally responsive ways of working to meet local needs.  VCF 

organisations have an opportunity to deliver services or partner with other organisations to 

make the best use of resources and expertise. However, funding uncertainty within the 

sector is a significant challenge for stability and to maintain the capacity.   

 

3. What can the Health and Wellbeing Board, or its members, do over the next year? 

• Listen to the latest thinking from the sector on city wide and local delivery matters. 

• Solicit feedback and innovative ideas from the sector on all aspects of the Board’s work. 

• Review commissioning and contracting practices to ensure that VCF organisations are 

given the best chance to shine, able to plan more than one year ahead, and that the 

‘Sheffield £’ is maximised. 
Page 34



31 

 

Action 5.7: Continue to seek greater efficiency from providers, 

without putting service users’ safety or experience at risk. 
Section completed by Joe Fowler, Anthony Hughes and Julia Newton 

 

1. What are the needs identified under this action and what progress has been made 

in the past year to meet these needs? 

• The CCG requires providers to achieve greater efficiency year on year through the 

mandatory price setting mechanisms in NHS contracts. Over the last few years this has 

resulted in a net reduction in price for services, with allowance for cost increases more 

than offset by an efficiency requirement.  This net price reduction is then also used as 

the baseline for local price setting, with variation only being made where there is clear 

evidence that achieving the price reduction could compromise patient safety or the 

quality of care (this most often applies in agreeing prices with care homes). 

• In addition to the above the CCG plans to achieve further efficiency gains through 

changes in the levels of activity it commissions (e.g. reducing urgent hospital 

admissions by improving care in community settings, developing alternatives to GP 

referral to hospital for non-urgent care). 

• The Council has asked care providers to contribute to meeting its financial challenges 

over the last four years. This has resulted, in the main, in standstill or very low fee 

increases. Sheffield now has some of the lowest care costs in the country. The drive to 

deliver cost reductions has also seen the Council taking action to move care provision 

away from more expensive providers. This has been done on a quality first basis – 

ensuring that compromises are not made on the quality of care provided. 

• There are still some areas of care provision where new contractual arrangements or 

negotiation will deliver further cost savings without compromising on service quality. 

These areas are mainly in learning disability services where costs are relatively high 

compared to other areas.  

• The Council’s Children, Young People and Families portfolio has worked to seek greater 

efficiency from providers and to ensure effective service delivery that achieves positive 

outcomes for children and families. Particularly there has been a focus on the 

monitoring and performance management of contracts to question and challenge 

outcomes and to instigate redesign where necessary, and to review or change contracts 

where required.  

 

2. What are the main challenges and opportunities for this action? 

• As budget reductions continue it is becoming clear that the squeeze on costs is starting 

to impact on the ability of providers to deliver services to the standards required. This 

has been apparent in recent weeks when home care providers have struggled to cope 

with demand – with a direct consequential impact on the ability of the care system to 

support hospital patients back into the community. The slim margins in the sector mean 

that providers struggle to bring in additional capacity at peak times and we need to 

consider how we fund this additional capacity based on the very tangible savings that 

can be achieved by avoiding unnecessarily long hospital stays.  

• We also have ambitions to deliver living wage across the care sector, which will also 

drive further pressure on costs.  
Page 35



32 

 

Appendix A – Outcome indicators for outcomes 4 and 5 

 

Indicator: Improving access to GP services 

Definition: Proportion of GP Patient Survey respondents reporting a very good or fairly good 

experience of making an appointment. 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
 

Sheffield 
 

75.5% 72.4% 70.4% 

England 
 

79.1% 76.3% 74.6% 

Core City Rank (1 is best) 
 

6 7 7 

 

Indicator: Avoidable admissions to hospital 

Definition: Rate of emergency admissions to hospital for acute conditions that should not usually 

require hospital admission. Rate per 100,000 population. 

 2011-12 
 

2012-13 2013-14 

Sheffield 
 

1288.1 1476.4 1462.1 

England 
 

1130.2 1204.3 1195.7 

Core City Rank (1 is best) 
 

3 6 6 

 
 
Indicator: Delayed transfers of care from hospital 

 
Definition: Average number of delayed transfers of care from hospital on a particular day taken 
over the year divided by the size of the adult (18 years and over) population in the area and 
multiplied by 100,000. 

 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-141 

 

Sheffield 
 

3.5 3.6 15.6 

England 
 

9.7 9.5 9.6 

Core City Rank (1 is best) 
 

1 1 6 

1 The number of delayed transfers of care in Sheffield on the day of the census in 2013-14 was 69 compared 

to 16 in 2012-13. In August 2013 the Sheffield Teaching Hospital Foundation Trust changed how it defines 

delayed transfers and also started to report delays directly from its case management system. Although this is 

a much more accurate method of capturing information it has led to a five-fold increase in the number of 

delays identified. This means the figures for 2013-14 onwards are no longer comparable with previous years 

or other areas of the country. 

 

 

 

Page 36



33 

 

Indicator: Older people still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital 

Definition: Proportion of people aged 65 years and over who were still at home 91 days after 

discharge from hospital into reablement/rehabilitation services. 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
 

Sheffield 
 

86.2% 76.8% 84.8% 

England 
 

82.7% 81.4% 82.5% 

Core City Rank (1 is best) 
 

1 4 3 

 

Indicator: Control over daily life 

Definition: Proportion of social care clients (users/carers) who say they have sufficient control over 
their daily life. (18 years and over) 
 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
 

Sheffield 
 

76.2% 74.7% 74.2% 

England 
 

75.1% 75.9% 76.8% 

Core City Rank (1 is best) 
 

3 6 4 

 

Indicator: Self-directed support 

Definition: Number of social care clients (users/carers) receiving self-directed support as a 

proportion of clients receiving community based services and carers receiving carer specific 

services (18 years and over). 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
 

Sheffield 
 

54.2% 69.3% 63.1% 

England 
 

43% 55.6% 61.9% 

Core City Rank (1 is best) 
 

2 2 6 

 

Indicator: Older people admitted to care homes 

Definition: Rate of council supported permanent admissions to nursing and residential care homes 

of people aged 65 years and over per 100,000 population. 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 
 

Sheffield 
 

443.2 796 677.5 

England 
 

695.9 708.8 650.6 

Core City Rank (1 is best) 
 

1 5 2 

 Page 37



34 

 

Appendix B – Work of the Sheffield Safeguarding Boards 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

Safeguarding Boards’ work in Sheffield 

 
This is a summary of key issues for both Safeguarding Boards in Sheffield which have a 
relationship to the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

The Child Sexual Exploitation Assessment Report for Sheffield published in December 
2014 identified 44 strengths and 16 areas requiring further development. Areas requiring 
development/improvement included the need for clearer pathways especially therapeutic to 
improve access and provision for ongoing support for young people in relation to 
counselling and mental health needs. 

The CSE strategic group has produced an action plan which will include this aspect of 
support. The Safeguarding Children Executive Board will oversee this action plan. 

The Board recently supported a plan to extend CAMHS -Child and Adolescent Mental 
Health Service- up to 18 and indeed this was the first recommendation of a case review 
report presented to the same meeting. 

The case review concerned a young man whose transition from children to adult services 
broke down. It is clear that the complexities of young peoples’ needs in transition are not 
fully understood and that despite efforts, the understanding of mental capacity legislation, 
working across clinical boundaries and the focus on the young person is not robust. 

Both safeguarding boards will have transition improvement in their business plans for 2015-
16 and will work with the Health and Well Being Board transition programme to ensure 
improved arrangements and mental health outcomes. 

In addition, the recent Sheffield Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) report on suicides, 
which reported on the death by suicide of 6 young people since CDOP processes 
commenced in 2008 gives cause for concern. As this assurance responsibility is part of the 
children safeguarding board agenda and relevant to wellbeing in Sheffield it is important to 
highlight the factors found in the study which affect the wellbeing of some vulnerable young 
people and can inform the work with young people in transition to adult services. 

The Safeguarding Adults Board, now a statutory Board as part of the Care Act 2014 has 
assurance responsibility for the significantly increased Deprivation of Liberty Standards 
activity following a High Court Ruling.  

The supervisory body for this is the local authority affecting people lacking capacity who are 
in health and care settings and supported accommodation as well as at home. 

 

 

Page 38



35 

 

If there are restrictions which need authorisation then the person's best interests must be 
assessed and the supervisory body must be assured that they are necessary to keep 
people safe. 

This is part of considerations of health and wellbeing and given the increased volume there 
is an assurance responsibility in relation to the risks being managed given the workload. 
This is being exercised but nationally as well as locally there are challenges which affect 
vulnerable people who lack capacity. 

 

 

 

 

Sue Fiennes 

Independent Chair Safeguarding Children and Adults Boards Sheffield   

March 2015 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report of: Chris Shaw, Head of Health Improvement, Sheffield City Council 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Date: 26 March 2015 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Subject:                    Health, Disability and Employment in Sheffield 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report: Chris Shaw, 0114 273 5015 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:    

The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy is the Health and Wellbeing Board’s strategy for 

Sheffield and as such is Sheffield’s overarching city strategy in all matters relating to health 

and wellbeing. It has five work programmes, one of which focusses on Health, Disability 

and Employment. This paper aims to briefly summarise the key issues for the Health and 

Wellbeing Board in seeking to improve the employment opportunities for people with health 

and disability barriers to employment and reduce the impact of poor health on employment 

across the City. It will be supported by a presentation at the meeting. 

 

Recommendations: Health and Wellbeing Board members are invited to support the work 

in this area (see section 5 of this report for specific recommendations). 

 

Background Papers:  

• Baseline report looking at Health, Disability and Employment issues in Sheffield – 

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/caresupport/health/health-wellbeing-board/what-the-board-

does/priorities/work-programmes/health-dis-employ.html.  

• Sheffield Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-18 –

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/caresupport/health/health-wellbeing-board/what-the-board-

does/joint-health-and-wellbeing-strategy.html.  

• A presentation will be given at the meeting alongside this paper. This will be published 

online after the meeting. 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

PAPER 

Agenda Item 5

Page 41



2 

 

Health Disability and Employment in Sheffield: 

Discussion Paper for the Health and Wellbeing Board 

Thursday 26
 
March 2015 

 

1. Background to the report  

One of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Work Programmes is the issue of Health, 

Disability and Employment. Good work is good for health, the evidence for this, and the 

strategic context and existing performance was presented in the baseline report on health, 

disability and employment which was previously presented to the Board. 

This report will briefly summarise the key issues for the Health and Wellbeing Board in 

seeking to improve the employment opportunities for people with health and disability 

barriers to employment and reduce the impact of poor health on employment across the 

City.  The majority of the paper will focus on the “off work (long and short term)” cohort.  

 

2. A summary of progress so far  

In work and at work cohort 

• Commissioned SOHAS to deliver Public Health England’s Workplace Wellbeing Award, 

encouraging businesses to consider workforce wellbeing and offering connections to 

various avenues of support from Move More to Mindful Employer. The target is 200 

employers within 2 years.  

• Worked with Macmillan to develop Vocational Rehab for people recovering from and 

living with cancer. 

In work but off work 

• Working with National Fit for Work Service delivered by Maximus (who also won the 

Work Capability Assessment contract vacated by ATOS), currently being piloted in 

Sheffield by Health Management Ltd.     

Off Work (long and short term) 

• Commissioned jointly with Jobcentre Plus the “Works Well” project which seeks to 

provide employment opportunities for 200 people with health and disability barriers to 

employment. This is being delivered by SOAR, ZEST and Manor and Castle 

Development Trust. 

• Conducted ‘audit’ of existing service provision across the Council and NHS against best 

evidence criteria. 

• Working with Public Sector Transformation Network to develop a single referral pathway 

into employment for the cohort. 

  

Page 42



3 

 

3. What we have learned  

• Sheffield Performance against a range of health and care outcome measures is 

variable, but in the main slightly below average. 

• The things we do collectively to support the cohort into employment are not joined up 

and there are duplication and gaps. Outcomes are not adequately measured. It has 

evolved rather than been constructed. 

• Culturally (nationally) our health and care systems do not view employment as a 

productive health outcome. 

• Our welfare system has inadequate contact with health provision. 

• The national employment system has not delivered for the cohort. 

• The level of increase in demand for opportunity has to be balanced with an increase in 

supply – and brokerage/ support for employers is probably our weakest area both within 

existing provision and as a gap between.  

• Too much of the provision focusses on preparation for employment, when all the 

evidence says acquisition and retention are more important (Place then Train).  

• We do not have enough provision for below 16 hrs per week, job carved opportunities or 

enough supported internships. 

• School and FE leavers from the cohort are not prepared for nor helped to operate in the 

world of work.  

• We also need to prepare for the ageing workforce and the implications of this (no work 

done here yet). 

• Not addressing the issue has significant health and social care implications now and in 

the future.  

 

4. What we must balance  

In terms of action, it is important to maintain a balance between:  

1. Quick wins (increase/ improve commissioning activity and coordination) and longer term 

‘system’ change to reduce system and culture barriers to improving outcomes. (The 

Devolution and Public Services Transformation Network agendas are key here.) 

2. Supply of opportunity and demand for opportunity. 

We also need to be mindful that both Outcomes Framework measures (employment gap for 

those with a learning disability and those in contact with secondary mental health services) 

are comparatively small cohorts (100s) whereas those on Employment Support Allowance 

due to a health condition or disability are much greater (20,000+). We need to be mindful of 

hitting the target but missing the point.   

 

5. How the Health and Wellbeing Board can support the work 

• GPs to refer into the Well To Do Pilot (ESA referral). 

• Put ‘weight’ behind ‘Workplace Wellbeing/Good Employer’ award; for example, a joint 

endorsement with Chamber of Commerce or Local Enterprise Partnership? 

• Actively participate in Local Enterprise Partnership Social Inclusion and Equalities 

Advisory Board and seek to influence investment regarding support funding  (ESIF) for  

employment of those with health conditions or disabilities.  

Page 43



4 

 

• Set target for the partners in terms of increasing employment outcomes (upper quartile 

by 2016?). 

• Actively participate in PSTN group to develop the devolution ask back to Government in 

terms of health and disability related employment provision. 

• Arrange further discussion by Health and Wellbeing Board representatives to develop 

the city’s approach – possibly develop a SCC/CCG shared/integrated Commissioning 

Strategy for Supported Employment to steer related commissioning intentions over next 

3-4 years. 

• Encourage (big?) employers to lead by example.  

  

 

 

 

 

Page 44



1 

 

 

 

 

 

Report of: Tim Furness, Director of Business Planning and Partnerships, NHS 

Sheffield CCG and Joe Fowler, Director of Commissioning, Sheffield 

City Council 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Date: 26 March 2015 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Subject:                    Update on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy’s Work 

Programmes 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report: A Good Start in Life: Bethan Plant 

 Building Mental Wellbeing and Emotional Resilience: Janet 

Southworth 

 Food and Physical Activity: Jess Wilson and Dawn Lockley 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:    

The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy has five work programmes which cover some 

cross-cutting themes of the Strategy. This paper provides a short update on three of the five 

work programmes: A Good Start in Life, Building Mental Wellbeing and Emotional 

Resilience, and Food and Physical Activity. The remaining two work programmes are 

covered elsewhere: Health, Disability and Employment is the subject of a wider discussion 

at the March 2015 Board meeting, while Supporting People At or Closer to Home is 

covered by the Board’s work to integrate health and social care, about which it receives 

regular updates. 

Recommendations: Health and Wellbeing Board members are invited to: 

� Support the progress made with each work programme. 

� Request another update on the work programmes in March 2016 if not before. 

 

Background Paper: Sheffield Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2013-18 –

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/caresupport/health/health-wellbeing-board/what-the-board-

does/joint-health-and-wellbeing-strategy.html.  

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

PAPER 

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



2 

 

A Good Start in Life Work Programme 

Update for the Health and Wellbeing Board March 2015  

 

• The Best Start Early Years’ Strategy consultation began week commencing 16 March 

for a 4 week period.  The draft document has already been changed and amended 

following contributions from managers and practitioners across a range of organisations 

including health, and children and families. It has also been presented at various 

boards, to primary heads and to elected members. Feedback is now being sought from 

a wider audience. Cabinet sign off of the final document is expected April 2015.  

• The strategy sets out 6 priority areas to achieve a progressive programme of universal 

and targeted interventions from pregnancy to end of Foundation Stage. It includes an 

Integrated Performance Outcomes Framework which identifies key indicators for 

measuring progress and impact on early years’ provision. This framework provides a 

means for delivery partners to agree joint accountability and identify where whole 

system approaches could achieve greater service improvement.   

• A delivery and governance structure is set out in the Best Start strategy describing 

partnership arrangements and how these will be used to influence and shape 

commissioning and delivery in line with strategic objectives.   

• The Best Start Delivery Board has been established to support implementation of the 6 

priority areas, and its role is to recommend on key decisions, advise on progress, 

highlight risks and issues and influence other strategies. It will be accountable for a 

range of workstreams including: Children’s Centres development, joint health early 

years 2 year assessment, quality improvement across the PVI sector and free early 

learning. The Delivery Board will be responsible for providing regular progress updates 

to the Children’s Health and Wellbeing Board. 

• The redesign of SCC early years’ services is progressing well with opportunities being 

identified at community level to integrate practice across settings and professions.  The 

delivery model uses evidence based approaches designed to target resources in the 

most deprived areas and on the most vulnerable families. 

• Since October 2014 meetings have been taking place with CCG, SCC, maternity and 

health visiting services colleagues to explore ways to improve integrated low level 

perinatal mental health services in Sheffield. A detailed care pathway is being 

developed (due to be completed June 2015), for treating mild to moderate mental ill-

health which focuses on community based assessment, referral and support 

arrangements. The pathway will be uploaded onto the GP portal and made accessible to 

other professionals and early years’ practitioners as a point of reference. A service user 

friendly version of the pathway is also being planned to improve understanding and 

awareness of the range of support available and how this can be accessed.  Other 

developments proposed include: 

o Discussions with IAPT about improving perinatal mental health support 

o Improving the menu of self help and community interventions available 

through Children’s Centres and Best Start teams to reduce isolation, improve 

confidence and self-esteem, and develop parenting skills including play, 

attachment and bonding. 

 

Page 46



3 

 

Building Mental Wellbeing and Emotional Resilience Work 

Programme 

Update for the Health and Wellbeing Board March 2015 

 

1. Introduction 

A working group was established in August 2014 to co-ordinate a plan for the delivery of a 

programme of work to help achieve the aims of the work programme 2. In terms of 

governance this group operates as a sub-group of the Mental Health Partnership Board and 

reports on progress there also.  

 

2. The working group 

The working group is led by Chris Nield, Consultant in Public Health within Communities 

SCC; it is supported by Janet Southworth, Health Improvement Principal. The membership 

of the group is still being developed; so far we have representation from the CCG – 

Partnerships, Commissioning and GP lead, from the City Council - member lead for Mental 

Health, CYPF Public Health, Mental Health Commissioning and Safer and Sustainable 

Communities, from the Voluntary Sector.  

 

3. Progress and next steps 

The group has now met 3 times, and is close to agreement on a draft plan. The remit is 

challenging, as often ideas drift towards the agenda of treating illness, or early intervention, 

we aim to keep a focus on a primary preventative and holistic approach.  

Emotional wellbeing is influenced by an extremely broad range of factors, and this 

programme does not attempt to capture all of the possible related actions. The task would 

be impossible. We will focus on continuing support for some actions currently underway, 

and some development priorities that are achievable. We want to keep growing and 

developing the plan. 

The plan has benefitted from the previous work to develop an emotional wellbeing strategy.  

(in line with a forthcoming framework for mental health and wellbeing from Public Health 

England). The plan is grouped around key themes.  

1. Wellbeing for All (universal approaches) - Mental Health and Wellbeing Literacy. 

2. Improving equality (targeted interventions) and Empowering Communities. 

3. Children and Young people - linked to the work of the Children’s Health and WB 

Board. 

4. Working Life and Employment - Link to work programme on Health, Disability and 

Employment. 

This image cannot currently be displayed.

Page 47



4 

 

5. Suicide Prevention – local city wide group to be developed. 

 

Most of the key actions for this work programme will be developed around themes 1 and 2, 

but important linkages and key opportunities to support work led by other groups under the 

other themes are also noted. A key theme of 5 Ways to Wellbeing (GIVE; BE ACTIVE; 

KEEP LEARNING; TAKE NOTICE; CONNECT), an evidence based approach to improving 

individual wellbeing, runs throughout. 

 

4. Work underway - some examples 

• Developing the public health role of front line workers, including their understanding of 

the 5 Ways to Wellbeing. 

• Delivery and growth of Mental Health First Aid training - a collaboration between SCC, 

SHSC, Hallam University and Voluntary Sector. 

• Relaunch and promotion of Mental Health Information service and web site. 

• Develop links with the Community Learning Sector to normalise learning about 

emotional wellbeing. 

 

 

5. Support from the Board; the ‘narrative’ around emotional wellbeing  

Improved mental wellbeing is associated with better physical and mental health, reduced 

inequalities, improved social relationships and healthier lifestyles. It can help people 

achieve their potential, realise ambitions, cope with adversity, work productively and 

contribute to their community and society. 

The foundations of mental wellbeing develop in early childhood, and multiple social, 

psychological, health, material and situational factors determine a person’s mental health 

and wellbeing at any point in time. Risk, vulnerability and protective factors all impact on 

mental wellbeing, but they are not the whole picture, we can all act to improve our mental 

wellbeing too - hence the 5 Ways to Wellbeing. There is strong evidence that investment in 

the protection and promotion of mental wellbeing improves quality of life, life expectancy, 

educational achievement, productivity and economic outcomes, and reduces violence, 

antisocial behaviour and crime.  

An important element of this programme is this ‘narrative’ around emotional and mental 

wellbeing. Support from the Board in promoting the importance of this upstream 

approach alongside the key aim to ‘get it right’ for children, at both a strategic and 

operational level, is essential.  

Emotional wellbeing is a valuable resource for individuals, communities and the City as a 

whole. Its strategic significance needs to be better understood. The Board is asked to 

adopt and promote this narrative. 

 
 

 

Page 48



5 

 

Food and Physical Activity Work Programme 

Update for the Health and Wellbeing Board March 2015 

 

1. Food 

The Sheffield Food Strategy was approved by cabinet in June 2014 and year one of the 

implementation plan is almost complete. The implementation plan for 2015/16 is currently 

under review.  Progress in 14/15 included: 

• Short term financial support has been identified for a number of schemes to alleviate 

food poverty.   

• Considerable work has taken place to increase Free School Meal uptake within the 125 

schools in the SCC catering contract.  

• All Infant and Primary schools with infant departments are now providing universal free 

school meals to KS 1 pupils from September 2014 and each school is now being 

assessed to ensure they are able to manage this increase in meals. 

• Community development work around food and eating well has begun in 4 

neighbourhoods - Arbourthorne, Acres Hill, New Parsons Cross and Gleadless Valley. 

Local people and stakeholders have been consulted and local partners are now 

developing locally owned food plans. 

• Classes to teach cooking skills have been delivered across the city and have targeted 

groups and areas who are least likely to access a healthy diet. 

• The Start Well Sheffield Early Years’ Healthy weight Service began in October 2014 

working with early years settings to achieve the Healthy Early Years Award,  providing 

new tools and training for professionals that work with families and providing the Health 

Exercise and Nutrition for the Really Young programme to parents and carers across 

Sheffield. 

• Environmental Health are about to commence an initiative testing elements of the 

“Takeaways Toolkit” with a number of fast food businesses. 

Many partner and community organisations are also engaged in supporting all aspects of 

the Food Strategy.  Here are a few examples: 

• WRAP have launched a Love Food Hate Waste campaign in Sheffield.  

• A number of local organisations (Heeley City Farm, Sage Greenfingers, ShipShape, 

Regather to name but a few) are involved in work that promotes local food, food growing 

and community engagement. 

• The student union led ‘Sheffield on a Plate’ project has engaged many student 

volunteers in their work which included delivering a ‘Big Stew’ event to raise awareness 

of healthy eating, food waste, and food poverty. 

 

2. Physical Activity 

Progress has been made in implementing some areas of the Move More Plan.  However, 

more financial resources are required if we are to fully realise the ambition within the Plan. 

Page 49



6 

 

Empowered Communities: 

• The Community Advisory Panel is working on the developing the Move More 

ambassador programme. 

• The Move More network continues to grow and currently consists of approximately 200 

well-connected people. 

• An online survey is being designed to evaluate the impact of the initial wave of Asset 

Based Community Development (ABCD) training to identify if it has changed practice 

and identify the support people need to be able to implement ABCD work. 

• £10,000 has been allocated by SCC and is governed by the Move More Community 

Advisory panel to fund community projects enabling them to lift the barriers to physical 

activity. Funds are being distributed in pots of £300. The funding panel have currently 

received 25 applications to date. 

 

Active Environments: 

• A Get Sheffield Cycling group has been established which will drive forward cycling 

opportunities and communication about what is available 

• The first anniversary of Tour de France will see a weekend of cycling activity including a 

school event on Friday 3rd July; Jenkin Hill Climb for local people and professional 

cyclists on Saturday 4th July; Sky Ride mass participation event on closed Sheffield 

roads on Sunday 5th July.  

• Work is progressing on 20 mph zones and further work is planned to implement the 

restriction in additional areas of Sheffield 

• Work is progressing within Sheffield City Council to develop a Playing Out Strategy for 

the city. 

• A “routes to physical activity” section has been created for the Move More website 

(linked in in with SCC website) under the banner of Active Travel that covers walking, 

running and cycling maps, apps, trackers, planners and challenges. This was launched 

on the 30th January 2015. 

 

Active People and Families: 

• 108 JC Decaux Boards displayed Move More and cycling messages for 2 weeks in 

February. The capital programmes at Concord, Graves and North Active are 

progressing well. 

 

Physical Activity as Medicine: 

• The building work at Concord has now been completed (this is part of the National 

Centre for Sport and Exercise Medicine (NCSEM) programme).  There is a strong mix of 

clinical activity planned. 

• Discussions have also begun regarding research programmes that will operate from 

Concord and we already have agreements in place for a Prostate Cancer Trial and are 

exploring Exercise and Stroke currently. 

• Graves and North Active have been given the go ahead from City Council planning and 

build contractors are in place. Both venues are due to open in the Spring of 2016. Page 50



7 

 

Active Schools and Active Pupils: 

• SHU have opened up Woodbourne Road athletics stadium and are exploring the 

feasibility of attracting schools and community groups to use the facilities with the added 

incentive of innovative technology. 

• 36 satellite clubs currently planned or active across Sheffield, working primarily (but not 

exclusively) with 11 to 18 year olds.  

• Aspiration to have a club on every secondary school and college site by 2016. 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Report of: Jayne Ludlam, Executive Director, Children, Young People and 

Families, Sheffield City Council 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:    26 March 2015 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Subject: Response and progress update from the Health and Wellbeing 

Board to its Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health 

Engagement Event with Chilypep, Sheffield Futures and Young 

Healthwatch in November 2014 

 Including CAMHS Scrutiny response and update on progress 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Bethan Plant, 0114 293 0133 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

This paper provides a brief account of progress to date and a response to how those issues 

identified by the young people who facilitated the emotional wellbeing and mental health 

engagement event in November are being addressed. 

This outline is to be approved by the Board and shared with the organisations and young 

people who led and participated in the engagement event. 

In addition appended to the paper is an update for the Board on progress on actions and 

service redesign following recommendations made via the CAMHS scrutiny process. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendations:  

• Agreement from the Board to agenda a further review on progress and implementation 

during early summer 2015. 

• To note actions and service redesign being taken forward as an outcome of the CAMHS 

Scrutiny process. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

Agenda Item 7

Page 53



 

2 
 

Response and progress update from the Health and Wellbeing Board to 

its Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Engagement Event with 

Chilypep, Sheffield Futures and Young Healthwatch in November 2014 

 

1.0 SUMMARY 

Health and Wellbeing Board members were impressed with the commitment, honesty and 

passion shown by the young people who facilitated the Emotional Wellbeing and Mental 

Health (EWBMH) engagement event in November 2014. The accounts and experiences 

which the young people shared emphasised the need for the Health and Wellbeing Board 

to continue to prioritise Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health so as to ensure improved 

outcomes and experiences for those young people using mental health services. A one-

page summary from the event was published on the Board’s website.1 

 

2.0 ACCOUNT OF PROGRESS TO DATE  

This gives a brief account of progress to date and a response to how those issues identified 

by the young people are being addressed. As a result of the issues the young people raised 

a new Emotional Health and Wellbeing Executive Group has been established. This group 

will be jointly chaired by Sheffield City Council and NHS Sheffield CCG to provide a 

partnership focus to all actions that will impact on the delivery of EWBMH. The Executive 

Group will oversee the delivery and implementation of a new EWBMH Action Plan which is 

addressing the following priorities: 

 

Positive mental health and resilience including early intervention and prevention 

• The young people consistently identified the gap in addressing EWBMH in school & 

youth settings and supporting children and young people to develop resilience in 

schools. There was acknowledgement that there continues to be a strong focus on 

attainment and achievement in school settings and in some cases a loss of the wider 

pastoral support to address emotional wellbeing and mental health needs. As a result a 

commitment is given through the delivery of high quality Personal and Social Health 

Education (PSHE) to support schools to deliver a robust EWBMH offer. The EWBMH 

school toolkit will be refreshed and new lesson plans and resources developed ready for 

implementation in September 2015. Through the Citywide Learning Body schools will be 

asked to consistently deliver EWBMH input through the PSHE curriculum and using the 

new toolkit and material provided. 

• Young people commented that they ‘want someone to help’, someone who they can 

turn to for information and support with low level mental health issues (e.g. family 

breakdown, exam pressure etc.) A new primary mental health intervention will be piloted 

and further tested in 3 families of schools using a school based ‘hub’ model. This is to 

expand and build on the pilot delivered at Park Academy in 2014 and will help all 

partners including Sheffield City Council, NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 
                                            
1
 See https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/caresupport/health/health-wellbeing-board/what-the-board-

does/events/engagementevent.html.  
Page 54



 

3 
 

and schools to make the right decisions about investments for young people’s services 

in the future. The new service is currently being mobilised and will be operational from 

April 2015. The providers Interchange and Family Action will deliver the Emotional 

Health & Wellbeing Service through Community Youth Teams and schools offering 

counselling, signposting and a whole school approach to support settings to provide 

help, advocate for young people and improve their resilience and emotional wellbeing. 

• The evaluation and outcomes of the service offered across the three families of schools 

will contribute towards the development of a business case focusing on improving 

accessibility, pathways and the potential redesign of EWBMH provision. This business 

case will be presented to the Children’s Trust Executive Board (CTEB) in the future. 

 

Young People Approaching Adulthood 

•  The new Executive Group will include a work stream focusing specifically on provision 

for 16-18 year olds. Its focus will be to ensure appropriate support for young people 

already engaged in specialist services, the development of a clear Pathway and ‘step 

down’ for those young people transitioning out of specialist provision. The current 

extension of CAMHS from 16 to 18 years will be evaluated to review the delivery model 

and experiences of young people aged 16+ using CAMHS services. 

 

Development of community based support (Tier 3.5) 

• Working with NHS Sheffield CCG the development of community based support as an 

alternative to hospital care is being explored so as to offer improved local community 

mental health services. This is in response to recognising that inpatient provision isn’t 

always most appropriate or necessarily best tailored to young people’s needs.  

 

Services for Vulnerable C&YP 

• In most instances the best place for children and young people experiencing severe 

mental health problems is to remain in Sheffield and close to home. The priority is to 

support the needs of vulnerable children and young people (particularly Children in 

Care) and reduce the number of children and young people who are placed out of city 

for their care. 

 

Engagement and Participation 

• The Board engagement event highlighted how powerful and important the views of 

children, young people and families are. The Executive Group is committed to hearing 

the voice of children and young people through using existing engagement structures. 

The engagement work led by the executive group will look to implement a new EWBMH 

local campaign. This will provide positive stories from young people and be used in 

schools and youth settings to reduce stigma, dispel myths and improve communication 

regarding EWBMH. This group will also continue to ensure the role of the ‘Young 

Commissioners’ in the development of EWBMH service provision. The young 

commissioners played an essential role in the recent commissioning of the EWBMH 

Service (described earlier) having active involvement in the procurement process, 

interviewing potential providers, informing the service model and selecting Interchange 

and Family Action as our preferred providers. 

 

 
Page 55



 

4 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is committed to continue to prioritise EWMB. The young 

people involved in the engagement event from Chilypep, Sheffield Futures and Young 

Healthwatch are invited to ask for regular updates, get involved or challenge progress.   

 

 

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

• Agreement from the Board to agenda a further review on progress and implementation 

during early summer 2015. 

• To note actions and service redesign being taken forward as an outcome of the CAMHS 

Scrutiny process. 

Page 56



 

 

DRAFT Page 1 

 

Health & Wellbeing Board – Thursday 26
th

 March 2015 - CAMHS Scrutiny Update 

A sub group of the Healthier Communities & Adult Social Care Scrutiny & Policy Development Committee convened a Child and 

Adolescent Mental Health Working Group to review emotional wellbeing and mental health provision. This group developed a 

number of service principles which required Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), Sheffield Children’s NHS Foundation 

Trust and Sheffield City Council to work together to redesign and implement service changes in order to improve the provision of 

emotional wellbeing and mental health services for children, young people and families.  

The following template provides an update on progress against the service principles identified. The newly established Emotional 

Wellbeing and Mental Health Executive Group has oversight of implementation of the Scrutiny Board recommendations and reports 

back progress. 

 

  

P
age 57



 

 

DRAFT Page 2 

 

 

10 Principles for the Service 

recommended via Scrutiny 

Update on Progress 

� The Pathway   

1 Communication - is key at all stages of the 

process, this includes information on 

waiting times/ interim support /outcomes 

and reasons for case closure. 

 

There is potential to develop an e-portal site which would host information on emotional wellbeing, as well 
as have links to training & development  This will include referrals forms, exemplar referral forms, 
checklists to guide people’s decision regarding what to do next and how to access provision. It would also 
host self-help guides to support step down from specialist care.  
 

The local authority and partner agencies has included the CAMHS provision in the local offer for children 
and young people with special educational needs, this is the place where information about provision is 
available, the local offer has been coproduced with families. 
 
The Specialist NHS CAMH Service agree it would be useful to include waiting time information in their 
acknowledgment letter to families and are instigating this change. 
 

Specialist NHS CAMHS offer access to their consultation line for accepted referrals as well as routinely 
offering information about self-help and other resources where appropriate. 
 
For specialist NHS CAMHS, cases are closed with agreement and understanding of the family. The 
referrer is always informed about the outcome of a case and the reason for closing the case. 
 
The Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health pilot at Sheffield Park Academy last year included a pilot 

CAMHS step up and step down element i.e. support whilst on waiting list and following discharge 

(involving Primary Mental Health Worker in development of this).  This is in response to the Emotional 

Wellbeing service* consultation held in OCT 2013. 

 

2 Clear information – should be produced to 

outline the services available and the 

referral routes. This needs to be accessible 

to both those making referrals and those 

who access services (see point 10 co-

production).  

Specialist NHS CAMHS have a referral document for referrers and professionals. 
 
All specialist CAMHS teams have team leaflets but we agree that these should be more accessible to 
families. New leaflets are currently being produced with service users and which will be available this year 
- in written form and also on the Sheffield Children’s website. 
 

P
age 58



 

 

DRAFT Page 3 

 

3 Family assessment and confidentiality- 

where possible, a family assessment 

should be offered to ensure a more holistic 

approach (this is not always possible as 

some young people will request 

confidentiality).  There also needs to be a 

clear route for parents to pass on 

information confidentially throughout the 

process 

The Specialist NHS CAMHS normal procedure is for a family based assessment with 
opportunity – as appropriate – for the young person or/and parents to be seen separately. In most cases, 
especially where the young person is older there will be a separate meeting for the young person.  
 
Specialist CAMHS provide parents/carers with information before they engage with the service and 
parents /carers are often offered their own appointment for a confidential meeting. 
 

4 Role of the GP– GP referral notes should 

be transferred onto the Assessor and 

should be fully used as part of the 

assessment process.  Communication 

channels between the GP and the Assessor 

should remain open.  

 

Sheffield is one of 10 sites in England chosen for a GP Champion project, funded by the Department of 
Health and run by the Association for Young People's Health, Youth Access and RCGP. The 3 year 
project aims to bridge the gap between GPs and the voluntary youth sector and to “implement an 
innovative model for transforming the way public health services are delivered to young people, thereby 
improving their health outcomes". The Sheffield project, led by Interchange/Right Here working in 
partnership with Pitsmoor Medical Centre, focuses upon emotional wellbeing and mental health of young 
people.  
 
In Specialist CAMHS, referral information is always available and is used for the initial assessment. No 
referral can proceed without this but it is also extremely important that the professional undertaking the 
initial assessment hears the family’s concerns in their own words. It will, however, be helpful to ensure that 
families understand this. 
 

5 Transitions - there needs to be early 

preparation for those transitioning out of a 

service and clarity in terms of next steps.  

 

There is an agreement that transition arrangements need to improve and following Scrutiny this issue will 
be looked at in more detail and reported back in the future.    
 

This is a national problem and Sheffield’s specialist NHS CAMHS agree that this is an area of need and 
difficulty in Sheffield which, although good for a small number, needs to improve.  CAMHS and the adult 
mental health service have been working to improve transitions and a number of events have been held or 
will be held this year, including contributions from service users. 
 
 

 

6 Services for those aged 16-25 - there 

should be a specially commissioned young 

NHSS Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS CAMHS and Sheffield City Council are committed to working 
with their partners in adult mental health to achieve better transition and improve services. Some services 
within CAMHS are already provided up to age 18 for specific groups of children.   

P
age 59



 

 

DRAFT Page 4 

 

adult’s service for those aged 16-25, 

consideration should be given to having this 

as a community based service.  

 

 
The CAMHS service has now been extended and is mobilised up to 18 years. This provision is being 
evaluated and impacts/outcomes monitored. 
 

7 Single point of referral - there should be a 
single point of referral and standardised 
referral documentation, this process should 
assess the person and determine which 
pathway they go onto.  

There has to be an acknowledgement that for certain groups of vulnerable children there is a necessity to 
have different referral process as some young people do not present to services  in the traditional way 
(e.g. via Youth Offending Service, children with disabilities). 
 
There is a single point of referral with a single referral document for specialist NHS CAMHS which is co-
ordinated with the CAMHS element of the MAST service. This is available electronically for all GP’s and 
provides a simple, straightforward referral and service pathway.  
 

Confidentiality is a key issue for families who, quite rightly do not want their confidential details widely 
distributed without their consent. This applies to both Multi Agency Support Teams (MAST) and Specialist 
NHS referrals. Unfortunately, not all referrers are using the standard document which means that for 
confidentiality reasons some referrals which might benefit from the simple pathway we have devised 
cannot be processed as simply as we would like. Work is underway to address this and to ensure 
consistency in how referrals are completed. 
 

Given the volumes involved (as well as the confidentiality issues), it is not practical to have one access 
point for specialist NHS CAMHS and MAST. (MAST receives a very large number of non-mental health 
referrals and most referrals to Specialist CAMHS are entirely appropriate). 

8 Improving Access to Psychological 
Therapies (IAPT) - consideration should be 
given to developing an IAPT service for 
young people.  
 

CYP-IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological Therapy) for Young People is now available although it 
should be noted that CYP-IAPT is a different concept in comparison with IAPT for adults, which is a 
separate service.  
 

Sheffield is part of the national CYP-IAPT programme whose approach is to change or transform the way 
that CAMHS works – to ensure that we use the best possible evidence in our therapies and involve 
service users and carers. 
 

� Raising awareness amongst young 

people, effective signposting and 

involvement  

 

9 Role of Schools - The role of Schools There are important measures to improve access to emotional wellbeing and mental health support 

P
age 60



 

 

DRAFT Page 5 

 

needs to be increased to improve 

communication with young people and aid 

an early intervention / prevention approach.  

Schools need to consistently promote the 

services that are available i.e. through the 

School email services / intranet, and should 

have staff with the knowledge/skills to make 

referrals.  

through schools. 
 
An Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health school pilot was completed in 2014 to help test and define a 
model for Emotional Wellbeing provision and staff support in school. The pilot was offered to schools and 
through a selection process focusing on need and those schools best placed to undertake the pilot one 
secondary school selected. The pilot was delivered by Family Action (Targeted Mental Health in Schools) 
and Interchange Sheffield CIC at Sheffield Park Academy.  This pilot has informed future services to 
support children and young people’s emotional wellbeing and mental health. To further test the model 
funding has been identified to expand the pilot to 3 families of schools during 2015. It will be externally 
evaluated and its impact on referrals to specialist services analysed.  
 
There is a Personal Social Health Education Review underway which includes an emphasis on EWBM. 
There has also been a You’re Welcome* inspection of CAMHS completed to identify appropriateness of 
young person friendly service.  
 
*You’re Welcome are national standards to benchmark service delivery. It is implemented through young 

people ‘inspecting’ provision and service managers self-validating the views and outcomes of the service 

against national indicators/standards. The feedback from the young people is used to improve service 

provision and comparisons are made with the views of staff and service managers. 

 

 

10 Co-production - young people who access 

the service and their carers need to be 

involved designing the service, including 

producing communication materials and 

performance monitoring criteria.  

Work is currently happening in SCC with support of clinical and VCF partners to define a good practice 

model for involving young people in planning, commissioning and delivery of services – using the new 

Emotional Wellbeing Service and other service provision as a working example. 

Specialist NHS CAMHS agree that there are many benefits of participation for service users, for parents 
and carers and for the organisation. This approach is very much part of the service’s ambitions – we have 
used feedback surveys and focus groups extensively over the years as well as involving service users and 
carers in recruitment. This approach is also integral to the CYP-IAPT programme and we will be further 
developing our co-production with service users and families.  We will also be continuing our work with 
STAMP and other service user and parent/carer groups, for example, in our project to produce new 
leaflets. 
 

P
age 61



 

 

DRAFT Page 6 

 

 

 Other Areas for Further Discussion  

11 Weighting of funding for the services 

across the 4 tiers - funding is currently 

more heavily weighted towards tier 4, does 

this clearly reflect need in the City? And 

does it support the early intervention / 

prevention approach that is required?  

 

Consideration is being given to how the Public Health Grant can support early intervention and prevention 
alongside existing activities such as MAST (Multi-agency support teams). 

 
Work is currently being undertaken to define an early intervention and prevention model for CYP EWB& 
MH in school as outlined in point 9.  This is being informed by a Health Needs Assessment, stakeholder 
consultation, pilot programmes and good practice examples.  The Health Needs Assessment has been 
completed and has included collecting all appropriate data to determine the needs and changes in 
emotional well being and mental health for young people across the city. It has looked at prevalence, risk 
factors and the evidence base for interventions which are effective. This information will influence any 
future service redesign and changes in provision. 

 
Interventions at Tier 4 reflect high cost of intervention and demand for service. Further information is 
required and potentially further analysis to better understand this issue. CCG will take findings of review 
and consider response. 

 
NHS England is the specialist commissioner for Tier 4 services so the interface between local 
commissioners and NHS England is important. NHS England are currently reviewing tier 4 provision due 
to rises in admissions. 

 
Specialist CAMHS intervention with serious mental health problems is an essential early intervention for 
the mental health of adults.  Most adult mental health disorders can be traced to a start before age 18. 
Collectively, we need to ensure that children and young people with greatest need get a good, effective 
service which they can access readily. 

 
Sheffield Children’s NHS CAMHS provide both the local specialist community service as well as the in-

patient (‘Tier 4’) service.  

12 Understanding and co-ordination - There 

appears to be a lack of understanding and 

co-ordination between the full range of 

services available i.e. mainstream, 

voluntary and community sector and those 

Providers collectively agree that as an outcome of Scrutiny this is an area for further consideration and 
future work. 

 
SCC corporate training provides training to Residential workers on Emotional wellbeing for Looked after 
children.  

 

P
age 62



 

 

DRAFT Page 7 

 

commissioned separately e.g. by 

Community Youth Teams – can you tell us 

what’s being done to address this?  

 

Community Youth Teams (CYTs). CYTs provide support to vulnerable young people and may identify 
young people with emotional wellbeing and mental health difficulties. The referral pathway and access to 
Primary Mental Health workers, particularly for CYT’s is to be considered and clarified and where relevant 
further training offered. 
 
A number of services are currently being redesigned including the development of the  Integrated Sexual 
Health Services (ISHS) and the Sheffield School Nursing Service. As part of the service design process 
clear thought will be given to ensure appropriate pathways are developed and an EWMH early 
intervention/prevention pathway is available so as organisations both statutory and voluntary are clear 
how to refer and signpost children and young people to access support. 
 
Within specialist NHS CAMHS there is a high level of co-ordination across teams and with in-patient care.   

 
The main agencies and services concerned with children’s mental health, GP’s, specialist CAMHS and the 
Sheffield City Council’s MAST teams have also achieved a much better level of understanding and co-
ordination by working together.  This is being carried forward as part of the CYP-IAPT programme - 
although it is acknowledged there is still more to do. 

 
This level of co-ordination is more difficult with schools which are all separate entities. (There are very 
many more schools in Sheffield than there are specialist NHS CAMHS staff).   

 
Where services are separately funded and established this can lead to poor co-ordination or confusion – 
particularly where these projects have a mental health aspect which is not built into the provision in the 
planning stage. 

 
For specialist CAMHS, co-ordination can be a crucial part of what we do, especially for looked after 
children, children in need, children in trouble with the law, and those with severe learning disabilities.  
These referrals will start with a meeting designed to aid understanding and co-ordination’. 

 
Specialist CAMHS also provides extensive training for agencies across the city to help them understand 
mental health problems, specialist CAMHS and how to access these and co-ordinate their contribution 
including with other mental health services, including MAST. Over 200 staff across all agencies including 
the voluntary sector attended this training last year 

 
A range of more specialist training is also offered across agencies, for professionals and, for example with 
adoptive and foster carers. Over 300 staff including 68 foster-carers attended CAMHS training last year.  
Specialist training has also included infant mental health and theraplay. 

P
age 63



 

 

DRAFT Page 8 

 

13 Ryegate – can you give clarification in 

terms of the pathway for Ryegate patients 

to CAMHS? 

 

Commissioners are starting to look at Pathways. NHS England is the lead specialist commissioner and  
this organisation has a key interface with Ryegate. Local commissioners are only at present working to a 
draft specification for children with complex problems to work to from NHS England and are awaiting 
further national guidance regarding improving pathways for families. This will help inform further work at 
Ryegate. 
 
Ryegate and CAMHS do address different patient groups with Ryegate specialising in developmental and 
neuro-disability problems, including children with severe disabilities and autistic spectrum disorders.  
 
A small number of Ryegate patients may have additional, serious mental health needs which require 
referral to CAMHS. These will often have severe learning disabilities and a serious mental health disorder 
or very challenging behaviour. 
 
Where a referral to CAMHS involves developmental problems or severe learning disabilities it may be re-
directed to Ryegate or to a community Paediatrician but this is uncommon as most referrers are aware of 
this. 
 
However, these pathways can be better defined and streamlined and the Service intends to examine this. 
  

14 Performance monitoring – the current 

framework was criticised for focusing on 

process and not outcomes - does this need 

revising?  

 

Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group as the commissioners of specialist NHS CAMHS pay keen 

attention to the performance of the service. This relies on a full range of performance information including 

both key process and outcome information such as how referrals are handled, how long people wait to 

access the service and how long they spend in it. 

The commissioners have also built into the service specification a requirement to use outcome monitoring 

and there is a move to commission for outcomes more. However, this is a complex area with the 

’outcomes’ being very different depending on the ‘problem’, (for example, depression, autistic spectrum 

disorder,  psychosis etc.) or the patient (their age, looked after child status, whether the service user is the 

young person or parent/carer etc.).  

The national CAMHS Outcomes Research Consortium (CORC) of which Sheffield has been a member 

from the outset in 2004 has focussed on ensuring that outcome monitoring is a feature of services and is 

used to improve them. However, outcome measures are difficult to monitor and to identify outcomes which 

can be effectively measured, CORC caution against simplistic approaches and league tables, 

P
age 64



 

 

DRAFT Page 9 

 

recommending that the outcome monitoring comes from a variety of sources. 

Nonetheless, Sheffield specialist NHS CAMHS and MAST use outcomes extensively to inform service 

provision and improvement. 

A major plank of the CYP-IAPT initiative of which Sheffield is a participant includes a requirement to use 

outcome measures.  Sheffield is unique in being a partnership between the NHS specialist service and the 

Local Authority – both of whom use outcome measures already. The draft standards which Sheffield is 

contributing to, suggest that 90% of service users should have contributed outcome measures and that 

these are actively used to support improvement in practice. 

Nationally there is a focus to move towards mental health commissioning for outcomes. Both 

commissioners and services very much agree with this approach. 

15 Emergency situations – does 

consideration need to be given to how the 

service responds in an emergency 

situation?  

 

Specialist NHS CAMHS is responsible for all mental health emergencies relating to under 16’s.  For all 
these cases the primary access route is through Sheffield Children’s Hospital Accident & Emergency 
Department.  All emergency admissions are initially triaged by the A&E team and followed up as required 
by specialist assessment by a dedicated rota of CAMHS specialist and consultant child & adolescent 
psychiatrists.  Where required, children will be admitted to a hospital ward for further assessment and 
intervention. Where indicated, specialist mental health in-patient care is sought and provided. This service 
is in place 24/7 throughout the year.  
 
In 2013 165 young people under 16 years were seen for specialist mental health follow-up having 
presented at A&E. This represents a 100% increase over a three year period. 

16 Advocacy and support – availability of 

advocacy and support for patients and 

carers – is there scope for a commissioned 

advocacy service? And if so could it be 

involved in the performance monitoring?  

 

There already are a range of ways in which we ensure effective advocacy for children and young people 
who access services. However, there is potential for development via early intervention/primary prevention 
work. This is an area that will be considered further and investigated. 
 
We would need to consider evidence base and need. If there is a specific need then this will have to 
considered against other competing priorities. The model of advocacy is important and potentially 
something which could be supported by work outside of clinical providers. 
 

17 Waiting Times –   

 

 

The NHS CAMHS service has worked with Sheffield CCG to introduce a new service model and re-
organise the Service in order to impact on waiting times and to improve efficiency. This work has 
successfully reduced the waiting times. 

P
age 65



 

 

DRAFT Page 10 

 

 
However, despite the efficiency gains made, referrals have continued to increase in number. Whilst we are 
looking at ways to address the parity of esteem issues, this is likely to represent a slow move of resources 
over time in order not to destabilise other services and to also ensure that this is done where investment in 
mental health improves outcomes overall. The use of outcome measures aims to improve effectiveness 
which will allow better use of resources, and by having bimonthly performance meeting that have both 
clinical and managerial input, we are in a position to identify and find solutions to significant problems that 
might arise in addition to informing how the service develops.   
 
At the time that the Scrutiny Committee launched its report some two years ago, the waiting lists for 
specialist NHS CAMHS were unacceptably long. This was a difficult time for CAMHS, the City and for 
children and parents following the impact of the economic downturn, significant cuts in specialist NHS 
CAMHS and the need to re-organise the Service.  The Service consequently introduced a new service 
model and successfully reduced the waiting times with additional temporary funding from Sheffield CCG. 
 
In April 2012 there were 527 referrals waiting with an average (median wait) of 22 weeks. 
 
In April 2013 this had been reduced to just 102 referrals waiting with a median wait of only 5 weeks. 
 
However, although specialist CAMHS completed 11% more appointments since April 2013 (despite having 
lost the temporary staff), referrals have risen by 34% in the same period and the number waiting at 
December 2013 has risen to 212 waiting for 10 weeks as a median average.  
 
Specialist CAMHS continues to work closely with commissioners, GPs and the MAST teams but both 
services are under increasing pressure.  
 
Families who have been referred to specialist NHS CAMHS and, having been accepted, are waiting for a 
service are offered support through a consultation phone line and self-help advice if appropriate.  Families 
are also asked to contact the service if their circumstances change which will also lead to re-prioritising if 
appropriate.  
 

 

P
age 66



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report of: Tim Furness, Director of Business Planning and Partnerships, 

NHS Sheffield CCG and Joe Fowler, Director of Commissioning, 

Sheffield City Council 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:    26th March 2015 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Subject: Health and Wellbeing Plans for Sheffield in 2015/16:  

Plans from Sheffield City Council and NHS Sheffield Clinical 

Commissioning Group 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Louisa Willoughby, 0114 205 7143 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board exists to bring together the many elements of the 

health and wellbeing system in Sheffield and provide a joint strategy and structure for 

making decisions that benefit the health and wellbeing of Sheffield people. The Board is 

built on positive and fruitful relationships and partnership between the organisations that 

commission health and wellbeing services across the city. This paper presents the 

commissioning plans for the partners for consideration by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Questions for the Health and Wellbeing Board: 

• Does the Health and Wellbeing Board support the priorities proposed by the 

commissioning organisations? 

• Are there areas for greater joint working between the organisations on the Health and 

Wellbeing Board (and others) in 2015/16? 

• What role is there for Healthwatch Sheffield over the coming year in assisting with the 

implementation of these plans? 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

Agenda Item 8

Page 67



2 
 

Recommendations for the Health and Wellbeing Board: 

• That the Board supports and endorses the commissioning plans set out in this 

document. 

• That Board members and the Board’s organisations commit to working together in an 

integrated way over the coming year. 

   

 

Page 68



3 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING PLANS FOR SHEFFIELD IN 2015/16: PLANS 

FROM SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL AND NHS SHEFFIELD CLINICAL 

COMMISSIONING GROUP 

 

1.0 SUMMARY 

Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board exists to bring together the many elements of the 

health and wellbeing system in Sheffield and provide a joint strategy and structure for 

making decisions that benefit the health and wellbeing of Sheffield people. The Board is 

built on positive and fruitful relationships and partnership between the organisations that 

commission health and wellbeing services across the city. This paper presents the 

commissioning plans for the partners for consideration by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 

2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE? 

The Health and Wellbeing Board’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy recognises that 

good health and wellbeing is a matter for every service area, and that people are healthy 

and well not just because of the health and social care they receive, but also because of the 

nature of the housing, environment, communities, amenities, activities and economy 

surrounding them. The Board’s Strategy focuses therefore not just on specific interventions 

to improve health and social care, but also on the ‘wider determinants’ of health. This 

means that the Health and Wellbeing Board aims for all Sheffield people to be positively 

affected by its plans to improve health and wellbeing in Sheffield.  

Of course, the Health and Wellbeing Board cannot prevent all sickness and ill health, but 

this paper sets out plans to best support and maintain Sheffield peoples’ health and 

wellbeing in 2015/16. The plans of the organisations which make up the Health and 

Wellbeing Board also have a preventative focus, working to delay people’s need for long 

term help, care and support. 

In creating its Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Health and Wellbeing Board was 

careful to engage closely with Sheffield people and service users, providers and members 

of the public. The Board can be confident that its Strategy, and therefore its plans, reflect 

the needs and concerns of Sheffield people. Services will work together with Sheffield 

people to design and deliver services which best meet the needs of an individual. 

 

3.0 A REVIEW OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD IN 2014/15 

2014/15 was an effective year for the Health and Wellbeing Board in which: 

� The Board’s work on the integration of health and social care continued with the 

submission of a £250m Better Care Fund and the establishment of a programme of 

integrated commissioning. 

� The Board oversaw the performance of its Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy through 

quarterly updates, and received updates from each of the Strategy’s work programmes 
Page 69



4 
 

with a particular focus on Health, Disability and Employment. The Board also made sure 

the city was prepared to meet the requirements of the Care Act and the Children and 

Families Act. 

� The Board approved the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, a Mental Health Strategy, 

and the Health Inequalities Action Plan. 

� Behind the scenes, the Board agreed a protocol for working with the city’s safeguarding 

boards, discussed the tricky issue of progression from child to adult services, and 

considered key issues facing primary care. 

� The Board held popular engagement events with Sheffield people and providers, 

covering health inequalities, mental health, children and young people’s mental and 

emotional health and wellbeing, healthcare technology business, and health and 

wellbeing system challenges. The Board also continued to communicate about its work 

through regular enewsletters and publishing meeting papers and presentations. 

 

4.0 THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD’S SPECIFIC PRIORITIES FOR 2015/16 

The Health and Wellbeing Board’s priorities are covered by five themes: 

1. Integrating health and social care. 

2. Tackling health inequalities. 

3. Monitoring the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

4. Overseeing the plans of the organisations on the Board. 

5. Influencing and involving others. 

These priorities are all long term, ongoing commitments and it is proposed that the Health 

and Wellbeing Board confirms that these remain its priorities for 2015/16. 

 

4.1 Integrating health and social care  

The Health and Wellbeing Board receives regular updates on the establishment of 

integrated commissioning arrangements between Sheffield City Council and NHS Sheffield 

CCG.  A pooled budget of around £250m will be established on 1 April 2015, to enable a 

single commissioning approach to developing integrated services in the following areas: 

• Keeping People Well in their Communities. 

• Active Support and Recovery. 

• Independent Living Solutions. 

• Long Term High Cost Support. 

This budget will include most of the City Council’s expenditure on adult social care and 

most of the CCG’s expenditure on urgent care for adults. The areas of work listed above 

Page 70



5 
 

are intended to integrate services, improve patient experience, and achieve the necessary 

cost reductions so that expenditure remains within the reducing budget for care. 

 

4.2 Tackling health inequalities  

The third outcome of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

is focussed on tackling health inequalities. Health inequalities are a matter of life and death.  

Although there are many different ways in which health inequalities can be measured, the 

best overall indicator is the slope index of inequality of life expectancy which indicates a life 

expectancy gap of just over 9 years for men and just under 7 years for women (2011-13 

data).  

Tackling health inequalities continues to be an area of focus for the Board. An update will 

be presented to the Board at their public meeting in June 2015. 

 

4.3 Monitoring the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

Sheffield’s Health and Wellbeing Board formally agreed in September 2013 a Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy. This was based on the evidence of the Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment. Both documents were agreed following extensive consultation with Sheffield 

people and professionals. 

The Board takes seriously its role to monitor the Strategy’s progress and ensure action is 

taking place in each of the areas outlined in the Strategy. Over 2015/16, the Health and 

Wellbeing Board will monitor: 

• The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy’s five outcomes and indicators of progress. 

Each outcome will be considered over the course of the year, along with updates 

focussing on the evidence base for the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (the Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment).  

• The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy’s five work programmes. These will be 

considered in March 2015 and March 2016. 

 

4.4 Testing the plans of the organisations on the Board fit the Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has a role to play in commenting on and influencing the 

different plans of the Board’s key partners. Joint working is particularly imperative in times 

of financial constraints, as it enables efficiencies to be made and services to be more 

targeted at people who need them. It is undoubtedly the case that all partners on the Board 

are under severe financial constraints. While the cuts to local authorities are well known and 

sustained over a number of years, NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group is also 

getting less money than expected.  

Page 71



6 
 

Health and Wellbeing Board partners have been involving one another in developing their 

plans for 2015/16. Over the coming year, Board members will assist one another in 

delivering the plans to ensure they meet the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy’s aims 

and objectives. With that in mind, the plans of the main organisations on the Board are set 

out in brief below: 

• Sheffield City Council’s plans are based on the outcomes set out in the Council’s 

Corporate Plan and the principles of the Fairness Commission. The Council carried out 

a ‘budget conversation’ with Sheffield people and partners before approving its budget 

in early March. 

• NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group is continuing with the two-year 

commissioning plans agreed in 2014. However, new work for 2015/16 includes agreeing 

a new Respiratory Strategy, work on the Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat, a review 

of Urgent Care leading to a new Urgent Care Strategy, and further work with partners on 

supporting children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities.  

 

4.5 Influencing and involving others 

As the strategic lead for health and wellbeing in Sheffield, the Health and Wellbeing Board 

has a role to play in influencing partners and engaging with members of the public. It will do 

this through events and communications. The Board sends out a monthly e-newsletter 

which around 1,700 people receive and which publicises information about meetings, 

events and consultations, enabling individuals and organisations to get involved, be 

informed, and attend meetings and events. Other tools are used to ensure that the Board’s 

work is communicated across the city.1 A yearly update to the Board summarises this work. 

 

5.0 QUESTIONS FOR THE BOARD 

• Does the Health and Wellbeing Board support the priorities proposed by the 

commissioning organisations? 

• Are there areas for greater joint working between the organisations on the Health and 

Wellbeing Board (and others) in 2015/16? 

• What role is there for Healthwatch Sheffield over the coming year in assisting with the 

implementation of these plans? 

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE BOARD 

• That the Board supports and endorses the commissioning plans set out in this 

document. 

• That Board members and the Board’s organisations commit to working together in an 

integrated way over the coming year. 

                                            
1
 More information: https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/caresupport/health/health-wellbeing-board.html. 

Page 72



7 
 

Appendix A: NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group’s priorities for 

2015/16 

1. Strategic aims and objectives 

• To improve patient experience and access to care. 

• To improve the quality and equality of healthcare in Sheffield. 

• To work with Sheffield City Council to continue to reduce health inequalities in Sheffield. 

• To ensure there is a sustainable, affordable healthcare system in Sheffield. 

 

2. Ambitions for the next five years 

• All those who are identified to have emerging risk of admission through risk stratification 

are offered a care plan, agreed between them and their clinicians (possibly 15,000 

people). 

• By establishing integrated primary care and community based health and social care 

services, care planning, and holistic long term conditions management to support 

people living independently at home, reduce emergency admissions by up to 20% 

Emergency Department attendances by up to 40%. 

• Minimise repeated trips to the GP and hospital for specialist diagnosis and monitoring of 

health problems, replacing them with community and home based services that make 

best use of technology, and keep people at the centre of their care. 

• Reduce the gap in life expectancy for people with mental health problems and learning 

disabilities. 

• Put in place support and services that will help all children have the best possible start 

in life. 

 

3. Big projects 

• With the City Council, through integrated commissioning : 

o Extend care planning. 

o Test the “Keeping People Well in Their Communities” model proposed in our 

integrated commissioning plans. 

o Specify and procure improved intermediate care services. 

o Establish an integrated approach to long term health and social care. 

• Working with NHS England: 

o Jointly commission primary care services. 

Page 73



8 
 

o Be actively involved in and supporting NHSE commissioning of specialised services. 

• CCG specific priorities: 

o Improving community nursing services. 

o Mobilisation of the outcomes based contract for musculoskeletal services. 

o Contributing to delivery of Sheffield Health Inequalities plan. 

o Transforming outpatient services. 

o Redesigning urgent care services.  

o And supporting primary care providers to establish a collective approach to care 

provision, and to working with other providers. 

 

4. Likely new major projects 

• Respiratory Strategy. 

• Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat. 

• Review of Urgent Care – leading to Urgent Care Strategy. 

• Improvements to Elective Care. 

• Implementation of Special Educational Needs reforms. 

Page 74



9 
 

Appendix B: Sheffield City Council’s priorities for 2015/16 

Strategic aims and objectives 

• Adhering to the principles of the Fairness Commission. 

• Being ambitious for Sheffield.  

• Working with partners to achieve the best for Sheffield – changing not cutting services. 

 

The Council’s priorities for 2015/16 include: 

1. Health and social care 

• Ongoing work with the Clinical Commissioning Group to commission services together. 

• Continuing to review and reassess people’s care packages. 

• Changing and reclassifying registered care homes. 

• Retendering services to providers to increase efficiency and effectiveness. 

• Develop the Adult Placements approach as an alternative to long-term care placements. 

• Review short breaks and respite services for children with a disability. 

 

2. Public health 

• The ring fenced public health grant remains unchanged in 2015/16 at £30.7M. The 

majority of public health programmes and public health grant expenditure (>£28M worth) 

will continue unchanged in 2015/16, though some are due for re-tender. 

• However, some cuts have been made to public health budgets in order to make money 

available for vulnerable programmes previously funded by mainstream Council General 

Fund, as a result of the overall reduction in Council revenue. This includes a reduction in 

the tobacco control budget of £550K, and the sexual health budget of £266K, as well as 

reduction in specialist public health staffing (-£247K), disinvestment in the tier 3 weight 

management contract (-£137K), dedicated food and cooking skills projects (-£170K), 

mental health promotion (-£64K) and promotion of physical activity (-£36K). This has 

allowed for additional public health grant investment in early years work (£500K).  Other 

possible uses of the resource released are still under discussion. 

 

3. Wider determinants of health (the things the Council spends money on which 

impact people’s health and wellbeing) 

• Smarter working between housing and parks and open spaces. 

• Working with partners to improve income and savings from sports and arts. 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report of: Dr Jeremy Wight, Director of Public Health 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:    26th March 2015 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Subject: Director of Public Health Annual Report 2014:  

Air Quality and Health in Sheffield 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Various as stated in papers 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

Directors of Public Health have a statutory duty to produce an annual report on the health of 
the local population.  The 2014 report focuses on what the World Health Organisation has 
described as the greatest threat to public health and the defining issue of the 21st century – 
the impact of climate change on health, principally through increased greenhouse gas 
emissions. The report firstly describes the scale of the challenge and then draws attention 
to actions that can be taken to mitigate, or adapt to, the impact of climate change, which as 
well as reducing greenhouse gas emissions, also benefit health. 

 

The report makes a number of recommendations about improving the health of the 
Sheffield population by addressing issues that affect climate change. These 
recommendations are directed towards particular organisations or groups.  There are three 
in particular that are addressed to the Health and Wellbeing Board (see below). 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board has previously requested information about the impact of 
poor air quality on health in Sheffield, and steps being taken to address that.  Promoting 
‘active travel’ is recommended in the DPH Annual Report as this will improve health 
(through increased levels of physical activity), reduce carbon emissions and improve air 
quality.  The accompanying paper summarises what is known about air quality in Sheffield, 
the Council’s Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP), and makes recommendations. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendations for the Health and Wellbeing Board: 

• That the Board receives the Director of Public Health’s annual report for 2014. 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

Agenda Item 9

Page 77



2 
 

• The Health and Wellbeing Board, and Sheffield’s NHS Foundation Trusts, should adopt 

an explicit sustainability policy aimed at ensuring that Sheffield meets its carbon 

reduction obligations by 2020.  This should be underpinned by the adoption of a 

sustainability manifesto for the health and social care system in the City. 

• The Health and Wellbeing Board should give urgent consideration to the ways in which 

the implications for carbon emissions of different approaches to the delivery of health 

and social care in the City can be evaluated.  A system of carbon accounting needs to 

be developed. 

• The Health and Wellbeing Board should consider how to enforce and report on actions 

set out in the Heatwave Plan for health and social care facilities such as care homes, 

before next summer. 

• The Health and Wellbeing Board endorses the other recommendations contained within 

the report, which are addressed at other organisations. 

   

 

 

Page 78



Climate Change and Health

DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC HEALTH
REPORT FOR 
SHEFFIELD
2014

Page 79



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
2

3

Co
nt

en
ts

1
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

  .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
4

2
. 

H
o

w
 w

il
l 

a 
ch

an
g

in
g

 c
li

m
at

e 
aff

ec
t 

   
   

   
   

   
h

ea
lt

h
 i

n
 S

h
effi

el
d

? 
 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.
8

 
2

.1
 

D
ir

ec
t 

h
ea

lt
h

 e
ff

ec
ts

 o
f 

cl
im

at
e

   
   

 
ch

an
g

e 
an

d
 g

lo
b

al
 w

ar
m

in
g

  .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.
8

 
2

.2
  

In
d

ir
ec

t 
eff

ec
ts

 o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

..
..

.1
0

 
2

.3
  

S
o

ci
al

 a
n

d
 d

em
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
  i

m
p

ac
ts

   
   

   
   

   
 

o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

1
2

 3
. 

W
h

at
 s

h
o

u
ld

 w
e 

b
e 

d
o

in
g

 a
b

o
u

t 
it

? 
 ..

..
..

..
..

1
4

 
3

.1
 

A
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

 o
r 

m
it

ig
at

io
n

? 
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

4

 
3

.2
 

A
ct

iv
e 

tr
av

el
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.1

6

 
3

.3
 

R
ed

u
ci

n
g

 m
ea

t 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
  .

..
..

..
..

..
.1

7

 
3

.4
 

W
ar

m
er

 h
o

m
es

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.2
0

 
3

.5
 

S
tr

en
g

th
en

in
g

 t
h

e 
lo

ca
l 

ec
o

n
o

m
y

 
 

an
d

 i
n

cr
ea

si
n

g
 s

o
ci

al
 c

a
p

it
al

  .
..

..
..

..
..

..
2

3

 
3

.6
 

D
ev

el
o

p
in

g
 a

 l
o

w
 c

ar
b

o
n

 h
ea

lt
h

 
 

an
d

 s
o

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
ec

o
n

o
m

y
  .

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
.2

4

 
3

.7
 

P
re

p
ar

in
g

 f
o

r 
ex

tr
em

e 
w

ea
th

er
 

 
 

ev
en

ts
  ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.2
6

 
3

.8
 

D
es

ig
n

in
g

 h
ea

lt
h

y
 u

rb
an

 s
p

ac
es

 
 

an
d

 p
la

ce
s 

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

2
8

 4
. 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
 .

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

3
0

 
4

.1
 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 2

0
1

3
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

 3
0

 
4

.2
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
  .

..
..

..
..

..
..

.3
2

5
. 

G
lo

ss
ar

y
  .

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
3

4

M
o

re
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

  .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.3
6

DI
RE

CT
OR

 O
F 

PU
BL

IC
 H

EA
LT

H
RE

PO
RT

 F
OR

 
SH

EF
FI

EL
D

20
14

 

Page 80



C
L

IM
A

T
E

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 A
N

D
 H

E
A

LT
H

  
| 
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  
| 
 C

L
IM

A
T

E
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
4

5

C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 

g
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 

is
 c

a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
tm

o
s
p

h
e
re

. 
C

h
ie

f 
a
m

o
n
g

s
t 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
 c

a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 (

C
O

2
) 

re
le

a
s
e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 b

u
rn

in
g

 o
f 

fo
s
s
il 

fu
e
ls

, 
b

u
t 
o
th

e
r 

g
a
s
e
s
 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

. 
A

ve
ra

g
e
 g

lo
b

a
l 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 h

a
ve

 r
is

e
n
 b

y
 

a
b

o
u
t 
0
.5

 d
e
g

re
e
s
 c

e
n
ti
g

ra
d

e
 

(o
C

) 
in

 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
5
0
 y

e
a
rs

, 
a
n
d

 b
y
 

0
.8

o
C

 f
ro

m
 p

re
-i
n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
ti
m

e
s.

  

E
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 
th

re
e
 d

e
c
a
d

e
s
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 o

n
e
, 
b

y
 a

b
o
u
t 
0
.2

o
C

. 
 

T
h
e
 I
n
te

rg
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

a
n
e
l 
o
n
 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 (

IP
C

C
) 

s
a
y
s
 i
t 

is
 v

ir
tu

a
lly

 c
e
rt

a
in

 t
h
a
t 
h
u
m

a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 w

a
rm

e
d

 t
h
e
 g

lo
b

a
l 

c
lim

a
te

 s
y
s
te

m
, 
a
n
d

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 

lik
e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e
 

o
b

s
e
rv

e
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 g

lo
b

a
l 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

 i
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o
 h

u
m

a
n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y.

G
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

 c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
h
e
 

c
lim

a
te

 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

w
a
y
s.

 A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
, 
it
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d

 

s
e
ve

ri
ty

 o
f 

h
e
a
tw

a
ve

s.
 W

a
rm

e
r 

a
ir
 c

a
rr

ie
s
 m

o
re

 w
a
te

r 
v
a
p

o
u
r,
 

s
o
 g

lo
b

a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 

ra
in

fa
ll,

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 s

to
rm

s.
  

S
to

rm
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
 m

o
re

 e
n
e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 

s
o
 a

re
 m

o
re

 i
n
te

n
s
e
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

b
e
in

g
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t.
 I
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 

g
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

 i
s
 c

a
u
s
in

g
 

m
e
lt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rm

a
fr

o
s
t,
 

g
la

c
ie

rs
 a

n
d

 a
rc

ti
c
 s

e
a
 i
c
e
, 
a
ll 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
ve

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

a
rm

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
la

n
e
t.
 T

h
e
 s

e
a
 l
e
ve

l 
is

 r
is

in
g

, 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 s

e
a
 i
ts

e
lf

 b
e
c
o
m

in
g

 

m
o
re

 a
c
id

ic
. 
T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a
l 

p
ro

b
le

m
 w

h
e
n
 fi

s
h
 f
e
e
d

 s
o
 m

u
c
h
 

o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rl

d
.

1 
 In

tro
du

ct
io

n
W

h
y

 c
li

m
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i

s 
th

e
 b

ig
g

e
st

 p
u

b
li

c 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 2
1

st
 c

e
n

tu
r

y.

C
li

m
at

e 
ch

an
g

e 
is

 t
h

e 
d

efi
n

in
g

 p
u

b
li

c 
h

ea
lt

h
 i

ss
u

e 
o

f 
th

is
 c

en
tu

ry
. 

In
 t

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 I
 h

o
p

e 
to

 s
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 w

h
y,

 h
o

w
 i

t 
m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t 
S

h
effi

el
d

, 
an

d
 w

h
at

 w
e 

ca
n

 d
o

, 
an

d
 a

lr
ea

d
y

 a
re

 d
o

in
g

 
a

b
o

u
t 

it
.

In
 t

h
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 t
o

 l
o

n
g

 t
er

m
, 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

is
 s

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
tl

y
 m

o
re

 t
h

re
at

en
in

g
 t

o
 p

u
b

li
c 

h
ea

lt
h

 t
h

an
 a

n
y

 o
f 

th
e 

o
th

er
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 
w

e 
sp

en
d

 o
u

r 
ti

m
e 

d
ea

li
n

g
 w

it
h

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
sm

o
k

in
g

, 
p

h
y

si
ca

l 
in

ac
ti

v
it

y,
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
an

d
 s

o
 o

n
 a

re
 a

ll
 m

a
jo

r 
p

u
b

li
c 

h
ea

lt
h

 i
ss

u
es

 t
h

at
 

w
e 

h
av

e 
to

 a
d

d
re

ss
, 

th
ey

 a
re

 n
o

t 
u

n
iv

er
sa

l 
in

 t
h

ei
r 

im
p

ac
t,

 a
n

d
 t

h
ey

 d
o

 n
o

t 
th

re
at

en
 t

h
e 

fu
n

d
am

en
ta

ls
 o

f 
h

u
m

an
 s

o
ci

et
y.

 W
e 

q
u

it
e 

ri
g

h
tl

y
 s

p
en

d
 a

 l
o

t 
o

f 
ti

m
e 

an
d

 e
n

er
g

y
 s

ee
k

in
g

 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e 
B

es
t 

S
ta

rt
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

, 
an

d
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
ey

 a
re

 s
af

e,
 b

u
t 

if
 w

e 
d

o
 n

o
t 

ta
ck

le
 c

li
m

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

eff
ec

ti
v

el
y,

 t
h

ei
r 

fu
tu

re
 w

il
l 

b
e 

v
er

y
 b

le
a

k
. 

#
er

e 
ar

e 
h

o
w

ev
er

 l
in

k
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 p

re
se

n
t 

p
u

b
li

c 
h

ea
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

k
in

d
 o

f 
st

ep
s 

w
e 

h
av

e 
to

 t
a

k
e 

to
 t

ac
k

le
 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e.

 M
an

y
 o

f 
th

e 
th

in
g

s 
w

e 
n

ee
d

 t
o

 d
o

 t
o

 r
ed

u
ce

 g
re

en
h

o
u

se
 g

a
s 

em
is

si
o

n
s 

w
il

l 
b

en
efi

t 
o

u
r 

h
ea

lt
h

 i
n

 t
h

e 
sh

o
rt

 t
er

m
, 

to
o

. 
W

e 
d

es
cr

ib
e 

so
m

e 
o

f 
th

o
se

 t
h

in
g

s.

TH
E 

BI
GG

ES
T 

PU
BL

IC
 H

EA
LT

H
 

CH
A

LL
EN

GE
. 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 a

re
 

h
a
p

p
e
n
in

g
 a

lr
e
a
d

y.
 W

h
a
t 

h
a
p

p
e
n
s
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 d

e
p

e
n
d

s
 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 

o
f 

g
lo

b
a
l 
g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
, 
b

u
t 
a
ls

o
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 

in
 a

g
ri
c
u
lt
u
re

, 
d

ie
t,
 l
a
n
d

 u
s
e
, 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 g

ro
w

th
. 
T
h
e
 

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 u
s
e
 o

f 
c
a
rb

o
n
 

c
a
p

tu
re

 a
n
d

 s
to

ra
g

e
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 

p
la

y
 a

 p
a
rt

. 
B

u
t 
fi
rs

t 
w

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 

re
c
o
g

n
is

e
 t
h
a
t 
b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

d
io

x
id

e
 i
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 l
o
n
g

 l
iv

e
d

 

a
tm

o
s
p

h
e
ri
c
 p

o
llu

ta
n
t,
 w

e
 a

re
 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

g
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

 b
a
s
e
d

 

s
im

p
ly

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
a
lr
e
a
d

y
 i
n
 

th
e
 a

tm
o
s
p

h
e
re

. 
 

F
ig

u
re

 1
: 
D

if
fe

re
n

ce
 in

 a
ve

ra
g
e 

Ju
ly

 d
ai

ly
 m

ax
im

u
m

 t
em

p
er

at
u

re
s

fr
o

m
 1

9
5

3
, 

S
h

ef
fi

el
d

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

et
o
ffi

ce
.g

ov
.u

k/
cl

im
at

ec
h
an

g
e/

sc
ie

n
ce

/m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g

Page 81



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
6

7

T
h
e
 I
n
te

rg
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

a
n
e
l 
o
n
 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 h

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 

fo
u
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
s
 

fo
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
tr

a
je

c
to

ri
e
s
 o

f 

g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 u

p
 

to
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

2
1
0
0
. 
T
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
c
a
s
e
 

s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 a

s
s
u
m

e
s
 a

 r
a
d

ic
a
l 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 

a
lm

o
s
t 
im

m
e
d

ia
te

ly
, 
 w

h
ic

h
 l
e
a
d

s
 

to
 a

 s
lo

w
 r

a
te

 o
f 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
le

ve
ls

 o
ff

 a
t 

a
b

o
u
t 
1
 d

e
g

re
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

ve
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
le

ve
ls

 b
y
 t
h
e
 m

id
d

le
 

o
f 

th
is

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
 B

y
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
t,
 

in
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
c
a
s
e
 s

c
e
n
a
ri
o
, 

w
it
h
 u

n
a
b

a
te

d
 g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 

g
a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 
a
ve

ra
g

e
 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 w

ill
 r

is
e
  
b

y
 2

 

d
e
g

re
e
s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 m

id
d

le
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d

 n
e
a
rl
y
 4

 d
e
g

re
e
s
  

b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d

. 
A

 s
u
m

m
e
r 

lik
e
 t
h
a
t 

o
f 

2
0
0
3
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 c
o
o
l 
o
n
e
.

W
h
a
t 
d

o
e
s
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
is

 m
e
a
n
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
?
 T

h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 o
u
tl
in

e
s
 

b
ri
e
fl
y
 h

o
w

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

c
a
n
 t
h
re

a
te

n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
o
u
r 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
. 
A

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 k

e
y
 s

o
c
ia

l 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
n
ts

 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 –

 f
o
o
d

, 

w
a
te

r,
 s

h
e
lt
e
r,
 e

ve
n
 t
h
e
 n

o
rm

a
l 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
u
m

a
n
 s

o
c
ie

ty
 -

 a
re

 

th
re

a
te

n
e
d

 b
y
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
 

H
o
w

 b
a
d

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 w

ill
 

d
e
p

e
n
d

 o
n
 h

o
w

 m
u
c
h
 g

lo
b

a
l 

w
a
rm

in
g

 h
a
p

p
e
n
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
 

tu
rn

 d
e
p

e
n
d

s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 o
n
 h

o
w

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

ly
 w

e
 c

a
n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
ve

ly
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s.

 H
o
w

 w
e
 d

o
 t
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 f
a
c
in

g
 

h
u
m

a
n
 c

iv
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
.

If
, 
g

lo
b

a
lly

, 
w

e
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 t
h
e
 r

a
p

id
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

IP
C

C
’s

 b
e
s
t 
c
a
s
e
 s

c
e
n
a
ri
o
, 
th

e
 

p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 

o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
 

s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t,
 b

u
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
a
b

le
.O

n
 

th
e
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
n
d

 i
f 

w
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

w
it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l,
 l
e
a
d

in
g

 

to
 a

 f
o
u
r 

d
e
g

re
e
 c

e
n
ti
g

ra
d

e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 g

lo
b

a
l 
te

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

s
, 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld

 w
e
ll 

b
e
 c

a
ta

s
tr

o
p

h
ic

. 
T
h
e
 

L
a
n
c
e
t 
h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 w

a
rn

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 a

 “
d

is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y

in
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
  

h
u
m

a
n
it
y
”.

 I
n
 o

th
e
r 

w
o
rd

s
, 
a
 

b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
s
o
c
ie

ty
, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 
h
u
m

a
n
k
in

d
 h

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 

u
p

 o
ve

r 
c
e
n
tu

ri
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 l
if
e
 

w
o
rt

h
 l
iv

in
g

.

U
n
fo

rt
u
n
a
te

ly
 a

t 
th

e
 m

o
m

e
n
t 

g
lo

b
a
l 
c
a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

a
re

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
. 
B

u
rn

in
g

 m
o
re

 

th
a
n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

k
n
o
w

n
 f
o
s
s
il 

fu
e
l 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
le

a
s
e
 

e
n
o
u
g

h
 C

O
2
 t
o
 p

u
t 
th

e
 w

o
rl

d
 o

n
 

a
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 t
o
 o

ve
r 

4
 d

e
g

re
e
s
 o

f 

w
a
rm

in
g

. 
It
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 p
e
rh

a
p

s
 

n
o
t 
s
u
rp

ri
s
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 W

o
rl

d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 (

W
H

O
) 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
M

a
rg

a
re

t 

C
h
a
n
 h

a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
c
lim

a
te

 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
th

re
a
t 
to

 

p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 

is
s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 2

1
s
t 
c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
S

h
e
 

is
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 i
n
 t
h
is

 c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

b
y
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 L

a
n
c
e
t 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 M

e
d

ic
a
l 
J
o
u
rn

a
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 

n
o
w

 s
ta

te
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 W

H
O

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 d
e
c
la

re
 a

 p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y.

H
o
w

e
ve

r 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
s
 t
h
a
t 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
e
o
p

le
 

a
re

 r
e
c
o
g

n
is

in
g

 t
h
e
 d

a
n
g

e
ro

u
s
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 w

e
 a

re
 i
n
, 
a
n
d

 e
x
p

lo
ri
n
g

 

w
a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 g
lo

b
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g

e
. 
T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

th
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 ‘
G

re
e
n
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’ 
h
e
re

 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

. 
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 m
a
n
y
 t
h
in

g
s
 

th
a
t 
w

e
 c

a
n
 d

o
, 
a
n
d

 a
re

 a
lr
e
a
d

y
 

d
o
in

g
, 
th

a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 

b
o
th

 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

lim
a
te

.  

O
n
 t
h
e
 1

6
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

1
9
4
8
, 

A
n
e
u
ri
n
 B

e
v
a
n
, 
th

e
 f
o
u
n
d

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 N

H
S

, 
s
a
id

 i
n
 a

 s
p

e
e
c
h
 t
o
 

th
e
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 o

f 
M

e
d

ic
a
l 
O

ffi
c
e
rs

 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 (

th
e
 f
o
re

ru
n
n
e
rs

 o
f 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
 o

f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
) 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 “

lik
e
 s

o
m

e
 

w
a
tc

h
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 s

k
ie

s
 –

 f
o
r 

p
o
rt

e
n
ts

, 
n
o
t 
m

e
re

ly
 o

f 
e
p

id
e
m

ic
 

d
is

e
a
s
e
, 
b

u
t 
o
f 

a
n
y
th

in
g

 l
ik

e
ly

 

to
 h

a
ve

 a
n
 a

d
ve

rs
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

h
e
a
lt
h
”.

 C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
s
 

c
e
rt

a
in

ly
 o

n
e
 s

u
c
h
 p

o
rt

e
n
t.

Je
re

m
y 

W
ig

ht
D

ir
ec

to
r o

f 
P

ub
li

c 
H

ea
lt

h

TH
ER

E 
A

RE
 M

A
N

Y
 

TH
IN

GS
 W

E 
CA

N
 

DO
 T

HA
T 

W
OU

LD
 

BE
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

L 
TO

 
HE

A
LT

H 
A

N
D 

TO
  

TH
E 

CL
IM

A
TE

.

UN
FO

RT
UN

A
TE

LY
 

A
T 

TH
E 

M
OM

EN
T 

GL
OB

A
L 

CA
RB

ON
 

DI
OX

ID
E 

EM
IS

SI
ON

S 
A

RE
 IN

CR
EA

SI
N

G.

A
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
m

e
n

ts

R
e
p

o
rt

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
is

 a
re

 a
lw

a
y
s
 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
m

a
n
y
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 

w
o
rk

. 
I 
a
m

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 g

ra
te

fu
l 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

to
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
to

rs
 

fr
o
m

 o
u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 w

h
o
 h

a
ve

 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s.

 I
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o
 

th
e
 n

a
m

e
d

 a
u
th

o
rs

 I
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 

lik
e
 t
o
 t
h
a
n
k
 B

e
rn

d
 H

o
e
rm

a
n
n
, 

M
a
rk

 D
a
ly

, 
J
o
h
n
 C

le
p

h
a
n
, 
D

a
v
id

 

C
a
u
lfi

e
ld

, 
E

d
 H

ig
h
fi
e
ld

 a
n
d

 

M
a
rk

 W
h
it
w

o
rt

h
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 h

e
lp

 

w
it
h
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d

 t
o
 

C
a
th

y
 R

e
a
d

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 o
n
 

th
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
re

p
o
rt

. 
P

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 

th
a
n
k
s
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t
o
 J

o
h
n
 S

k
in

n
e
r 

a
n
d

 L
o
u
is

e
 B

re
w

in
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 e

d
it
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
e
x
t,
 a

n
d

 

to
 t
h
e
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
a
m

. 
F
in

a
l 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

re
s
ts

 w
it
h
 m

e
.

J
e
re

m
y
 W

ig
h

t

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
P

u
b

li
c
 H

e
a
lt

h

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4

 

F
ig

u
re

 2
: 
Th

e 
L

o
n

g
 R

an
g
e 

W
ea

th
er

 F
o

re
ca

st
 f

o
r 

S
h

ef
fi

el
d

H
o
tt
e
r,
 d

ri
e
r 

s
u
m

m
e
rs

M
ild

e
r,
 w

e
tt
e
r 

w
in

te
rs

M
o
re

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

e
 h

ig
h
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s

D
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ra

in
fa

ll

M
o
re

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 
h
e
a
v
y
 d

o
w

n
p

o
u
rs

L
o
w

e
r 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

s
o
il 

m
o
is

tu
re

 c
o
n
te

n
t

G
re

a
te

r 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
 w

h
e
n
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 a

b
o
ve

 5
o
C

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 

to
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

g
ro

w
in

g
 /
 b

re
e
d

in
g

 s
e
a
s
o
n

H
ig

h
e
r 

w
in

d
 s

p
e
e
d

s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 s
to

rm
s

R
e
d

u
c
e
d

 c
lo

u
d

 c
o
ve

r 
le

a
d

in
g

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 b
ri
g

h
t 
s
u
n
s
h
in

e

C
o
o
le

r 
a
n
d

 w
e
tt
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 w

e
s
t 
o
f 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

.

H
ig

h
e
r 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 a

n
d

 l
o
w

e
r 

ra
in

fa
ll 

in
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

S
h
ef

fi
el

d
 L

o
ca

l C
lim

at
e 

Im
p
ac

ts
 P

ro
fi
le

 (
W

es
to

n
 P

ar
k 

d
at

a)
 a

n
d
 t

h
e 

S
o
u
th

 Y
o
rk

sh
ir

e 
W

ea
th

er
 

Tr
en

d
s 

re
p
o
rt

 (
U

K
C

P
0
9
 d

at
a)

           

Page 82



C
L

IM
A

T
E

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 A
N

D
 H

E
A

LT
H

  
| 
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  
| 
 C

L
IM

A
T

E
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
8

9

2
.1

 D
ir

e
ct

 h
e

a
lt

h
 e

!
e

ct
s 

o
f 

cl
im

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 

g
lo

b
a

l 
w

a
rm

in
g

S
te

ph
en

 M
or

to
n 

an
d 

A
ng

ie
 B

on
e,

   

P
ub

li
c 

H
ea

lt
h

 E
ng

la
nd

T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 

w
e
ll 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 

In
te

rg
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

a
n
e
l 
o
n
 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
. 
In

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
e
 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
o
n
s
, 
th

e
 E

n
e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 ‘
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 

to
 d

o
u
b

t 
th

e
 c

re
d

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 

th
e
 s

c
ie

n
c
e
 o

r 
th

e
 i
n
te

g
ri
ty

 

o
f 

th
e
 s

c
ie

n
ti
s
ts

 i
n
vo

lv
e
d

’.
 

T
h
e
 U

K
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 R

is
k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
2
) 

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 

th
a
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 

to
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 

to
 b

e
 f
ro

m
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 s
u
m

m
e
r 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 a

n
d

 o
ve

rh
e
a
ti
n
g

 i
n
 

b
u
ild

in
g

s
, 
a
n
d

 fl
o
o
d

in
g

. 

H
e
a

tw
a
v
e
s

T
h
e
 p

ro
lo

n
g

e
d

 h
ig

h
 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 i
n
 A

u
g

u
s
t 
2
0
0
3
 

c
a
u
s
e
d

 2
0
0
0
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 d

e
a
th

s
 i
n
 

E
n
g

la
n
d

, 
w

it
h
 e

ld
e
rl
y
 p

e
o
p

le
 

w
it
h
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 h
e
a
rt

 a
n
d

 l
u
n
g

 

d
is

e
a
s
e
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
s
t 
a
t 
ri
s
k
. 
 

P
ro

je
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

 t
h
a
t 
h
e
a
t-

re
la

te
d

 d
e
a
th

s
 m

a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 

7
0
0
0
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

b
y
 2

0
5
0
.

O
ve

rh
e
a
ti
n
g

 i
n
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 i
s
 

th
o
u
g

h
t 
to

 b
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

fa
c
to

r 
in

 h
e
a
t-

re
la

te
d

 i
lln

e
s
s
 

a
n
d

 d
e
a
th

. 
P

u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 o
r 

to
p

 

fl
o
o
r 

fl
a
ts

 a
n
d

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d

 h
o
u
s
e
s
 

a
re

 m
o
s
t 
a
t 
ri
s
k
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

u
n
-i
n
s
u
la

te
d

 l
o
ft
 c

o
n
ve

rs
io

n
s
 

in
 p

re
-1

9
1
9
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
, 
a
n
d

 

fl
a
ts

 b
u
ilt

 a
ft
e
r 

th
e
 1

9
6
0
s.

 I
n
 t
h
e
 

re
la

ti
ve

ly
 c

o
o
l 
s
u
m

m
e
r 

o
f 

2
0
0
7
, 

2
1
%

 o
f 

b
e
d

ro
o
m

s
 w

e
re

 f
o
u
n
d

 

to
 b

e
 o

ve
rh

e
a
te

d
. 
O

ve
rh

e
a
ti
n
g

 

in
 h

o
s
p

it
a
ls

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

, 
w

it
h
 o

n
e
 s

tu
d

y
 

s
u
g

g
e
s
ti
n
g

 t
h
a
t 
9
0
%

 o
f 

w
a
rd

s
 

a
re

 p
ro

n
e
 t
o
 o

ve
rh

e
a
ti
n
g

.

D
u
ri
n
g

 h
e
a
tw

a
ve

s
 t
h
e
re

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 w

it
h
in

 

u
rb

a
n
 a

re
a
s.

 U
rb

a
n
 h

e
a
t 
is

la
n
d

s
 

a
re

 c
a
u
s
e
d

 w
h
e
n
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 (

ve
g

e
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 s
o
il)

 

a
re

 r
e
p

la
c
e
d

 b
y
 b

u
ilt

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 

c
o
n
s
is

ti
n
g

 o
f 

n
o
n
-r

e
fl
e
c
ti
ve

 a
n
d

 

w
a
te

r 
re

s
is

ta
n
t 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

. 
T
h
is

 l
e
a
d

s
 t
o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

d
a
y
ti
m

e
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
, 
a
n
d

 n
ig

h
t 

ti
m

e
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 n

o
t 
fa

lli
n
g

. 
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 h
a
s
 s

o
m

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
is

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
rg

e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 C

it
y
 b

o
u
n
d

a
ri
e
s.

F
lo

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
to

rm
s

D
ir
e
c
t 
d

e
a
th

s
 a

n
d

 i
n
ju

ri
e
s
 

o
c
c
u
r 

in
 B

ri
ta

in
 f
ro

m
 fl

o
o
d

s
 a

n
d

 

s
to

rm
s
; 
m

a
in

ly
 f
ro

m
 d

ro
w

n
in

g
, 

o
r 

b
e
in

g
 c

ru
s
h
e
d

 b
y
 f
a
lli

n
g

 t
re

e
s
 

a
n
d

 m
a
s
o
n
ry

, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

d
is

ru
p

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
e
s
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d

 

b
y
 t
h
e
s
e
 e

ve
n
ts

. 
D

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

s
to

rm
s
 o

f 
2
0
0
7
, 
tw

o
 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 S

o
u
th

 Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 w

e
re

 

d
ro

w
n
e
d

, 
m

a
n
y
 h

u
n
d

re
d

s
 w

e
re

 

re
s
c
u
e
d

 b
y
 b

o
a
t 
o
r 

h
e
lic

o
p

te
r,
 

a
n
d

 7
0
0
 p

e
o
p

le
, 
w

h
o
 l
iv

e
d

 

n
e
a
r 

th
e
 U

lle
y
 r

e
s
e
rv

o
ir,

 w
e
re

 

e
v
a
c
u
a
te

d
. 
A

 r
e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

2
0
0
7
 fl

o
o
d

s
 f
o
u
n
d

 t
h
a
t 
‘t
h
e
 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
y
m

p
to

m
s
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
tl
y
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

a
m

o
n
g

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 

w
h
o
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 fl
o
o
d

 w
a
te

r 

in
 t
h
e
 h

o
m

e
’.
 S

y
m

p
to

m
s
 o

f 

p
s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
d

is
tr

e
s
s
, 
a
n
x
ie

ty
, 

d
e
p

re
s
s
io

n
, 
a
n
d

 p
o
s
t-

tr
a
u
m

a
ti
c
 

s
tr

e
s
s
 d

is
o
rd

e
r 

w
e
re

 g
re

a
te

r 

a
m

o
n
g

 t
h
e
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

 a
n
d

 

e
ld

e
rl
y.

  

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

’s
 t
o
p

o
g

ra
p

h
y
 

m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
ve

re
 r

a
in

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

P
e
a
k
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
is

 c
h
a
n
n
e
lle

d
 

d
o
w

n
s
tr

e
a
m

 i
n
to

 w
a
te

r 
c
o
u
rs

e
s
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

e
d

 b
y
 o

ve
r 

a
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g

 a
n
d

 d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t.
  

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 b

u
rd

e
n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
 b

y
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 u

rb
a
n
 

d
ra

in
a
g

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s.

S
e
v
e
re

 c
o

ld
 w

e
a

th
e
r

W
h
ils

t 
s
e
ve

re
ly

 c
o
ld

 w
e
a
th

e
r 

is
 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 l
e
s
s
 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 

w
e
 m

a
y
 s

ti
ll 

e
x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 v

e
ry

 

c
o
ld

 w
in

te
rs

. 
W

in
te

r 
m

o
rb

id
it
y
 

a
n
d

 m
o
rt

a
lit

y
 a

re
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 t
o
 

re
m

a
in

 a
 p

ro
b

le
m

. 
E

x
c
e
s
s
 w

in
te

r 

d
e
a
th

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e
d

 a
s
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
x
tr

a
 d

e
a
th

s
 t
h
a
t 

o
c
c
u
r 

in
 t
h
e
 w

in
te

r 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 n

o
n
-w

in
te

r 
m

o
n
th

s
, 

e
x
p

re
s
s
e
d

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 d

e
a
th

s
 a

re
 

fr
o
m

 c
a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r,
 r

e
s
p

ir
a
to

ry
 

d
is

e
a
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d

 d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
. 
T
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

m
a
y
 b

e
 e

x
a
c
e
rb

a
te

d
 b

y
 

p
o
o
r 

a
ir
 q

u
a
lit

y.
 

A
ro

u
n
d

 3
0
%

 o
f 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 w

in
te

r 

d
e
a
th

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b

u
te

d
 t
o
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 a

 c
o
ld

 h
o
m

e
. 
F
u
e
l 

p
o
ve

rt
y
 i
s
 c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

2 
 T

he
 im

pa
ct

 of
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

:   
    

    
    

    
 

ho
w

 w
ill

 a
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

cl
im

at
e 

af
fe

ct
     

 
he

al
th

 in
 S

he
ffi

el
d?

S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 l
o

o
k

s 
at

 h
o

w
 t

h
e 

ch
an

g
in

g
 c

li
m

at
e 

aff
ec

ts
 p

eo
p

le
s’

 h
ea

lt
h

. 
H

ea
tw

av
es

, 
st

o
rm

s 
&

 fl
o

o
d

s,
 a

n
d

 e
x

tr
em

e 
co

ld
 w

ea
th

er
 e

ac
h

 h
av

e 
a 

d
ir

ec
t 

im
p

ac
t 

o
n

 a
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
’s

 m
o

rb
id

it
y

 a
n

d
 m

o
rt

al
it

y.
 A

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ti
m

e,
 c

li
m

at
e 

ch
an

g
e 

aff
ec

ts
 

fo
o

d
 p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 w

at
er

 s
u

p
p

ly
 a

n
d

 t
h

er
eb

y
 h

a
s 

an
 i

n
d

ir
ec

t 
im

p
ac

t 
o

n
 h

ea
lt

h
, 

th
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e 

av
ai

la
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 a
n

d
 w

at
er

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

sp
re

ad
 o

f 
d

is
ea

se
. 

#
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 g

o
es

 
o

n
 t

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 t

h
e 

g
lo

b
al

 i
m

p
ac

ts
 o

f 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
g

e,
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 h

o
w

 b
re

a
k

d
o

w
n

 i
n

 l
o

ca
l 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 i
n

 o
n

e 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

w
o

rl
d

 h
a

s 
so

ci
al

 a
n

d
 d

em
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 c

o
n

se
q

u
en

ce
s 

el
se

w
h

er
e.

BI
GG

ES
T 

RI
SK

S 
A

RE
 

OV
ER

HE
A

TI
N

G 
A

N
D

 
FL

OO
DI

N
G.

Page 83



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
1
0

1
1

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

r 
to

 t
h
is

, 
b

u
t 
o
th

e
r 

fa
c
to

rs
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 o

c
c
u
p

a
n
t 

a
tt
it
u
d

e
s
, 
b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 a
b

ili
ty

 

to
 o

p
e
ra

te
 h

e
a
ti
n
g

 a
ls

o
 p

la
y
 a

n
 

im
p

o
rt

a
n
t 
ro

le
. 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 h
a
s
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
fu

e
l 
p

o
ve

rt
y
 

(m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 ‘
lo

w
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

–
 h

ig
h
 c

o
s
t’
 (

L
IH

C
) 

in
d

ic
a
to

r 
–
 

th
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

th
a
t 
h
a
ve

 h
ig

h
 f
u
e
l 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d

 

lo
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
) 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 

a
ve

ra
g

e
, 
b

u
t 
lo

w
e
r 

le
ve

ls
 t
h
a
n
 

m
a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
re

 c
it
ie

s
 (

F
ig

u
re

 3
).

  

W
e
 h

a
ve

 l
o
w

e
r 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
e
x
c
e
s
s
 

w
in

te
r 

d
e
a
th

s
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 

a
ve

ra
g

e
, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
o
f 

a
ll 

th
e
 C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s.

W
in

-w
in

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 i
n

 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
c
li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e
    

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 t
h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 h
a
ve

 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 w
id

e
r 

p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 p

la
n
ti
n
g

 o
f 

m
o
re

 t
re

e
s
 

a
n
d

 s
h
ru

b
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 c

o
u
ld

 

b
e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 u

rb
a
n
 

d
ra

in
a
g

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 

h
e
a
t 
is

la
n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ts

. 
T
h
e
y
 

c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
w

ild
lif

e
 a

n
d

 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
, 
th

u
s
 b

e
n
e
fi
tt
in

g
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
.

•
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y
 c

a
n
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 f
u
e
l 

p
o
ve

rt
y
 i
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
, 
re

d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

h
a
rm

fu
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
o
ld

 h
o
m

e
s
, 
a
n
d

 a
ls

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

th
e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 

g
a
s
e
s.

 I
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 

im
p

o
rt

a
n
t 
in

 p
ro

te
c
ti
n
g

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
h
e
a
t,
 a

s
 l
o
n
g

 a
s
 

ve
n
ti
la

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

•
 

G
o
o
d

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

c
a
n
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 

is
o
la

te
d

 a
n
d

 e
ld

e
rl
y
 o

r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e
o
p

le
 f
ro

m
 c

o
ld

 

re
la

te
d

 i
lln

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 

im
p

ro
ve

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
in

 a
n
 

a
re

a
. 
In

d
e
e
d

 a
s
s
e
t 
b

a
s
e
d

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
is

 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 a
 v

e
ry

 u
s
e
fu

l 
to

o
l 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 

a
n
d

 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
  

2
.2

 I
n

d
ir

e
ct

 h
e

a
lt

h
 

e
!

e
ct

s 
o

f 
cl

im
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e

R
u

th
 S

pe
ar

e,
 P

ub
li

c 
H

ea
lt

h
 E

ng
la

nd

C
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

 a
n
d

 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

 n
o
t 

o
n
ly

 h
a
ve

 i
m

m
e
d

ia
te

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 

o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

b
u
t 
a
ls

o
 h

a
ve

 i
n
d

ir
e
c
t 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 a
n
d

 

w
a
te

r,
 a

n
d

 o
n
 t
h
e
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 

d
is

e
a
s
e
. 
T
h
e
 t
h
re

a
ts

 t
h
e
y
 p

o
s
e
 

to
 o

u
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 a

re
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 s
e
ri
o
u
s
, 
a
n
d

 n
e
e
d

 t
o
 

b
e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

.

F
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 w

a
te

r 
s
u

p
p

ly

F
o
o
d

 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
n
vo

lv
e
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 

e
n
o
u
g

h
 f
o
o
d

 g
lo

b
a
lly

 a
n
d

 

g
e
tt
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 

w
h
o
 n

e
e
d

 i
t 
a
t 
a
n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 

p
ri
c
e
. 
B

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

n
ly

 a
b

o
u
t 

h
a
lf

 o
f 

o
u
r 

fo
o
d

 i
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 

in
 t
h
is

 c
o
u
n
tr

y,
 w

e
 a

re
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 g

lo
b

a
l 
fo

o
d

 m
a
rk

e
ts

. 
C

ro
p

 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 

w
it
h
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
D

ri
e
r 

s
p

e
lls

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o
r 

ir
ri
g

a
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
s
 a

 s
tr

a
in

 o
n
 w

a
te

r 

s
u
p

p
lie

s
, 
s
o
 a

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
ly

 f
o
r 

fa
rm

in
g

 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
 i
s
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 2

0
2
0
s.

 C
o
n
ve

rs
e
ly

 h
e
a
v
y
 

ra
in

 o
r 

fl
o
o
d

s
 m

a
y
 d

a
m

a
g

e
 

c
ro

p
s
 a

n
d

 c
a
u
s
e
 s

o
il 

e
ro

s
io

n
, 

le
a
d

in
g

 t
o
 p

o
o
re

r 
s
o
il 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 y
ie

ld
s.

 C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 s

p
re

a
d

 

o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 e
m

e
rg

in
g

 c
ro

p
 

p
e
s
ts

. 
L
iv

e
s
to

c
k
 w

ill
 p

ro
b

a
b

ly
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 m
ild

e
r 

w
in

te
rs

 b
u
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 h

a
rm

e
d

 b
y
 h

o
tt
e
r 

s
u
m

m
e
rs

. 
F
is

h
 s

to
c
k
s
 w

ill
 f
a
ll 

a
s
 

a
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
o
c
e
a
n
 a

c
id

ifi
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 U

K
 r

e
lie

s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 o
n
 

o
ve

rs
e
a
s
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 b
o
th

 f
o
r 

fo
o
d

 f
o
r 

h
u
m

a
n
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

n
im

a
l 
fo

o
d

s
tu

ff
s
, 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
o
y
b

e
a
n
 p

ro
te

in
. 
 

E
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 d

ro
u
g

h
t,
 s

to
rm

s
 a

n
d

 

fl
o
o
d

s
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o
n
 f
o
o
d

 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

U
K

  
b

y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 y

ie
ld

s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 

d
is

ru
p

ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

n
e
e
d

e
d

 t
o
 h

a
rv

e
s
t,
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

 f
o
o
d

. 
 

S
c
a
rc

it
y
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 g
lo

b
a
lly

 w
ill

 

d
ri
ve

 u
p

 f
o
o
d

 p
ri
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

a
ff

e
c
t 
lo

w
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
, 
th

e
 

e
ld

e
rl
y
 a

n
d

 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
s
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

is
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 p

o
o
r. 

C
o
s
ts

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
o
m

m
o
d

it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 

im
p

o
rt

e
d

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

n
e
rg

y,
 a

re
 

a
ls

o
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

is
e
 a

n
d

 a
g

a
in

 w
ill

 

p
la

c
e
 a

 d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 b
u
rd

e
n
 

o
n
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p

le
.

T
h
e
 I
P

C
C

 W
o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 

2
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
te

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 2

o
C

 a
re

 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t
o
 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 a

 d
e
c
lin

e
 

in
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
c
ro

p
s
, 

a
t 
a
 t
im

e
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 g

lo
b

a
l 

d
e
m

a
n
d

. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 

lik
e
lih

o
o
d

 o
f 

y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

v
a
ri
a
b

ili
ty

. 
G

lo
b

a
l 
te

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 4

o
C

 

w
o
u
ld

 p
o
s
e
 l
a
rg

e
 r

is
k
s
 t
o
 f
o
o
d

 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 g
lo

b
a
lly

 a
n
d

 r
e
g

io
n
a
lly

.

F
re

s
h
w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
lie

s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

th
re

a
te

n
e
d

, 
th

ro
u
g

h
 d

ro
u
g

h
t,
 

c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
lie

s
 

b
y
 fl

o
o
d

in
g

, 
o
r 

th
e
 d

ry
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 

m
e
lt
 w

a
te

rs
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 g

la
c
ie

rs
 

d
is

a
p

p
e
a
r.

W
a

te
r-

b
o

rn
e
 d

is
e
a
s
e

T
h
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
w

a
te

r-
b

o
rn

e
 

d
is

e
a
s
e
s
 a

re
 s

tr
o
n
g

ly
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 

b
y
 fl

o
o
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 w
a
rm

e
r 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s.
 H

e
a
v
y
 r

a
in

 

a
n
d

 w
a
te

r 
ru

n
-o

ff
 c

a
n
 w

a
s
h
 

p
a
th

o
g

e
n
s
 i
n
to

 w
a
te

r 
c
o
u
rs

e
s
, 

o
r 

o
ve

rw
h
e
lm

 s
e
w

e
ra

g
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
le

a
d

in
g

 t
o
 

c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
lie

s.
 

S
tu

d
ie

s
 o

f 
o
u
tb

re
a
k
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 w

a
te

r-
b

o
rn

e
 d

is
e
a
s
e
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 C
ry

p
to

s
p

o
ri
d

io
s
is

 

a
n
d

 V
e
ro

 c
y
to

to
x
in

-p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 

E
s
c
h
e
ri
c
h
ia

 C
o
li 

(V
T
E

C
),

 h
a
ve

 

s
h
o
w

n
 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 b

e
 l
in

k
e
d

 t
o
 

h
e
a
v
y
 r

a
in

fa
ll.

 F
lo

o
d

in
g

 m
a
y
 a

ls
o
 

c
a
u
s
e
 r

o
d

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 d

is
p

la
c
e
d

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
ir
 n

o
rm

a
l 
h
a
b

it
a
ts

, 
a
n
d

 

le
a
d

 t
o
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
lik

e
lih

o
o
d

 

o
f 

d
is

e
a
s
e
 t
ra

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 

h
u
m

a
n
s.

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

L
e
p

to
s
p

ir
o
s
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 e

p
is

o
d

e
s
 o

f 

fl
o
o
d

in
g

.

D
is

e
a
s
e
 c

a
u
s
in

g
 o

rg
a
n
is

m
s
 c

a
n
 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

 r
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

w
a
te

r 
a
n
d

 p
e
o
p

le
 c

a
n
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

in
fe

c
te

d
 w

h
ils

t 
s
w

im
m

in
g

 o
r 

ta
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 w

a
te

r 
s
p

o
rt

s.
  
 

C
o
n
ve

rs
e
ly

 p
e
ri
o
d

s
 o

f 
d

ro
u
g

h
t 

re
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

w
a
te

r 
in

 

ri
ve

r 
a
n
d

 l
a
k
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

to
 d

ilu
te

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
a
th

o
g

e
n
s
, 
a
n
d

 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 

b
e
e
n
 s

h
o
w

n
 t
o
 b

e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 

w
it
h
 d

is
e
a
s
e
 o

u
tb

re
a
k
s.

  
 

W
a
rm

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 w
a
rm

e
r 

w
a
te

r,
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 

u
s
e
 o

f 
a
ir
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
in

g
 o

r 
o
th

e
r 

c
o
o
lin

g
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t,
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

c
a
u
s
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 

L
e
g

io
n
n
a
ir
e
’s

 d
is

e
a
s
e
.

F
o

o
d

-b
o

rn
e
 i
n

fe
c
ti

o
n

s

M
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
u
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

m
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
u
s
e
 i
lln

e
s
s
 i
n
 

h
u
m

a
n
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 S
a
lm

o
n
e
lla

, 

th
ri
ve

 i
n
 w

a
rm

 w
a
te

r 
a
n
d

 

w
e
a
th

e
r. 

W
a
rm

e
r 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 

le
a
d

 t
o
 f
a
s
te

r 
re

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 o
f 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

 t
o
 c

a
u
s
e
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

re
a
c
h
e
d

 m
o
re

 q
u
ic

k
ly

. 

TH
ER

E 
A

RE
 A

 
N

UM
BE

R 
OF

 
ST

RA
TE

GI
ES

 T
O

 
RE

DU
CE

 T
HE

 
DI

RE
CT

 E
FF

EC
TS

 O
F 

CL
IM

A
TE

 C
HA

N
GE

.

SH
EF

FI
EL

D 
HA

S 
A

 H
IG

HE
R 

LE
VE

L 
OF

 F
UE

L 
PO

VE
RT

Y
 

TH
A

N
 T

HE
 E

N
GL

A
N

D
 

AV
ER

A
GE

.

C
it

y
3

 y
e

a
r 

E
W

D
I 

2
0

0
9

-2
0

1
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

(a
ll

 a
g

e
)

F
u

e
l 

p
o

v
e

rt
y

 

L
IH

C
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

(2
0

1
2

)

S
h

e
ffi

e
ld

1
2

.7
 (

 9
.0

 -
1

6
.6

)
1

1
.3

 (
1

1
.2

 -
 1

1
.4

)

N
o

tt
in

g
h

a
m

1
5

.1
 (

9
.6

 -
 2

0
.9

)
1

8
.4

 (
1

8
.1

 -
 1

8
.6

)

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

1
5

.6
 (

1
2

.7
 -

 1
8

.7
)

2
0

.1
 (

2
0

.0
 -

 2
0

.3
)

N
e

w
c

a
s

tl
e

1
5

.7
 (

1
0

.3
 -

 2
1

.3
)

1
3

.4
 (

1
3

.2
 -

 1
3

.6
)

B
ri

s
to

l
1

6
.0

 (
1

1
.3

 -
 2

0
.8

)
1

1
.1

 (
1

0
.9

 -
1

1
.2

)

M
a

n
c

h
e

s
te

r
1

6
.2

 (
1

1
.7

 -
 2

0
.9

)
1

5
.9

 (
1

5
.7

 -
 1

6
.0

)

L
e

e
d

s
 

1
6

.5
 (

1
3

.1
 -

 1
9

.9
)

1
1

.6
 (

1
1

.5
-1

1
.7

)

L
iv

e
rp

o
o

l
1

6
.8

 (
1

2
.7

 -
 2

1
.0

)
1

4
.4

 (
1

4
.3

 -
 1

4
.6

)

E
n

g
la

n
d

1
6

.5
 (

1
6

 -
 1

6
.9

)
1

0
.4

 (
1

0
.4

 -
 1

0
.4

)

F
ig

u
re

 3
:

Th
re

e 
ye

ar
 a

ll 
ag

e 
ex

ce
ss

 w
in

te
r 

d
ea

th
 in

d
ex

 a
n

d
 f

u
el

 p
ov

er
ty

 in
d

ic
at

o
rs

S
o

u
rc

e:
 P

u
b
lic

 H
ea

lt
h

 O
u

tc
o

m
es

 F
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 o
n

lin
e 

to
o

l h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.p

h
o

u
tc

o
m

es
.in

fo
/

Page 84



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
1
2

1
3

W
a
rm

e
r 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

a
n
d

 m
ild

e
r 

w
in

te
rs

 w
ill

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 fl

ie
s
 a

n
d

 

o
th

e
r 

p
e
s
ts

 t
o
 m

u
lt
ip

ly
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 a

ff
e
c
t 
fo

o
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 b

y
 

s
p

re
a
d

in
g

 d
is

e
a
s
e
. 
W

a
rm

e
r,
 

w
e
tt
e
r 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
ve

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 

ra
ts

 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

ro
d

e
n
ts

, 
le

a
d

in
g

 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
is

k
 o

f 
d

is
e
a
s
e
 

tr
a
n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 h

u
m

a
n
s.

  

In
s
e
c
t-

b
o

rn
e
 d

is
e
a
s
e

O
th

e
r 

in
fe

c
ti
o
u
s
 d

is
e
a
s
e
s
 a

re
 

c
a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 a

rt
h
ro

p
o
d

s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

m
o
s
q

u
it
o
s
 a

n
d

 t
ic

k
s
, 
c
a
rr

y
in

g
 

a
n
d

 t
ra

n
s
m

it
ti
n
g

 d
is

e
a
s
e
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
ir
 b

it
e
s.

 O
n
e
 s

u
c
h
 d

is
e
a
s
e
 i
s
 

L
y
m

e
 d

is
e
a
s
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 m

ild
 fl

u
-l
ik

e
 

s
y
m

p
to

m
s
 b

u
t 
c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 a

ff
e
c
t 

th
e
 n

e
rv

o
u
s
 s

y
s
te

m
. 
A

ro
u
n
d

 

2
,0

0
0
 t
o
 3

,0
0
0
 c

a
s
e
s
 o

f 
L
y
m

e
 

d
is

e
a
s
e
 o

c
c
u
r 

in
 t
h
e
 U

K
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r,
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 i
s
 

ri
s
in

g
 b

o
th

 h
e
re

 a
n
d

 i
n
 E

u
ro

p
e
. 
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
lim

a
te

 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
s
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g

 t
h
e
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d

is
e
a
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d

 

m
a
y
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 U

K
 m

o
re

 s
u
it
a
b

le
 

fo
r 

th
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

ti
c
k
 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
s
, 
o
r 

n
e
w

 a
rt

h
ro

p
o
d

s
, 

a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 b
y
 a

n
im

a
ls

 

a
n
d

 b
ir
d

s
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
tr

ie
s.

  

It
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 r

e
-

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

o
s
q

u
it
o
 b

o
rn

e
 

ill
n
e
s
s.

 

T
ic

k
s
 a

re
 f
o
u
n
d

 i
n
 w

o
o
d

la
n
d

s
, 

g
ra

s
s
la

n
d

, 
m

o
o
rl

a
n
d

, 
h
e
a
th

la
n
d

 

b
u
t 
a
ls

o
 s

o
m

e
 u

rb
a
n
 p

a
rk

s
 

a
n
d

 g
a
rd

e
n
s.

 T
h
is

 m
a
y
 b

e
 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 i
n
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
it
s
 

p
ro

x
im

it
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

e
a
k
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

a
n
d

 i
ts

 m
a
n
y
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s.

  

F
lo

o
d

 a
lle

v
ia

ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

th
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

w
e
tl
a
n
d

s
, 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 a

lt
e
r 

th
e
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 a
b

u
n
d

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
m

o
s
q

u
it
o
e
s
 

a
n
d

 t
ic

k
s
, 
a
n
d

 t
h
is

 m
a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

th
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

  

d
is

e
a
s
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

U
K

.

 2
.3

 S
o

ci
a

l 
a

n
d

 

d
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 i

m
p

a
ct

s 
o

f 

cl
im

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

D
av

id
 M

cC
oy

, Q
ue

en
 M

ar
y 

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

Lo
nd

on

C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 r

e
la

te
d

 

e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

G
H

G
) 

a
re

 t
ru

ly
 g

lo
b

a
l 

p
h
e
n
o
m

e
n
a
. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ts

 a
n
d

 b
in

d
s
 a

ll 
p

e
o
p

le
s
 

a
n
d

 a
ll 

n
a
ti
o
n
s.

P
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
 a

re
 c

o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 

to
 a

ll 
w

h
o
 s

u
ff

e
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 

o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 

o
f 

o
u
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 g

lo
b

a
l 

w
a
rm

in
g

, 
b

o
th

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
t 
a
n
d

 

n
o
w

. 
T
h
e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 e

a
t,
 t
ra

ve
l,
 

c
o
m

m
u
te

, 
re

la
x
, 
s
h
o
p
, 
c
o
o
k
, 

b
a
th

e
 a

n
d

 w
a
rm

 o
u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 i
s
 

g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 d

o
n
e
 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 

fa
r 

e
x
c
e
e
d

s
 o

u
r 

‘f
a
ir
 s

h
a
re

’ 
o
f 

th
e
 e

a
rt

h
’s

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 t
o
 a

b
s
o
rb

 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
c
a
u
s
in

g
 

c
a
ta

s
tr

o
p

h
ic

 g
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

. 

T
h
e
 I
P

C
C

’s
 s

e
c
o
n
d

 W
o
rk

in
g

 

G
ro

u
p

 (
IP

P
C

-W
G

2
) 

re
c
e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

 

o
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

d
e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 h

o
w

 m
o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rs

t 

e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
d

 b
y
 c

o
u
n
tr

ie
s
 a

n
d

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 p
o
o
re

s
t,
 

a
n
d

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
ve

 m
a
d

e
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 g

lo
b

a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

. 
 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

w
ill

 v
a
ry

 a
c
ro

s
s
 r

e
g

io
n
s
 a

n
d

 

w
ill

 d
e
p

e
n
d

 o
n
 m

a
n
y
 f
a
c
to

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
a
t 
a
re

 c
a
lle

d
 

‘n
o
n
-c

lim
a
te

 s
tr

e
s
s
o
rs

’ 
(t

h
in

g
s
 

th
a
t 
w

ill
 a

g
g

ra
v
a
te

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 

o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

 d
e
fo

re
s
ta

ti
o
n
, 
ra

p
id

 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 w
a
r)

, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 

s
o
c
ie

ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 o
r 

a
d

a
p

t.
 O

f 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
n
o
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

la
te

s
t 
IP

C
C

-W
G

2
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
a
s
 i
ts

 

e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 t
o
 p

re
c
ip

it
a
te

 

s
y
s
te

m
ic

 c
ri
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 w
h
o
le

s
a
le

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

la
rg

e
-s

c
a
le

 m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
(b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
u
n
tr

ie
s
 o

r 

w
it
h
in

 c
o
u
n
tr

ie
s
).

A
m

o
n
g

 t
h
e
 ‘
k
e
y
 r

is
k
s
’ 
(d

e
fi
n
e
d

 

a
s
 r

is
k
s
 w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 

s
e
ve

re
 o

r 
ir

re
ve

rs
ib

le
 a

d
ve

rs
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
, 
o
r 

ri
s
k
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

to
 a

ve
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 a

d
a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 o

r 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
) 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 I
P

C
C

-

W
G

2
 w

e
re

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 t
o
 b

re
a
k
d

o
w

n
 

o
f 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 

a
n
d

 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y,

 w
a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
ly

, 
a
n
d

 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
; 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 b

re
a
k
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 a
n
d

 

w
a
te

r 
s
y
s
te

m
s.

 S
o
m

e
 p

la
c
e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 u

n
in

h
a
b

it
a
b

le
 o

r 
p

ro
n
e
 

to
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 d
is

a
s
te

rs
, 

u
n
d

e
rm

in
in

g
 l
iv

e
lih

o
o
d

s
 a

n
d

 

b
re

a
k
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
s
o
lid

a
ri
ty

. 
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
b

e
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d

 w
it
h
 c

e
rt

a
in

ty
, 
th

e
re

 

is
 a

 s
o
u
n
d

, 
s
c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 b

a
s
is

 

fo
r 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 t
o
 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 

s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
c
h
a
o
s
, 
v
io

le
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

s
u
ff

e
ri
n
g

. 
O

n
e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

to
 d

o
 t
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
in

k
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

d
ro

u
g

h
t 
in

 E
a
s
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e
 a

n
d

 

th
e
 s

u
b

s
e
q

u
e
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

R
u
s
s
ia

n
 g

ra
in

 h
a
rv

e
s
t 
in

 2
0
1
0
. 

T
h
e
 r

is
e
 i
n
 w

h
e
a
t 
a
n
d

 h
e
n
c
e
 

b
re

a
d

 p
ri
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
fo

llo
w

e
d

 

a
re

 t
h
o
u
g

h
t 
to

 h
a
ve

 h
e
lp

e
d

 

p
re

c
ip

it
a
te

 t
h
e
 ‘A

ra
b

 s
p

ri
n
g

’,
 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 s

u
b

s
e
q

u
e
n
t 
p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

in
s
ta

b
ili

ty
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
g

io
n
. 
T
h
is

 

in
 t
u
rn

 a
g

g
ra

v
a
te

d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 

te
n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
fl
ic

ts
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 a

rm
e
d

 c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
th

a
t 
n
o
w

 

e
n
g

u
lf
s
 S

y
ri
a
 a

n
d

 I
ra

q
 –

 a
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
 

a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 

o
f 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 B

ri
ta

in
, 
a
n
d

 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

.

E
u
ro

p
e
 w

ill
 i
ts

e
lf

 e
x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

th
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 a

n
d

 g
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

 

b
u
t 
it
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

. 
D

ro
u
g

h
t,
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
 

h
e
a
t 
a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b

a
s
ic

 

c
o
m

m
o
d

it
ie

s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 a

ll 

d
e
p

e
n
d

. 
N

e
w

 w
a
rs

 o
ve

r 
s
c
a
rc

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

g
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

 a
n
d

 

e
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
d

e
g

ra
d

a
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 a
ff

e
c
t 
o
u
r 

s
in

g
le

 a
n
d

 s
h
a
re

d
 

g
lo

b
a
l 
w

e
a
th

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
. 
W

a
r 

is
 

n
o
t 
o
n
ly

 h
a
rm

fu
l 
lo

c
a
lly

 w
h
e
re

 

it
 i
s
 o

c
c
u
rr

in
g

, 
b

u
t 
a
ls

o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
fi
e
ld

. 
M

a
s
s
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
f 

re
fu

g
e
e
s
, 
w

ill
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b

ly
 p

la
c
e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
s
o
c
ia

l 
p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 

c
o
u
n
tr

ie
s
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e
. 
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 i
s
 p

ro
u
d

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 C
it
y
 

o
f 

S
a
n
c
tu

a
ry

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
s
 

re
fu

g
e
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

. 
 

It
 c

a
re

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
n
e
w

 

a
rr

iv
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

it
y,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 

s
o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 m

a
d

e
 w

o
rs

e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
ve

 e
n
d

u
re

d
, 

th
o
u
g

h
 i
t 
is

 a
w

a
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 c

a
n
 

p
la

c
e
 a

 s
tr

a
in

 o
n
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s.

  

C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 w

ill
 c

a
u
s
e
 m

o
re

 

c
iv

il 
c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
a
n
d

 w
a
r,
 a

n
d

 m
o
re

 

d
is

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
e
o
p

le
s
 a

n
d

 

m
a
s
s
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
. 
W

h
e
th

e
r 

w
e
’r

e
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 o
r 

S
h
a
n
g

h
a
i,
 

D
o
n
c
a
s
te

r 
o
r 

D
a
c
c
a
, 
w

e
 s

h
a
re

 

o
n
e
 w

o
rl

d
.

TH
E 

W
OR

ST
 

EF
FE

CT
S 

OF
 C

LI
M

A
TE

 
CH

A
N

GE
 W

IL
L 

BE
 

EX
PE

RI
EN

CE
D 

BY
 

CO
M

M
UN

IT
IE

S 
TH

A
T 

A
RE

 T
HE

 P
OO

RE
ST

.

SH
EF

FI
EL

D 
IS

 
PR

OU
D 

TO
 B

E 
A

 C
IT

Y
 

OF
 S

A
N

CT
UA

RY
 

TH
A

T 
W

EL
CO

M
ES

 
RE

FU
GE

ES
 A

N
D

 
A

SY
LU

M
 S

EE
KE

RS
.

Page 85



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
1
4

1
5

3 
 W

ha
t s

ho
ul

d 
w

e 
be

 d
oi

ng
 a

bo
ut

 it
?

S
ec

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

 d
ra

w
s 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

w
e 

ca
n

 t
a

k
e 

to
 m

it
ig

at
e,

 o
r 

ad
a

p
t 

to
, 

th
e 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

g
e.

 I
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g

 g
re

en
h

o
u

se
 g

a
s 

em
is

si
o

n
s,

 t
h

es
e 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
al

so
 b

en
efi

t 
o

u
r 

h
ea

lt
h

. 
#

ey
 i

n
cl

u
d

e:
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 m
o

re
 a

ct
iv

e 
fo

rm
s 

o
f 

tr
av

el
; 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 o
u

r 
co

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

ea
t;

 m
a

k
in

g
 s

u
re

 o
u

r 
h

o
m

es
 a

re
 

h
ea

te
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
el

y
; 

an
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
in

g
 s

o
ci

al
 c

a
p

it
al

 i
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s.
 #

e 
im

p
o

rt
an

ce
 

o
f 

u
n

d
er

p
in

n
in

g
 p

la
n

s 
to

 i
m

p
le

m
en

t 
a 

su
st

ai
n

a
b

le
 c

ar
b

o
n

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 p
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 

to
 p

re
p

ar
e 

fo
r 

ex
tr

em
e 

w
ea

th
er

 e
v

en
ts

 i
s 

d
is

cu
ss

ed
. 

F
in

al
ly

, 
th

e 
se

ct
io

n
 n

o
te

s 
th

e 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 u

rb
an

 d
es

ig
n

 c
an

 m
a

k
e 

to
 i

m
p

ro
v

in
g

 t
h

e 
cl

im
at

e 
an

d
 o

u
r 

h
ea

lt
h

.

3
.1

 A
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

 o
r 

m
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
?

D
av

id
 P

en
ch

eo
n,

 N
H

S
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
U

ni
t

T
h
e
 fi

rs
t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

h
a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 t
h
e
 d

a
m

a
g

e
 

th
a
t 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 c

o
u
ld

 d
o
 

to
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 i
f 

w
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u
a
l.
  

W
e
 n

o
w

 t
u
rn

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s.

 

F
iv

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
 t
h
e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
c
ti
o
n
s.

  

1
. 

T
h
e
 s

c
a
le

 o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 i
s
 

im
m

e
n
s
e
. 
In

s
te

a
d

 o
f 

w
a
s
ti
n
g

 

ti
m

e
 d

e
c
id

in
g

 i
f 

w
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

ta
k
e
 o

n
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 o

r 
a
n
o
th

e
r,
 w

e
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

 h
o
w

 t
o
 d

o
 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
o
s
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
 k

n
o
w

 

to
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
ve

. 
 

2
. 

T
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 l
ik

e
ly

 

to
 b

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
ve

 i
f 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

b
a
s
e
d

 o
n
 w

e
ll-

c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 c
a
re

 s
e
c
to

rs
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

s
, 
a
n
d

 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s.
 

3
. 

T
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
n
e
e
d

s
 

to
 s

e
t 
a
n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 i
n
 h

o
w

 

to
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 w

a
y
s
 

b
y
 t
a
k
in

g
 v

e
ry

 v
is

ib
le

 a
n
d

 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
s.

 

4
. 

M
a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
e
lp

 

b
o
th

 a
d

a
p

t 
to

 a
n
d

 m
it
ig

a
te

 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 a

ls
o
 o

ff
e
r 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

 h
e
a
lt
h
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

. 

5
. 

W
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
a
ve

 m
u
c
h
 t
im

e
 

le
ft
, 
s
o
 w

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
w

a
it
 f
o
r 

y
e
t 
m

o
re

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 

s
ta

rt
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 n

o
w

.

A
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 m

u
s
t 
n
o
t 
c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
. 
F
o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
, 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
ir
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
in

g
 t
o
 d

e
a
l 

w
it
h
 o

ve
rh

e
a
te

d
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 
a
n
d

 

w
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
n
e
e
d

 i
t,
 b

u
t 
w

e
 d

o
 

n
e
e
d

 a
lm

o
s
t 
u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
p

a
s
s
iv

e
 

w
a
rm

in
g

 a
n
d

 c
o
o
lin

g
 o

f 
o
u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g

s.
 W

e
 m

u
s
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
 

n
a
tu

ra
l 
w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
lie

s
 i
n
 a

 

w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 w

a
te

r 
e
ve

ry
 

d
a
y,

 b
u
t 
a
vo

id
s
 fl

o
o
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 

d
ro

u
g

h
ts

. 
W

e
 m

u
s
t 
d

e
ve

lo
p

 

s
tr

o
n
g

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 g
o
o
d

 p
la

c
e
s
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d

 

w
o
rk

, 
b

u
t 
a
re

 a
ls

o
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
t 
in

 

ti
m

e
s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 c
ri
s
is

.

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

is
 

re
p

o
rt

 g
iv

e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 m

u
s
t 
ta

k
e
 n

o
w

 

- 
w

h
e
re

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
ve

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

a
n
d

 a
lm

o
s
t 
im

m
e
d

ia
te

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

: 

“c
o
-b

e
n
e
fi
ts

”.
 M

a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
h
o
w

 w
e
 f
e
e
d

 

o
u
rs

e
lv

e
s
, 
a
n
d

 h
o
w

 w
e
 m

o
ve

 

a
b

o
u
t,
 c

a
n
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 h

e
a
lt
h
 n

o
w

, 

a
n
d

 a
ls

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

in
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

. 
F
o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
, 

lo
c
a
l 
g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

c
a
n
 a

c
ti
ve

ly
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
 

a
 l
o
c
a
l 
fo

o
d

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
re

a
te

s
 m

o
re

 f
u
lfi

lli
n
g

 j
o
b

s
, 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
s
 f
re

s
h
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a

n
d

 

ta
s
ty

 f
o
o
d

, 
a
n
d

 s
tr

e
n
g

th
e
n
s
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
o
c
ia

l 
lin

k
s
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 o

u
r 

fu
tu

re
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 d

e
p

e
n
d

s.
 

T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 o

u
r 

d
ie

ts
 m

o
re

 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a

n
d

 e
n
jo

y
a
b

le
, 
m

a
k
e
 

ta
s
ty

 f
o
o
d

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
, 
a
n
d

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 p

re
ve

n
t 

h
a
rm

fu
l 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 

BU
SI

N
ES

S 
A

S 
US

UA
L 

IS
 N

OT
 A

N
 O

PT
IO

N
: 

W
E 

N
EE

D 
TO

 F
OC

US
 

ON
 T

HE
 S

OL
UT

IO
N

S.

Page 86



C
L

IM
A

T
E

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 A
N

D
 H

E
A

LT
H

  
| 
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  
| 
 C

L
IM

A
T

E
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
1
6

1
7

L
o
c
a
l 
g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

N
H

S
 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

m
o
ve

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

m
a
n
y
 p

e
o
p

le
, 

g
o
o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s.

 M
a
n
y
 

m
o
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 h

o
m

e
 u

s
in

g
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 

b
e
tt
e
r. 

A
c
ti
ve

 t
ra

ve
l 
(w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n
d

 

c
y
c
lin

g
) 

a
n
d

 p
u
b

lic
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
im

p
ro

ve
s
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 

h
e
lp

s
 p

e
o
p

le
 s

ti
c
k
 t
o
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

w
e
ig

h
t,
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
s
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
a
ir
 

p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s.

T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

s
h
o
w

s
 h

o
w

 p
re

ve
n
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 

p
re

ve
n
ta

b
le

, 
a
d

a
p

ti
n
g

 t
o
 

in
e
v
it
a
b

le
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
ve

 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
in

 m
o
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d

 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

 w
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
b

le
m

 w
o
rs

e
, 
c
a
n
 

a
ll 

c
re

a
te

 b
o
th

 i
m

m
e
d

ia
te

 a
n
d

  

lo
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

.

E
ve

ry
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y,

 i
n
 

e
ve

ry
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
is

 f
a
c
e
d

 w
it
h
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 b
o
th

 l
if
e
 

th
re

a
te

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
if
e
 a

ffi
rm

in
g

. 
 

If
 w

e
 w

a
n
t 
to

 l
e
a
ve

 a
 f
a
ir
 a

n
d

 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
e
g

a
c
y
 w

e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

ro
u
d

 

o
f,
 t
h
e
n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

a
n
d

 e
m

b
e
d

d
in

g
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
e
ve

ry
 l
e
ve

l 
a
n
d

 

in
 e

ve
ry

 a
re

a
 o

f 
o
u
r 

liv
e
s
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 n

o
w

.

A
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
s
is

ts
 o

f 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g

 t
h
e
 u

n
a
vo

id
a
b

le
. 
 

M
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
vo

lv
e
s
 a

vo
id

in
g

 t
h
e
 

u
n
m

a
n
a
g

e
a
b

le
. 
 W

e
 m

u
s
t 
d

o
 

b
o
th

, 
w

e
 m

u
s
t 
d

o
 t
h
e
m

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r,
 

a
n
d

 w
e
 m

u
s
t 
d

o
 t
h
e
m

 n
o
w

.

3
.2

 A
ct

iv
e

 t
ra

v
e

l

D
aw

n 
Lo

ck
le

y,
 D

un
ca

n 
M

cI
nt

yr
e 

an
d 

M
ar

k 
D

al
y,

 S
h

ef
fi

el
d 

C
it

y 
C

ou
nc

il

W
h

y
 i
s
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t?

C
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 

tr
a
ve

l 
c
a
n
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 

g
a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y,

 t
h
e
re

b
y
 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 b

u
rd

e
n
 o

f 
ill

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 e
a
rl
y
 d

e
a
th

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 

th
e
s
e
. 
C

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y,

 b
o
th

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 c

lim
a
te

 b
e
n
e
fi
t.
 

O
u
r 

o
ve

r-
re

lia
n
c
e
 o

n
 f
o
s
s
il 

fu
e
lle

d
 c

a
rs

 a
n
d

 b
u
s
e
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 b

o
th

 c
a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 n
o
n
 C

O
2
 

a
ir
 p

o
llu

ti
o
n
. 
E

x
p

o
s
u
re

 t
o
 

a
ir
 p

o
llu

ti
o
n
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 o

f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p

le
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 

th
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
a
c
u
te

 a
n
d

 c
h
ro

n
ic

 

d
is

e
a
s
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 h

e
a
rt

 a
tt
a
c
k
s
 

a
n
d

 s
tr

o
k
e
s
, 
lu

n
g

 c
a
n
c
e
r 

a
n
d

 

a
s
th

m
a
. 
E

q
u
a
lly

, 
la

c
k
 o

f 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 

p
e
o
p

le
 m

a
k
in

g
 e

ve
n
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

e
s
t 

o
f 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 b

y
 c

a
r 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

w
a
lk

in
g

 o
r 

c
y
c
lin

g
, 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 

to
 t
h
e
 r

is
e
 i
n
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y.

  

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
in

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 

a
re

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 

m
e
d

ic
a
l 
c
o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

ty
p

e
 2

 d
ia

b
e
te

s
, 
h
e
a
rt

 d
is

e
a
s
e
, 

s
tr

o
k
e
s
, 
c
e
rt

a
in

 c
a
n
c
e
rs

, 

a
rt

h
ri
ti
s
, 
a
n
d

 p
o
o
r 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
.  

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g

 a
c
ti
ve

 t
ra

ve
l 
–
 w

a
lk

in
g

 

a
n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 -

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 p
la

y
s
 

a
n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
ro

le
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

in
g

 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
.

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

2
1
%

 o
f 

th
e
 U

K
’s

 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 
w

it
h
 m

o
re

 

th
a
n
 h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
is

 c
o
m

in
g

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a
te

 c
a
rs

. 
T
h
e
 

to
ta

l 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 

(m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 k

ilo
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 o

f 
C

O
2
 

(K
tC

O
2
) 

d
e
c
lin

e
d

 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
5
 a

n
d

 2
0
1
2
 

(f
ro

m
 5

8
5
.0

 t
o
 5

3
0
.0

 K
tC

O
2
).

  

E
m

is
s
io

n
s
 p

e
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

 u
s
e
 a

re
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
 

h
a
ve

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 f
ro

m
 1

.1
 t
o
 1

.0
 

to
n
n
e
s
 o

f 
C

O
2
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d

. 
W

e
 h

a
ve

 a
ls

o
 s

e
e
n
 

m
o
d

e
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 

a
tt
ri
b

u
te

d
 t
o
 a

ir
 p

o
llu

ti
o
n
 c

a
u
s
e
d

 

b
y
 f
o
s
s
il 

fu
e
lle

d
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

, 

b
u
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fi
g

u
re

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

0
0
 d

e
a
th

s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r,
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

u
n
a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

ly
 h

ig
h
.

In
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 o
n
ly

 5
5
%

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 s

e
lf
-r

e
p

o
rt

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

1
5
0
 m

in
u
te

s
 o

f 
m

o
d

e
ra

te
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

 w
e
e
k
 (

th
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

e
d

 l
e
ve

l)
. 
3
0
%

 

re
p

o
rt

 n
o
t 
e
ve

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 3

0
 

m
in

u
te

s
 a

 w
e
e
k
. 
If

 c
a
r 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 

o
f 

u
n
d

e
r 

2
 m

ile
s
 w

e
re

 t
o
 b

e
 

m
a
d

e
 o

n
 f
o
o
t 
o
r 

b
y
 b

ic
y
c
le

, 
th

e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
e
ve

l 
o
f 

d
is

e
a
s
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

in
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t.
  

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
ly

 3
%

 o
f 

th
e
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 u
s
in

g
 

a
 b

ic
y
c
le

 a
s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
tr

a
ve

l.

W
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 w
e
 d

o
?

P
e
o
p

le
 h

a
ve

 m
a
n
y
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b

s
ti
tu

ti
n
g

 a
c
ti
ve

 

tr
a
ve

l 
fo

r 
m

o
to

ri
s
e
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 h

ill
y
 t
e
rr

a
in

, 

fe
a
rs

 a
b

o
u
t 
ro

a
d

 s
a
fe

ty
, 
o
ve

r 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d

is
ta

n
c
e
s
, 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

e
ff

o
rt

, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
h
o
w

e
rs

 i
n
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
s.

 T
h
e
re

 

a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
e
 c

a
n
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 

p
e
o
p

le
 t
o
 o

ve
rc

o
m

e
 t
h
e
s
e
 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

. 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

’s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
c
ti
ve

 

tr
a
ve

l 
w

a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 i
n
 o

u
r 

2
0
1
0
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 ‘A

 v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

’.
 T

h
is

 

o
u
tl
in

e
d

 h
o
w

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 w
o
u
ld

 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 a

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
ve

 l
o
w

 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 a

n
d

 a
 b

e
tt
e
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 c

re
a
te

 a
 c

u
lt
u
re

 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

a
r 

w
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
a
lw

a
y
s
 

b
e
 t
h
e
 fi

rs
t 
c
h
o
ic

e
, 
a
n
d

 m
o
s
t 

im
p

o
rt

a
n
tl
y
 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
.

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 
th

e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

p
u
b

lis
h
e
d

 ‘
M

o
ve

 M
o
re

’ 
p

la
n
 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 
a
 5

 y
e
a
r 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 s

e
d

e
n
ta

ry
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
s
 

in
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

. 
A

 k
e
y
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
la

n
 i
s
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
c
ti
ve

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 

m
a
k
e
 i
t 
e
a
s
ie

r 
fo

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 t
o
 

b
u
ild

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
ir
 

d
a
ily

 l
iv

e
s.

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 

S
tr

e
e
ts

 A
h
e
a
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

th
e
 C

it
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

b
u
ild

 n
e
w

 r
o
a
d

 l
a
y
o
u
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 r
o
a
d

 n
e
tw

o
rk

, 
c
re

a
ti
n
g

 

m
o
re

 c
y
c
le

 p
a
th

s
 o

n
 r

o
a
d

s
 a

n
d

, 

w
h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 
s
h
a
re

d
 w

a
lk

in
g

 

a
n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 p

a
th

s.
 S

ig
n
p

o
s
ti
n
g

 

w
a
lk

in
g

 r
o
u
te

s
, 
w

it
h
 t
im

e
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 w

a
lk

 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

ft
e
n
 o

ve
re

s
ti
m

a
te

d
, 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 d

is
ta

n
c
e
s
, 
w

o
u
ld

 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

o
re

 p
e
o
p

le
 t
o
 w

a
lk

.

In
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
’s

 ‘
G

e
t 
B

ri
ta

in
 C

y
c
lin

g
’ 

re
p

o
rt

, 
th

e
 E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d

 P
o
lic

y
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 a

 

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n
q

u
ir

y
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

in
 t
h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

c
y
c
lin

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y,
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T
h
e
 

in
q

u
ir

y
 e

n
d

o
rs

e
d

 t
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 

th
e
 G

e
t 
B

ri
ta

in
 C

y
c
lin

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 

a
ll 

lo
c
a
l 
jo

u
rn

e
y
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

b
y
 b

ic
y
c
le

 t
o
 1

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
2
5
 

a
n
d

 2
5
%

 b
y
 2

0
5
0
, 
a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n
g

 a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 

o
th

e
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

y
c
lin

g
. 
T
h
is

 w
a
s
 

th
e
n
 e

n
d

o
rs

e
d

 b
y
 C

a
b

in
e
t 
in

 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4
.

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 s

p
e
e
d

 l
im

it
s
 o

n
 

ro
a
d

s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 

a
 m

o
d

a
l 
s
h
if
t 
a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 c

a
r 

u
s
a
g

e
 t
o
 m

o
re

 w
a
lk

in
g

 a
n
d

 

c
y
c
lin

g
. 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 

s
e
ve

n
 2

0
 m

p
h
 z

o
n
e
s
, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

 

is
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

th
is

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

to
 1

0
8
 o

ve
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 

W
h
ils

t 
im

p
ro

ve
d

 r
o
a
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 

a
lo

n
e
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
s
 2

0
 m

p
h
 l
im

it
s
, 
a
ir
 

p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ffi
c
 n

o
is

e
 d

ro
p

 

w
h
e
n
 s

p
e
e
d

 i
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n
d

 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 p
le

a
s
a
n
t 

a
n
d

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
ve

 p
la

c
e
s.

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 

u
s
e
 o

f 
s
h
a
re

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

p
a
c
e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l.
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

•
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 d
e
ve

lo
p

 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

o
f 

s
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n
g

 w
a
lk

in
g

 r
o
u
te

s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 i
t 
ta

k
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 

th
e
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
.

•
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 p
e
o
p

le
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

tr
a
ve

lin
g

 s
h
o
rt

 

d
is

ta
n
c
e
s
 o

n
 f
o
o
t 
o
r 

b
y
 

b
ic

y
c
le

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 b

y
 c

a
r,
 

a
n
d

 s
ig

n
 u

p
 t
o
 ‘
M

o
ve

 M
o
re

’ 
a
t 

w
w

w
.m

o
ve

m
o
re

s
h
e
ffi

e
ld

.c
o
m

.

•
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
m

m
it
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

2
0
 

m
p

h
 z

o
n
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 a

s
 

q
u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
.

3
.3

 R
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 m

e
a

t 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

Je
ss

 W
il

so
n,

 S
h

ef
fi

el
d 

C
it

y 
C

ou
nc

il
 

W
h

y
 i
s
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t?

M
e
a
t 
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 

g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 

a
n
d

 e
x
c
e
s
s
 m

e
a
t 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d

 m
e
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
, 
is

 b
a
d

 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 
 

C
h
a
n
g

in
g

 o
u
r 

d
ie

t 
c
a
n
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
b

o
th

 c
lim

a
te

 a
n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
. 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

G
lo

b
a
l 
m

e
a
t 
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

p
re

d
ic

te
d

 t
o
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 d

o
u
b

le
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 2

0
0
0
 a

n
d

 2
0
5
0
. 
F
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 p

e
o
p

le
 m

e
a
t 
is

 n
o
w

 

a
rt

ifi
c
ia

lly
 c

h
e
a
p

 a
n
d

 p
le

n
ti
fu

l 

d
u
e
 t
o
 a

g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
s
u
b

s
id

ie
s.

  

O
n
c
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

e
d

 a
s
 a

 t
re

a
t,
 i
t 

is
 n

o
w

 a
 s

ta
p

le
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
a
n
y
 

PH
YS

IC
A

L 
IN

A
CT

IV
IT

Y 
A

N
D

 
OB

ES
IT

Y 
A

RE
 

A
SS

OC
IA

TE
D 

W
IT

H 
 A

 
RA

N
GE

 O
F 

M
ED

IC
A

L 
CO

N
DI

TI
ON

S.

W
E 

W
A

N
T 

TO
 M

A
KE

 
IT

 E
A

SI
ER

 T
O 

BE
 

PH
YS

IC
A

LL
Y 

A
CT

IV
E.

Page 87



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
 

1
8

1
9

p
e
o
p

le
’s

 d
ie

t.
 I
n
 2

0
0
9
 m

e
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
 (

8
4
 k

g
/ 

p
e
rs

o
n
) 

w
a
s
 d

o
u
b

le
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rl

d
w

id
e
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 (

4
2
 k

g
/

p
e
rs

o
n
).

 

M
e
a
t 
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

 d
ri
ve

r 

o
f 

d
e
fo

re
s
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 l
a
n
d

 

u
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 w

h
ic

h
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
s
 

g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 

d
e
s
tr

o
y
s
 v

a
lu

a
b

le
 c

a
rb

o
n
 s

in
k
s
 

a
n
d

 w
ild

lif
e
 h

a
b

it
a
t.
 I
t 
p

ro
d

u
c
e
s
 

s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
tl
y
 m

o
re

 g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 

g
a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
n
 v

e
g

e
ta

b
le

 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 

p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 b

e
e
f 

re
le

a
s
e
s
 3

0
 k

g
 

o
f 

C
O

2
 p

e
r 

k
g

, 
w

h
ile

 c
a
rr

o
ts

, 

p
o
ta

to
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
ic

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 0

.4
2
, 

0
.4

5
 a

n
d

 1
.3

 k
g

 r
e
s
p

e
c
ti
ve

ly
. 
 

1
4
.5

%
 o

f 
g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b

u
te

d
 

to
 l
iv

e
s
to

c
k
. 
B

e
e
f 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
4
1
%

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
c
to

r’
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s.

 

C
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 g

ro
w

in
g

 c
ro

p
s
 

fo
r 

d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
, 
re

a
ri
n
g

 

a
n
im

a
ls

 f
o
r 

fo
o
d

 u
s
e
s
 l
a
rg

e
 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
a
g

ri
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
la

n
d

 (
3
0
%

 

o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rl

d
’s

 l
a
n
d

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
 i
s
 

u
s
e
d

 t
o
 f
e
e
d

 l
iv

e
s
to

c
k
) 

a
n
d

 v
a
s
t 

q
u
a
n
ti
ti
e
s
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
(a

lm
o
s
t 
5
0
 

ti
m

e
s
 m

o
re

 w
a
te

r 
is

 n
e
e
d

e
d

 

to
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 1

 k
g

 o
f 

b
e
e
f 

th
a
n
 

is
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 1

 k
g

 o
f 

ve
g

e
ta

b
le

s
).

 T
h
is

 c
re

a
te

s
 b

o
th

 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
ju

s
ti
c
e
 

a
rg

u
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

e
a
ti
n
g

 l
e
s
s
 m

e
a
t.
 

O
ve

rc
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

e
a
t 
in

 

th
e
 w

e
s
t 
is

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 e

p
id

e
m

ic
, 
w

h
ils

t 
m

a
n
y
 

p
e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 w
o
rl

d
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 d

ro
u
g

h
t 
a
n
d

 f
a
m

in
e
 

th
a
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

lle
v
ia

te
d

 i
f 

m
o
re

 

fo
o
d

 w
e
re

 g
ro

w
n
 f
o
r 

h
u
m

a
n
 

d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
. 
F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 

th
e
 g

ra
in

 t
h
a
t 
is

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 g

ro
w

n
 

to
 f
e
e
d

 l
iv

e
s
to

c
k
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

e
n
o
u
g

h
 t
o
 f
e
e
d

 a
b

o
u
t 
8
4
0
 m

ill
io

n
 

p
e
o
p

le
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 v
e
g

e
ta

ri
a
n
 

d
ie

t.

M
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

0
 t
im

e
s
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

fo
s
s
il 

fu
e
l 
e
n
e
rg

y
 i
s
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 1

 K
c
a
l 
o
f 

m
e
a
t 
b

a
s
e
d

 

p
ro

te
in

 t
h
a
n
 i
s
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 

1
 K

c
a
l 
o
f 

g
ra

in
 b

a
s
e
d

 p
ro

te
in

. 

It
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
if

 e
ve

ry
o
n
e
 

in
 t
h
e
 U

K
 a

b
s
ta

in
e
d

 f
ro

m
 e

a
ti
n
g

 

m
e
a
t 
fo

r 
ju

s
t 
o
n
e
 d

a
y
 a

 w
e
e
k
 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 s
a
ve

 1
3
 m

ill
io

n
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 

o
f 

c
a
rb

o
n
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

–
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

s
a
v
in

g
 t
h
a
n
 t
a
k
in

g
 5

 m
ill

io
n
 c

a
rs

 

o
ff

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d

. 

A
 d

ie
t 
c
o
n
s
is

ti
n
g

 o
f 

le
s
s
 m

e
a
t 

a
n
d

 l
e
s
s
 h

ig
h
ly

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d

 f
o
o
d

 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 a

n
d

 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
. 
T
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

a
ti
n
g

 m
o
re

 f
ru

it
 

a
n
d

 v
e
g

e
ta

b
le

s
, 
le

s
s
 f
a
t,
 s

a
lt
 a

n
d

 

s
u
g

a
r,
 a

n
d

 e
a
ti
n
g

 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d

 

lo
c
a
lly

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

 f
o
o
d

. 
S

w
it
c
h
in

g
 

to
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
d

ie
t 
w

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 

d
is

e
a
s
e
, 
fe

w
e
r 

c
a
n
c
e
rs

 

(e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 b

o
w

e
l 
c
a
n
c
e
r)

 a
n
d

 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
re

 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 a
c
ti
ve

, 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 

to
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
 o

ve
ra

ll 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 a

n
d

 p
re

m
a
tu

re
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 

in
 t
h
e
 C

it
y.

 O
ve

ra
ll,

 d
ie

t 
in

 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 i
s
 p

o
o
r. 

 O
n
ly

 2
5
%

 o
f 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 a
d

u
lt
s
 e

a
t 
fi
ve

 o
r 

m
o
re

 

p
o
rt

io
n
s
 o

f 
fr

u
it
 o

r 
ve

g
e
ta

b
le

s
 

a
 d

a
y,

 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
2
8
%

. 
A

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

5
8
0
 d

e
a
th

s
 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 a
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
ve

n
te

d
 i
f 

d
ie

ts
 

c
o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
u
tr

it
io

n
a
l 

g
u
id

e
lin

e
s.

W
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 w
e
 d

o
?

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 l
it
tl
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

a
b

o
u
t 
h
o
w

 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
ve

ly
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

m
e
a
t 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 p

e
r 

s
e
, 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

to
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 e

a
ti
n
g

 h
a
b

it
s
 i
s
 

w
e
ll 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

. 
To

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 

m
e
a
t 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 w

e
 n

e
e
d

 

to
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 t
o
 

c
h
o
o
s
e
 t
o
 e

a
t 
le

s
s
 m

e
a
t 
b

y
 

ra
is

in
g

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o
w

e
r 

ri
s
k
 

o
f 

c
a
n
c
e
r,
 a

n
d

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

im
p

a
c
t,
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
n
o
rm

s
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
rv

e
 a

s
 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
 

C
h
a
n
g

in
g

 s
o
c
ia

lly
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

id
e
a
s
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 a

 

‘n
o
rm

a
l’ 

m
e
a
l,
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 

b
e
lie

f 
th

a
t 
it
 m

u
s
t 
c
o
n
ta

in
 m

e
a
t 

in
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o
 v

e
g

e
ta

b
le

s
 a

n
d

 

c
a
rb

o
h
y
d

ra
te

s
, 
w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 
  

S
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 p
ri
c
in

g
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
ri
n
g

 a
b

o
u
t 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 m

e
a
l 
c
h
o
ic

e
s
 b

y
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 c
o
n
ve

n
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 

s
o
c
ia

b
le

 d
in

in
g

, 
o
r 

in
te

rv
e
n
in

g
 

in
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 a
n
d

 c
o
n
te

n
t 
o
f 

m
e
a
l 

ro
u
ti
n
e
s.

 L
o
c
a
l 
le

ve
l 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

m
ig

h
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 h

o
s
p

it
a
ls

, 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
n
d

 w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 c

a
n
te

e
n
s
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g

 m
e
a
t 
fr

e
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
, 
o
r 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

e
a
t 
o
n
 s

o
m

e
 d

a
y
s
 

e
a
c
h
 w

e
e
k
. 
A

n
y
 d

ie
t 
re

la
te

d
 

w
o
rk

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 c

o
o
k
in

g
 

s
k
ill

s
, 
o
r 

w
e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 
is

 a
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 m
e
a
t 
fr

e
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s.

ON
LY

 2
5%

 O
F 

SH
EF

FI
EL

D
 

A
DU

LT
S 

EA
T 

FI
VE

 O
R

 
M

OR
E 

PO
RT

IO
N

S 
OF

 F
RU

IT
 

OR
 V

EG
ET

A
BL

ES
 A

 D
AY

. 

A
 D

IE
T 

OF
 L

ES
S 

M
EA

T 
A

N
D 

LE
SS

 
HI

GH
LY

 P
RO

CE
SS

ED
 

FO
OD

 W
OU

LD
 B

E
 

HE
A

LT
HY

 A
N

D
 

SU
ST

A
IN

A
BL

E.

Page 88



C
L

IM
A

T
E

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 A
N

D
 H

E
A

LT
H

  
| 
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  
| 
 C

L
IM

A
T

E
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
2

0
2

1

S
h

eff
 S

te
a

k
-O

u
t 

is
 a

 c
it

y
-w

id
e 

ca
m

p
ai

g
n

 t
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e 
th

e 
ci

ti
ze

n
s 

o
f 

S
h

effi
el

d
 t

o
 a

d
o

p
t 

a 
m

ea
t-

fr
ee

 d
ay

 t
o

 h
el

p
 m

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

h
u

m
an

 i
m

p
ac

t 
o

n
 t

h
e 

en
v

ir
o

n
m

en
t.

 #
e 

ca
m

p
ai

g
n

 
h

a
s 

a 
5

-p
o

in
t 

p
la

n
 t

o
 h

el
p

 r
ai

se
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
o

f 
ea

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 l
iv

in
g

 
m

o
re

 s
u

st
ai

n
a

b
ly

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

:

• 
E

at
in

g
 l

es
s 

m
ea

t

• 
S

h
o

p
p

in
g

 l
o

ca
ll

y
 a

n
d

 b
u

y
in

g
 

lo
ca

ll
y

 g
ro

w
n

 a
n

d
 s

o
u

rc
ed

 
p

ro
d

u
ce

• 
G

ro
w

in
g

 y
o

u
r 

o
w

n
, 

fr
o

m
 h

er
b

s 
to

 v
eg

 t
o

 f
ru

it

• 
R

ed
u

ci
n

g
 r

el
ia

n
ce

 o
n

 r
ea

d
y

 
m

ea
ls

• 
R

ed
u

ci
n

g
 w

a
st

e 
b

y
 b

u
y

in
g

 o
n

ly
 

w
h

at
 y

o
u

 n
ee

d
 a

n
d

 s
ay

in
g

 n
o

 t
o

 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

p
ac

k
a

g
in

g

U
lt

im
at

el
y,

 o
u

r 
ai

m
 i

s 
fo

r 
p

eo
p

le
 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
b

et
te

r 
k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e 
an

d
 

u
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e 
tr

u
e 

v
al

u
e 

o
f 

fo
o

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
b

en
efi

ts
 f

o
r 

ev
er

yo
n

e 
w

h
en

 m
o

re
 s

u
st

ai
n

a
b

le
 c

h
o

ic
es

 
ar

e 
m

ad
e.

  
H

el
en

 D
av

ie
s,

 S
h

eff
 S

te
a

k
-O

u
t

T
w

it
te

r 
@

S
h

eff
S

te
a

k
O

u
t

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

•
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 

lo
c
a
l 
h
o
s
p

it
a
l 
Tr

u
s
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 

d
e
ve

lo
p

 t
h
e
ir
 f
o
o
d

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

fa
c
to

rs
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 m

e
a
t 
a
n
d

 d
a
ir

y
 i
n
 

m
e
n
u
s.

•
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 p
e
o
p

le
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

m
e
a
t 
th

e
y
 e

a
t 
b

y
 a

d
o
p

ti
n
g

 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 m

e
a
t 
fr

e
e
 d

a
y
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k
.

3
.4

 W
a

rm
e

r 
h

o
m

e
s

C
h

ri
s 

S
h

aw
, R

ob
er

t 
A

lm
on

d,
   

   
 

S
h

ef
fi

el
d 

C
it

y 
C

ou
nc

il
 

W
h

y
 i
s
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t?

In
 2

0
1
2
 3

1
%

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
c
a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 c
a
m

e
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 s

e
c
to

r,
 

m
a
in

ly
 f
ro

m
 h

e
a
ti
n
g

 h
o
m

e
s.

  

F
u
e
l 
p

o
ve

rt
y,

 a
n
d

 c
o
ld

 d
a
m

p
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
a
re

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
c
a
u
s
e
s
 

o
f 

p
o
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 
H

o
m

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 

b
e
tt
e
r 

in
s
u
la

te
d

 a
re

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r,
 

c
h
e
a
p

e
r 

to
 h

e
a
t 
(s

o
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

fu
e
l 
p

o
ve

rt
y
),

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 h

e
a
ti
n
g

 

in
vo

lv
e
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s.

  

A
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 r

is
in

g
 i
n
d

o
o
r 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 i
n
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

m
o
n
th

s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 

m
o
rb

id
it
y
 f
ro

m
 r

e
s
p

ir
a
to

ry
 a

n
d

 

c
a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
d

is
e
a
s
e
s
, 
a
n
 

e
ff

e
c
t 
m

a
d

e
 w

o
rs

e
 b

y
 h

e
a
t 

e
x
h
a
u
s
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 a
ir
 p

o
llu

ti
o
n
. 
 

H
ig

h
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

o
n
g

 

s
u
n
lig

h
t 
le

a
d

 t
o
 h

ig
h
 l
e
ve

ls
 o

f 

o
z
o
n
e
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 l
e
ve

ls
 o

f 

a
e
ro

a
lle

rg
e
n
s
, 
b

o
th

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 

d
a
m

a
g

in
g

 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
. 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

T
h
e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 2

0
1
1
 C

a
rb

o
n
 

P
la

n
 w

a
s
 c

le
a
r 

th
a
t,
 i
f 

w
e
 a

re
 

to
 r

e
a
c
h
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 

c
u
tt
in

g
 

o
u
r 

g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

b
y
 8

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
5
0
, 
‘e

n
e
rg

y
 

e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y
 w

ill
 h

a
ve

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

d
ra

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
c
to

rs
’.
 

A
s
 8

0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 b
e
 o

c
c
u
p

ie
d

 i
n
 2

0
5
0
 h

a
ve

 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
ilt

, 
th

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
to

c
k
 h

a
s
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
le

ra
te

.

In
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 m
o
re

 e
ffi

c
ie

n
t 
h
e
a
ti
n
g

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 w

a
rm

e
r 

h
o
m

e
s
 

a
n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l 

m
o
rt

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 m
o
rb

id
it
y.

 C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

th
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
w

e
a
th

e
r 

re
la

te
d

 

h
e
a
lt
h
 r

is
k
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 

ill
n
e
s
s
 d

u
e
 

to
 c

o
ld

 w
e
a
th

e
r,
 c

a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 a

 

s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 b

e
in

g
 o

ld
 a

n
d

 

p
o
o
rl
y
 i
n
s
u
la

te
d

, 
a
n
d

 b
y
 h

ig
h
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 p

ri
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s.

  

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 w
a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
9
5
 

a
n
d

 2
0
0
5
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t.
 

S
in

c
e
 t
h
e
n
, 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 p

e
r 

c
a
p

it
a
 h

a
ve

 

fa
lle

n
 f
a
s
te

r,
 w

it
h
 a

 2
0
%

 d
ro

p
, 

fr
o
m

 2
.5

 t
o
n
n
e
s
 t
o
 2

.0
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o
d

 2
0
0
5
-1

2
. 
T
h
is

 

c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 w

it
h
 a

 f
a
ll 

fr
o
m

 2
.5

 

to
n
n
e
s
 t
o
 2

.2
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 f
o
r 

E
n
g

la
n
d

 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 o
ve

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d

.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
n
ve

s
te

d
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

in
it
ia

ti
ve

s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
c
y
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
s
 

in
 h

o
u
s
in

g
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 F

re
e
 I
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
. 
T
h
is

 r
a
n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
9
-

2
0
1
2
, 
a
n
d

 r
e
a
c
h
e
d

 8
0
%

 o
f 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 C

it
y,

 g
e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 

o
ve

r 
2
8
,0

0
0
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 o

f 
c
a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r. 

T
h
is

 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

e
tr

o
fi
t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 

fo
r 

h
e
a
ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 i
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il-

e
n
d

o
rs

e
d

 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 H
e
a
t 
&

 S
a
ve

 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
ff

e
rs

 d
is

c
o
u
n
te

d
 

p
ri
c
e
s
 o

n
 h

e
a
ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 i
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
, 

w
e
ig

h
te

d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
, 
b

u
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 a

re
 a

ff
e
c
ti
n
g

 

it
s
 i
m

p
a
c
t.
 

#
e 

S
h

effi
el

d
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 C

o
m

p
an

y
 

(S
H

C
) 

is
 c

u
rr

en
tl

y
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 

3
0

5
 h

o
m

es
 i

n
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

u
th

 
S

h
effi

el
d

. 
#

e 
p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

C
o

d
e 

fo
r 

S
u

st
ai

n
a

b
le

 H
o

m
es

 
le

v
el

 3
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
at

; 
th

e 
fa

b
ri

c 
co

n
fo

rm
s 

to
 h

ig
h

 e
n

er
g

y
 

effi
ci

en
cy

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s,
 w

h
it

e 
g

o
o

d
s 

ar
e 

d
es

ig
n

ed
 f

o
r 

lo
w

 w
at

er
 

u
sa

g
e,

 t
h

e 
h

o
m

es
 r

ed
u

ce
 e

n
er

g
y

 
d

em
an

d
s 

an
d

 a
re

 o
ri

en
ta

te
d

 t
o

 
m

a
x

im
is

e 
li

g
h

t 
an

d
 s

o
la

r 
g

ai
n

, 
an

d
 e

ac
h

 h
o

m
e 

is
 a

 l
if

et
im

e 
h

o
m

e 
w

h
ic

h
 e

n
su

re
s 

g
en

er
o

u
s 

an
d

 fl
ex

ib
le

 s
p

ac
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s.

 
C

yc
le

 s
to

re
s 

ar
e 

p
ro

v
id

ed
 f

o
r 

ev
er

y
 p

ro
p

er
ty

. 
 3

0
%

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

 a
re

 fi
tt

ed
 w

it
h

 r
ai

n
 

w
at

er
 h

ar
v

es
ti

n
g

 t
an

k
s,

 a
n

d
 1

0
%

 
o

f 
th

ei
r 

en
er

g
y

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 w

il
l 

co
m

e 
fr

o
m

 p
h

o
to

v
o

lt
ai

c 
p

an
el

s.

W
h
ile

 a
d

v
a
n
c
e
s
 h

a
ve

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e
n
 

m
a
d

e
 i
n
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
c
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r,
 i
t 
la

g
s
 

b
e
h
in

d
 o

th
e
r 

te
n
u
re

s.
 A

c
c
o
rd

in
g

 

to
 t
h
e
 H

o
m

e
s
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

A
g

e
n
c
y,

 t
h
e
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

ra
ti
n
g

 (
S

ta
n
d

a
rd

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

, 
S

A
P

) 
in

 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 

s
e
c
to

r 
h
a
s
 r

is
e
n
 f
ro

m
 4

7
 t
o
 5

7
, 

w
h
ile

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
it
 h

a
s
 

ri
s
e
n
 f
ro

m
 4

1
 t
o
 o

n
ly

 4
7
.

W
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 w
e
 d

o
?

It
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 C

it
y
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 t
h
e
 t
h
e
rm

a
l 

e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 s
to

c
k
. 

T
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 i
s
 t
o
 i
n
s
u
la

te
 

o
ld

e
r,
 t
y
p

ic
a
lly

 s
o
lid

-w
a
ll 

o
r 

h
a
rd

 

to
 t
re

a
t 
c
a
v
it
y
 w

a
ll,

 h
o
m

e
s.

 T
h
e
 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 S

A
P

 r
a
ti
n
g

 f
o
r 

a
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
d

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 n
o
w

 

e
x
c
e
e
d

s
 7

0
. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 

a
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 C

it
y
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 

H
o
m

e
 E

n
e
rg

y
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

(1
9
9
5
) 

to
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 m

in
im

u
m

 S
A

P
 

ra
ti
n
g

 o
f 

v
ia

b
le

 c
o
u
n
c
il 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

to
 6

5
 (

th
e
 m

in
im

u
m

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

to
 t
a
k
e
 a

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 o
u
t 
o
f 

fu
e
l 

p
o
ve

rt
y
) 

b
y
 2

0
2
3
/2

4
. 
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 i
m

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h
e
rm

a
l 

e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 c

o
ld

 

re
la

te
d

 i
lln

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 f
u
e
l 
c
o
s
ts

, 

a
n
d

 m
a
y
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 t
o
 

re
m

a
in

 c
o
o
l 
in

 h
o
tt
e
r 

w
e
a
th

e
r,
 

it
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 

o
ve

rh
e
a
ti
n
g

 d
u
ri
n
g

 p
e
ri
o
d

s
 o

f 

h
o
t 
w

e
a
th

e
r. 

V
e
n
ti
la

ti
o
n
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 t
o
 p

re
ve

n
t 
a
 r

is
e
 

in
 i
n
d

o
o
r 

a
ir
 p

o
llu

ta
n
ts

, 
a
n
d

 

c
o
n
d

e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
, 
d

a
m

p
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 

m
o
u
ld

. 
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

n
 i
m

m
in

e
n
t 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r. 
T
h
e
 

Te
n
a
n
t’
s
 E

n
e
rg

y
 E

ffi
c
ie

n
c
y
 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n
t 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 i
n
 f
o
rc

e
 b

y
 1

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0
1
6
, 

a
n
d

 w
ill

 e
m

p
o
w

e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 

s
e
c
to

r 
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
c
o
n
s
e
n
t 
fo

r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

DO
M

ES
TI

C
 

C0
2 E

M
IS

SI
ON

S
A

RE
 FA

LL
IN

G.

Page 89



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
2

2
2

3

to
 b

e
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d

, 
th

a
t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 

u
n
re

a
s
o
n
a
b

ly
 b

e
 r

e
fu

s
e
d

. 
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

•
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

 

fu
e
l 
p

o
ve

rt
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 s

te
p

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
in

s
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r,
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 S

A
P

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

s
e
c
to

r 
is

 6
5
 b

y
 2

0
2
0
, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

m
in

im
u
m

 S
A

P
 i
s
 6

5
 b

y
 2

0
2
5
.

•
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 

th
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

m
o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o
 f
u
e
l 

p
o
ve

rt
y,

 a
n
d

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

th
a
t.

3
.5

 S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 

th
e

 l
o

ca
l 

e
co

n
o

m
y

 a
n

d
 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
p

it
a

l

Je
re

m
y 

W
ig

h
t,

 C
h

ri
s 

S
h

aw
,a

nd
 C

h
ri

s 

N
ie

ld
, S

h
ef

fi
el

d 
C

it
y 

C
ou

nc
il
 

W
h

y
 i
s
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t?

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 g

lo
b

a
lis

e
d

 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 t
h
a
t 
is

 d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 
o
n
 

c
h
e
a
p

 o
il 

a
n
d

 e
ve

r 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
a
tu

ra
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
b

o
th

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 

m
a
jo

r 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

rs
 t
o
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
 

G
lo

b
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y,
 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

o
m

in
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

m
u
lt
in

a
ti
o
n
a
ls

, 
h
a
s
 a

 t
e
n
d

e
n
c
y
 

to
 l
e
a
d

 t
o
 p

o
o
re

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 

c
o
n
d

it
io

n
s
, 
lo

w
e
r 

w
a
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

y.
  

S
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

y
 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 b
a
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

le
s
s
 w

e
ll 

o
ff
, 
b

u
t 
a
ls

o
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

o
f 

th
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
ff
. 
 I
t 
le

a
d

s
 t
o
 

d
is

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

t 
lo

c
a
l 
le

ve
l,
 l
a
c
k
 

o
f 

c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 e
ro

s
io

n
 

o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l.
 T

h
is

 l
e
a
d

s
 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 l
e
ve

ls
 o

f 
m

e
n
ta

l 

w
e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 l
e
ve

ls
 

o
f 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
ill

n
e
s
s.

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 r
ig

h
tl
y
 h

a
s
 a

n
 a

m
b

it
io

n
 

to
 b

e
 a

 ‘
C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
ve

 C
it
y
 o

f 

E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
 S

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
c
e
’.
 T

h
e
re

 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
jo

r 
in

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 
in

to
 t
h
e
 C

it
y,

 i
n
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
in

to
 t
h
e
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
d

 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g

 p
a
rk

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 

s
h
o
rt

ly
 h

a
ve

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

a
d

v
a
n
c
e
d

 f
a
c
to

ri
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rl

d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
’s

 b
o
u
n
d

a
ri
e
s.

  

H
o
w

e
ve

r 
th

e
 i
n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
a
n
d

 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
s
e
c
to

r 
g

e
n
e
ra

te
d

 

1
.3

M
t 
C

O
2
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

th
o
u
g

h
 d

o
w

n
 f
ro

m
 1

.8
M

t 
C

O
2
 i
n
 

2
0
0
5
, 
s
ti
ll 

a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

4
1
%

 o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
’s

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s.

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
re

c
o
ve

re
d

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 g

lo
b

a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

ri
s
is

 

o
f 

2
0
0
7
-8

, 
w

it
h
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 

u
n
d

e
re

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 p
o
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
s
ti
ll 

a
 

s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

. 
T
h
is

 

is
 u

n
d

o
u
b

te
d

ly
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
d

ri
ve

r 

fo
r 

p
o
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
, 
a
n
d

 l
ie

s
 b

e
h
in

d
 

th
e
 8

 y
e
a
r 

g
a
p

 i
n
 l
if
e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

it
y,

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

th
e
 o

th
e
r 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
e
q

u
a
lit

y.

W
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 w
e
 d

o
?

A
 c

it
y
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

d
iv

o
rc

e
 i
ts

e
lf

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 g

lo
b

a
l 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y,
 a

n
d

 n
o
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
t 

s
e
e
k
 t
o
. 
B

u
t 
w

e
 d

o
 n

e
e
d

 t
h
e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 t
o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 

th
a
t 
is

 g
o
o
d

 b
o
th

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

lim
a
te

 

a
n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T
h
e
 S

te
rn

 R
e
v
ie

w
 i
n
 

2
0
0
6
 a

rg
u
e
d

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 c

lim
a
te

 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 w

e
re

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
tl
y
 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

n
o
t 
d

o
in

g
 s

o
. 
 

L
o
c
a
lly

, 
th

e
 ‘
M

in
i-
S

te
rn

 R
e
v
ie

w
’ 

o
f 

th
e
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 C
it
y
 R

e
g

io
n
 

(S
C

R
) 

lo
o
k
e
d

 a
t 
o
p

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
-c

a
rb

o
n
is

in
g

 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y.
 I
t 

fo
u
n
d

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 S

C
R

 c
o
u
ld

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 

it
s
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 b

y
 1

6
.5

%
 

b
y
 2

0
2
2
 (

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 1

9
9
0
) 

th
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 e
n
e
rg

y
 

e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d

 s
m

a
ll 

s
c
a
le

 r
e
n
e
w

a
b

le
s.

 T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 

re
q

u
ir
e
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 

£
7
.8

B
n
, 

b
u
t 
g

e
n
e
ra

te
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 (

in
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 b

ill
s
) 

o
f 

£
1
.0

2
B

n
, 
g

iv
in

g
 

a
 p

a
y
b

a
c
k
 t
im

e
 o

f 
7
.7

 y
e
a
rs

, 
a
n
d

 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
if
e
ti
m

e
 

o
f 

th
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s.
 I
f 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 

fa
c
to

rs
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 
o
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 e
n
e
rg

y
 p

ri
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
a
rb

o
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

, 

a
n
 o

ve
ra

ll 
d

ro
p

 o
f 

4
4
%

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie

ve
d

.

M
o
re

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y,

 t
h
e
 N

e
w

 C
lim

a
te

 

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
 R

e
p

o
rt

: 
B

e
tt
e
r 

G
ro

w
th

, 

B
e
tt
e
r 

C
lim

a
te

 h
a
s
 a

rg
u
e
d

 t
h
a
t 

‘c
o
u
n
tr

ie
s
 a

t 
a
ll 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 

n
o
w

 h
a
ve

 t
h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

b
u
ild

 l
a
s
ti
n
g

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

a
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

TH
E 

CO
UN

CI
L’S

 F
UE

L 
PO

VE
RT

Y
 

ST
RA

TE
GY

 S
HO

UL
D 

IN
CL

UD
E

 
ST

EP
S 

TO
 IN

CR
EA

SE
 T

HE
 

ST
A

N
DA

RD
S 

OF
 IN

SU
LA

TI
ON

. 

SH
EF

FI
EL

D 
RI

GH
TL

Y
 

HA
S 

A
N

 A
M

BI
TI

ON
 T

O
 

BE
 A

 ‘C
OM

PE
TI

TI
VE

 
CI

TY
 O

F 
EU

RO
PE

A
N

 
SI

GN
IF

IC
A

N
CE

’.

Page 90



C
L

IM
A

T
E

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 A
N

D
 H

E
A

LT
H

  
| 
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  
| 
 C

L
IM

A
T

E
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
2

4
2

5

th
e
 i
m

m
e
n
s
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
c
lim

a
te

 

c
h
a
n
g

e
’,
 a

n
d

 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
a
 t
e
n
 

p
o
in

t 
p

la
n
 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
. 
T
h
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

re
c
o
g

n
is

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
it
ie

s
 a

re
 t
h
e
 

e
n
g

in
e
 o

f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
, 
b

u
t 

a
rg

u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 w

a
y
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

d
e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 h
a
s
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g

e
. 
T
w

o
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n
s
 

th
a
t 
c
o
u
ld

 h
a
ve

 r
e
s
o
n
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 a
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 a

 s
u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

a
p

it
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 

lo
w

 c
a
rb

o
n
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t,
 a

n
d

 

th
a
t 
in

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 l
o
w

-c
a
rb

o
n
 a

n
d

 

c
lim

a
te

-r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

c
a
le

d
 u

p
. 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
u
ild

 o
n
 i
ts

 c
u
tt
in

g
 e

d
g

e
 

e
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n
g

 c
a
p

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 t
o
 

d
e
ve

lo
p

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
 l
o
w

 c
a
rb

o
n
 

in
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
a
rb

o
n
 c

a
p

tu
re

 a
n
d

 s
to

ra
g

e
. 
 

T
h
e
 l
o
w

 c
a
rb

o
n
 s

e
c
to

r 
g

ro
u
p

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

(L
E

P
) 

c
le

a
rl
y
 h

a
s
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ro

le
 

to
 p

la
y
 h

e
re

.

S
h

effi
el

d
 i

s 
le

ad
in

g
 t

h
e 

re
g

io
n

 o
n

 
in

cr
ea

si
n

g
 u

p
ta

k
e 

o
f 

lo
w

 e
m

is
si

o
n

 
v

eh
ic

le
s.

 W
e 

ar
e 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e 

su
b

si
d

is
ed

 
el

ec
tr

ic
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

an
d

 c
h

ar
g

in
g

 
p

o
in

ts
, 

a
s 

w
el

l 
a

s 
es

ta
b

li
sh

in
g

 a
 

n
et

w
o

rk
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c 

ac
ce

ss
 p

o
in

ts
 

fo
r 

ra
p

id
 c

h
ar

g
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
a

st
 

ch
ar

g
in

g
 o

f 
el

ec
tr

ic
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

ac
ro

ss
 S

o
u

th
 Y

o
rk

sh
ir

e.
 W

o
rk

 
is

 a
ls

o
 u

n
d

er
w

ay
 o

n
 s

et
ti

n
g

 u
p

 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 t

o
 u

se
 n

at
u

ra
l 

g
a

s,
 

b
io

-m
et

h
an

e 
an

d
 h

yd
ro

g
en

 a
s 

a 
v

eh
ic

le
 f

u
el

. 
#

es
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fu
el

s 
p

ro
d

u
ce

 l
es

s 
ai

r 
p

o
ll

u
ti

o
n

 
an

d
 c

ar
b

o
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s,
 b

en
efi

tt
in

g
 

b
o

th
 t

h
e 

en
v

ir
o

n
m

en
t 

an
d

 h
ea

lt
h

.

A
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
, 
w

e
 m

u
s
t 

m
a
k
e
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 w

a
y
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 d

e
ve

lo
p

s
 i
s
 

o
n
e
 t
h
a
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

u
n
d

e
rm

in
e
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l,
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
d

e
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

Tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 T

o
w

n
s
 m

o
ve

m
e
n
t.
  

T
h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 e

m
p

h
a
s
is

 o
n
 s

m
a
ll 

s
c
a
le

 l
o
c
a
l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 

o
f 

fo
o
d

, 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

, 
e
n
e
rg

y,
 

a
n
d

 h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
a
m

o
n
g

 o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 
a
s
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
s
h
if
ti
n
g

 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 h

ig
h
 e

n
e
rg

y,
 h

ig
h
 

c
a
rb

o
n
, 
c
lim

a
te

 d
a
m

a
g

in
g

 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ie
s
 t
o
 o

n
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 m
o
re

 

lo
c
a
lly

 b
a
s
e
d

, 
re

s
ili

e
n
t,
 a

n
d

 

n
u
rt

u
ri
n
g

 o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
a
n
d

 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

’s
 ‘
S

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

C
e
n
tr

e
s
’ 
p

o
lic

y
 o

f 
p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g

 

lo
c
a
l 
s
h
o
p

p
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

tr
a
d

e
rs

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
is

.  

W
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 o

u
r 

o
ve

ra
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
m

e
ri
s
t 
lif

e
s
ty

le
s
, 

n
o
t 
le

a
s
t 
s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

c
a
n
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
b

o
ve

 a
 c

e
rt

a
in

 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 

w
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 l
e
a
d

s
 

to
 g

re
a
te

r 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

•
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 fi

n
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

in
i-

S
te

rn
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
re

 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

lo
w

 c
a
rb

o
n
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

lo
w

 

c
a
rb

o
n
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s.

•
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 

w
o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r

 
a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 

d
e
ve

lo
p

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
in

 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s.

3
.6

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 l

o
w

 

ca
rb

o
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 

ca
re

 e
co

n
o

m
y

Je
re

m
y 

W
ig

h
t,

 S
h

ef
fi

el
d 

C
it

y 
C

ou
nc

il
 

an
d 

Ti
m

 F
u

rn
es

s 
an

d 
M

ar
io

n 
S

lo
an

, N
H

S
 

S
h

ef
fi

el
d 

C
C

G
 

W
h

y
 i
s
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t?

B
e
in

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 m

e
a
n
s
 

n
o
t 
o
n
ly

 p
re

ve
n
ti
n
g

 i
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 

tr
e
a
ti
n
g

 i
lln

e
s
s
, 
b

u
t 
a
ls

o
 s

tr
iv

in
g

 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 w

a
y
 t
h
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 

is
 m

a
n
a
g

e
d

 a
n
d

 r
u
n
, 
m

in
im

is
e
s
 

d
a
m

a
g

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

lim
a
te

, 
a
n
d

 

th
e
re

b
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 

in
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
.

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

T
h
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

N
H

S
, 
p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

t 
a
b

o
u
t 
3
2
0
 

k
ilo

 t
o
n
n
e
s
 o

f 
C

O
2
, 
ju

s
t 
o
ve

r 

1
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 C

it
y
’s

 o
ve

ra
ll 

c
a
rb

o
n
 

fo
o
tp

ri
n
t.
 O

f 
th

is
, 
a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

h
a
lf

 i
s
 a

tt
ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

f 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 T
e
a
c
h
in

g
 

H
o
s
p

it
a
ls

, 
th

o
u
g

h
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

.

P
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

d
e
m

a
n
d

 f
o
r 

N
H

S
 c

a
re

, 
a
n
d

 

th
e
re

fo
re

 h
a
ve

 a
n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

o
ve

ra
ll 

N
H

S
 c

a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t.
  

N
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

, 
5
7
%

 o
f 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
’s

 

c
a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t 
is

 a
tt
ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 

to
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e
d

 c
a
rb

o
n
 i
n
 

g
o
o
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 1

6
%

 a
tt
ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 

p
h
a
rm

a
c
e
u
ti
c
a
ls

 a
n
d

 9
%

 t
o
 

m
e
d

ic
a
l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n
ts

. 
1
5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 

o
ve

ra
ll 

fo
o
tp

ri
n
t 
is

 a
tt
ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 

to
 b

u
ild

in
g

 e
n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
 a

n
d

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 f
ro

m
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r,
 a

n
d

 

1
3
%

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
ra

ve
l.
  

W
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 w
e
 d

o
?

F
ir

s
t,
 a

n
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
re

d
u
c
e
s
 

th
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

, 
w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
n
d

 h
e
n
c
e
 C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 
a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 s

a
ve

 m
o
n
e
y.

 H
o
w

e
ve

r 

th
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
n
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 w

ill
 d

e
p

e
n
d

 o
n
 h

o
w

 

th
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 r
e
le

a
s
e
d

, 

a
re

 r
e
d

e
p

lo
y
e
d

. 
 

S
e
c
o
n
d

ly
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y
 

o
f 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 l
e
a
d

 

to
 b

o
th

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 c
o
s
t 
a
n
d

 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s.

 

F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
g

re
a
te

r 
e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y
 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g

 e
n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
, 
e
.g

. 

th
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
o
r 

b
e
tt
e
r 

h
e
a
ti
n
g

 s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
w

ill
 s

a
ve

 b
o
th

 

m
o
n
e
y
 a

n
d

 c
a
rb

o
n
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 

e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
ra

ve
l 
a
n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 

w
h
e
re

 i
t 
is

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 d

o
 t
h
is

 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

in
g

 c
lin

ic
a
l 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s.

T
h
ir
d

ly
, 
n
e
w

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 

c
a
n
 h

e
lp

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
c
y
 

a
n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 c

o
s
t 
a
n
d

 c
a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s.

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 
te

le
c
a
re

 a
n
d

 

te
le

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d

 f
o
r 

tr
a
ve

l.

F
o
u
rt

h
ly

, 
b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 

a
m

o
n
g

 s
ta

ff
, 
p

a
ti
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 

c
lie

n
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 b

o
th

 

th
e
ir
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s.

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
m

o
re

 

a
c
ti
ve

 t
ra

ve
l 
a
n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

e
a
t 
a
n
d

 a
n
im

a
l 

p
ro

d
u
c
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 A

c
t 
o
f 

2
0
0
8
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
8
0
%

 b
y
 

2
0
5
0
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 a

 1
9
9
0
 b

a
s
e
 l
in

e
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
3
4
%

 b
y
 2

0
2
0
 

a
n
d

 5
0
%

 b
y
 2

0
2
5
. 
T
h
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

fo
o
tp

ri
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 

in
 1

9
9
0
 w

a
s
 3

5
M

t 
C

O
2
e
, 
s
o
 

th
e
 2

0
1
2
 fi

g
u
re

 o
f 

3
2
M

t 
C

O
2
e
 

re
p

re
s
e
n
ts

 a
 f
a
ll 

o
f 

le
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 9

%
.  

S
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

o
f 

th
e
 o

rd
e
r 

o
f 

a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

2
8
%

 o
f 

th
e
 2

0
1
2
 fi

g
u
re

, 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 

if
 t
h
e
 2

0
2
0
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 

m
e
t.
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
.

F
ir

s
t,
 t
h
e
re

 n
e
e
d

s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 

e
x
p

lic
it
 r

e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
, 
a
t 
th

e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 
le

ve
l,
 t
h
a
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
s
te

p
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

is
 p

la
n
n
e
d

, 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 f
o
r,
 

a
n
d

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
, 
w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

to
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s.

  

SH
EF

FI
EL

D 
IS

 
LE

A
DI

N
G 

TH
E 

RE
GI

ON
 

ON
 IN

CR
EA

SI
N

G
 

UP
TA

KE
 O

F 
LO

W
 

EM
IS

SI
ON

 V
EH

IC
LE

S.

Page 91



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
2

6
2

7

S
e
c
o
n
d

ly
, 
th

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 

b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

 a
n
d

 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s.

 T
h
is

 

w
o
u
ld

 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 g
iv

e
n
 e

q
u
a
l 

w
e
ig

h
t 
to

 fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d

 c
lin

ic
a
l 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s.

  
  

T
h
ir
d

ly
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 n
e
e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 h

o
t 
s
p

o
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s.

 T
h
e
ir
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

g
o
o
d

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 

4
 s

te
p

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 “

p
ro

c
u
ri
n
g

 f
o
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 h

ie
ra

rc
h
y
 o

f 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
” 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
, 
n
a
m

e
ly

 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y,

 s
u
b

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 

in
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
ly

 c
h
a
in

 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t.

F
in

a
lly

, 
le

a
d

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 

h
a
ve

 a
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
e
m

p
la

rs
 o

f 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r. 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 

P
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 

a
re

 v
is

ib
le

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y,

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 a

d
o
p

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
c
ti
ve

 t
ra

ve
l,
 p

u
b

lic
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

, 

a
n
d

  
lo

w
 c

a
rb

o
n
 w

o
rk

-s
ty

le
s
 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
ti
a
l.

 
e 

Y
or

ks
h

ir
e 

A
m

b
u

la
n

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
 

(Y
A

S
) 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 le

ad
in

g 
th

e 
n

at
io

n’
s 

am
b

u
la

n
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 a
 c

ar
b

on
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 Y

A
S

 e
st

ab
li

sh
ed

 
th

e 
G

re
en

 E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l 
A

m
b

u
la

n
ce

 N
et

w
or

k 
(G

rE
A

N
) 

in
 2

01
1 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ai
m

 o
f 

b
ri

n
gi

n
g 

to
ge

th
er

 t
h

e 
13

 U
K

 a
m

b
u

la
n

ce
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

d
el

iv
er

 c
os

t 
sa

vi
n

gs
 a

n
d

 
ca

rb
on

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

s 
th

at
 r

es
u

lt
 in

 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 p

at
ie

n
t 

ca
re

.  
e 

n
et

w
or

k 
en

co
m

p
as

se
s 

'
ee

t,
 e

st
at

es
, a

n
ci

ll
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

es
, *

n
an

ce
, p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

as
 

w
el

l a
s 

p
ar

am
ed

ic
s 

an
d

 o
th

er
 s

ta
+

. 
O

ve
ra

ll
 it

s 
ai

m
s 

ar
e 

to
:

• 
R

ai
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 c

ar
b

on
 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

on

• 
R

ed
u

ce
 t

h
e 

im
p

ac
t 

of
 t

h
e 

am
b

u
la

n
ce

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
n

 a
ir

 
em

is
si

on
s,

 c
ar

b
on

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

an
d

 
p

u
b

li
c 

sp
en

d
in

g

• 
S

h
ar

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 t

ri
al

s 
b

ei
n

g 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
tr

y

• 
Q

u
an

ti
fy

 t
h

e 
am

ou
n

t 
of

 m
on

ey
 

an
d

 c
ar

b
on

 t
h

at
 c

an
 b

e 
sa

ve
d

 
th

ro
u

gh
 t

h
e 

ca
rb

on
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 r

ed
u

ct
io

n
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e

• 
Im

p
ro

ve
 a

m
b

u
la

n
ce

 f
u

el
 

ec
on

om
y 

an
d

 a
er

o
d

yn
am

ic
s

• 
N

et
w

or
k 

e+
ec

ti
ve

ly
 t

o 
re

d
u

ce
 t

h
e 

ca
rb

on
 f

o
ot

p
ri

n
t 

of
 t

h
e 

B
ri

ti
sh

 
am

b
u

la
n

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s

• 
S

av
e 

m
on

ey
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 c
ar

b
on

 
re

d
u

ct
io

n

F
or

 m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 s

ee
: -

 
h

tt
p

:/
/a

ac
e.

or
g.

u
k/

im
p

le
m

en
t-

a-
ca

rb
on

-m
an

ag
em

en
t-

p
ro

gr
am

m
e-

in
-y

ou
r-

or
ga

n
is

at
io

n
-w

it
h

-g
re

an
/  

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

•
 

T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

, 
a
n
d

 S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

’s
 N

H
S

 

F
o
u
n
d

a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
ts

, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 

a
d

o
p

t 
a
n
 e

x
p

lic
it
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 

p
o
lic

y
 a

im
e
d

 a
t 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

 

th
a
t 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 m
e
e
ts

 i
ts

 

c
a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 

b
y
 2

0
2
0
. 
T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

u
n
d

e
rp

in
n
e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 a

d
o
p

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 m
a
n
if
e
s
to

 

fo
r 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y.

•
 

T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

 s
h
o
u
ld

 g
iv

e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
s
 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 i
n
 

th
e
 C

it
y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
. 
A

 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
a
rb

o
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 

n
e
e
d

s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

. 

 3
.7

 P
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

e
x

tr
e

m
e

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

e
v

e
n

ts

R
u

th
 G

ra
ng

er
, S

h
ef

fi
el

d 
C

it
y 

C
ou

nc
il

 a
nd

 

Pe
te

r 
W

h
it

w
am

, R
ot

h
er

h
am

 B
or

ou
g

h
 

C
ou

nc
il
 

W
h

y
 i
s
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t?

A
 fi

rs
t 
s
te

p
 t
o
 a

d
a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
tu

re
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 h

a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 

e
x
p

o
s
u
re

 o
f 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
lim

a
te

 v
a
ri
a
b

ili
ty

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

a
lr
e
a
d

y
 e

x
p

e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
.

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

In
 t
h
e
 U

K
, 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

e
a
rl
y
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d

 s
e
ve

ri
ty

 o
f 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

. 
A

n
 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 e

ve
n
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 

a
s
 a

n
y
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
t 
o
r 

h
a
z
a
rd

 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 

a
d

ve
rs

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 h

u
m

a
n
 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T
h
is

 c
a
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

d
ro

u
g

h
t,
 h

e
a
tw

a
ve

s
 o

r 
c
o
ld

 

w
e
a
th

e
r,
 s

to
rm

 e
ve

n
ts

, 
fl
o
o
d

in
g

, 

e
a
rt

h
q

u
a
k
e
s
 a

n
d

 v
o
lc

a
n
ic

 a
s
h
 

re
le

a
s
e
. 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s
 

a
re

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
, 
w

it
h
 

m
o
re

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 
h
o
t 
s
p

e
lls

. 
W

h
ils

t 

w
in

te
rs

 a
re

 p
re

d
ic

te
d

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

m
ild

e
r,
 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
 c

o
ld

 

s
p

e
lls

, 
a
n
d

 w
in

te
r 

ra
in

fa
ll 

w
ill

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
, 
a
s
 w

ill
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
to

rm
s
 a

n
d

 fl
o
o
d

s.
 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 h
a
ve

 

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d

 t
h
a
t 
s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
2
-0

3
 

th
e
re

 h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 o

n
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 

2
6
,5

0
0
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 w

in
te

r 
d

e
a
th

s
 

a
 y

e
a
r 

in
 E

n
g

la
n
d

, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 U

K
 

h
a
v
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 t
w

ic
e
 t
h
e
 

ra
te

 o
f 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 d

e
a
th

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
ld

e
r 

c
o
u
n
tr

ie
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 F

in
la

n
d

. 
T
h
is

 w
ill

 h
a
ve

 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 e
x
c
e
s
s
 w

in
te

r 
d

e
a
th

s
 

in
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

. 
T
h
e
 2

0
0
3
 h

e
a
tw

a
ve

 

c
a
u
s
e
d

 e
x
c
e
s
s
 d

e
a
th

s
 (

e
x
tr

a
 

d
e
a
th

s
 t
h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 o
th

e
rw

is
e
 

h
a
ve

 n
o
t 
o
c
c
u
rr

e
d

) 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

E
u
ro

p
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 

2
0
0
0
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 d

e
a
th

s
 i
n
 E

n
g

la
n
d

.  

F
lo

o
d

s
 c

a
u
s
e
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
h
a
rm

 

to
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y,
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 

liv
e
lih

o
o
d

s.
 T

w
o
 p

e
o
p

le
 d

ie
d

 i
n
 

th
e
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 fl
o
o
d

s
 o

f 
2
0
0
7
, 
a
n
d

 

th
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 

w
e
re

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t.
 A

ll 
g

ro
u
p

s
 a

re
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 n

e
g

a
ti
ve

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 

te
n
d

 t
o
 f
a
ll 

d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d

 

d
is

a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e
d

 i
n
 s

o
c
ie

ty
. 
 

D
is

a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e
d

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

ls
o
 h

a
ve

 

fe
w

e
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

p
ro

te
c
t 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

a
n
d

 

to
 r

e
c
o
ve

r 
fr

o
m

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

. 
 

W
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 w
e
 d

o
?

F
ir

s
t,
 w

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 

re
s
ili

e
n
t 
to

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 b

o
th

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
d

a
p

ti
ve

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

te
p

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
a
n
d

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 

o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s.

  

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

w
o
rk

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 r

iv
e
r 

c
h
a
n
n
e
l 

c
le

a
ra

n
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 

fl
o
o
d

s.
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g

 f
u
n
d

in
g

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

fl
o
o
d

 

d
e
fe

n
c
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

o
w

e
r 

D
o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 a

n
d

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

.

A
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
it

s 
F

lo
o

d
 R

is
k

 
M

an
a

g
em

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

y
 (

2
0

1
3

) 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

su
cc

es
sf

u
ll

y
 r

eg
is

te
re

d
 

6
 s

ch
em

es
 f

o
r 

G
o

v
er

n
m

en
t 

fl
o

o
d

 
g

ra
n

t 
in

 a
id

 f
u

n
d

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 

2
0

1
4

 t
o

 2
0

2
1

. 
#

is
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

ai
m

s 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e 

th
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
 o

f 
fl

o
o

d
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 t

o
 a

ro
u

n
d

 6
,0

0
0

 
h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s 
an

d
 2

,0
0

0
 c

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 
p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 a

s 
w

el
l 

a
s 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
ca

p
ac

it
y

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e 
b

u
il

d
in

g
 

o
f 

th
o

u
sa

n
d

s 
o

f 
h

o
m

es
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e 

C
it

y.
 #

e 
sc

h
em

es
 s

ee
k

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
 

fl
o

o
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
’s

 m
ai

n
 

ri
v

er
s.

 A
 L

o
w

er
 D

o
n

 V
al

le
y

 F
lo

o
d

 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 s

ch
em

e 
is

 s
ch

ed
u

le
d

 
to

 b
eg

in
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 i

n
 l

at
e 

2
0

1
4

 w
it

h
 f

u
rt

h
er

 s
ch

em
es

 b
ei

n
g

 
p

la
n

n
ed

 f
o

r 
th

e 
U

p
p

er
 D

o
n

. 
A

 
su

st
ai

n
a

b
le

 d
ra

in
a

g
e 

sc
h

em
e 

w
il

l 
al

so
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

ew
 h

o
u

se
 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e 
M

an
o

r 
an

d
 a

 fl
o

o
d

 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 s

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
U

p
p

er
 

B
la

ck
b

u
rn

 B
ro

o
k

. 
#

e 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

w
il

l 
al

so
 p

ro
v

id
e 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 r

eg
en

er
at

e 
ri

v
er

si
d

e 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 d

el
iv

er
 w

id
er

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
en

ta
l 

b
en

efi
ts

. 

W
e
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 s

te
p

s
 t
o
 

p
ro

te
c
t 
p

e
o
p

le
, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

e
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
fr

o
m

 o
ve

rh
e
a
ti
n
g

. 
 

9
0
%

 o
f 

h
o
s
p

it
a
l 
w

a
rd

s
 a

re
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o
 o

ve
rh

e
a
ti
n
g

. 
C

o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

 c
o
o
lin

g
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 

h
o
m

e
s
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 
a
n
d

 p
a
s
s
iv

e
 

c
o
o
lin

g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 n
e
w

 

h
o
m

e
s.

S
o
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

s
te

p
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l,
 

th
u
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 
p

e
o
p

le
, 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 h

a
ve

 

a
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 l
e
ve

l 
o
f 

m
e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d

 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 

c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
t 
to

 

s
u
d

d
e
n
 a

n
d

 d
is

ru
p

ti
ve

 e
ve

n
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
ld

 W
e
a
th

e
r 

a
n
d

 H
e
a
tw

a
ve

 P
la

n
s
 a

re
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 b
y
 

lo
c
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 u
s
e
 

a
le

rt
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 M

e
te

o
ro

lo
g

ic
a
l 

O
ffi

c
e
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
n
 t
o
 

c
a
s
c
a
d

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

ta
ff

 

a
b

o
u
t 
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

o
ld

 w
e
a
th

e
r 

o
r 

h
e
a
tw

a
ve

 e
ve

n
ts

. 
 

P
u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
ve

 e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 h
a
ve

 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 C

iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 A

c
t 
to

 p
re

p
a
re

 

a
n
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n
d

 t
o
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
ie

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 c

a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

. 
In

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 M

a
jo

r 

In
c
id

e
n
t 
P

la
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

W
E 

N
EE

D 
TO

 H
EL

P
 

OU
R 

CO
M

M
UN

IT
IE

S 
TO

 B
EC

OM
E 

M
OR

E
 

RE
SI

LI
EN

T 
TO

 
CL

IM
A

TE
 C

HA
N

GE
.

A
DO

PT
 A

 
SU

ST
A

IN
A

BI
LI

TY
 

M
A

N
IF

ES
TO

 F
OR

 
HE

A
LT

H 
A

N
D

 
SO

CI
A

L 
CA

RE
.

Page 92



D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
 

2
9

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
2

8

re
s
p

o
n
d

 t
o
 a

n
y
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y,

 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

p
e
c
ifi

c
 p

la
n
s
 o

n
 

re
s
p

o
n
d

in
g

 t
o
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 fl

o
o
d

in
g

. 
 

H
o
w

e
ve

r 
w

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 

th
e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 h

e
lp

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

to
 p

re
p

a
re

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 f
o
r 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
ie

s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 b
y
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t
o
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 t
o
  

a
le

rt
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
w

e
a
th

e
r 

w
a
rn

in
g

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 fl

o
o
d

s.
  

L
o
c
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

L
H

R
P

s
) 

h
a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
o
 o

ve
rs

e
e
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
’s

 p
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
n
e
s
s.

 T
h
e
 L

H
R

P
 m

u
s
t 

a
ls

o
 l
e
a
d

 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
c
to

r’
s
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 w

id
e
r 

m
u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 F

o
ru

m
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
: 

•
 

T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

 s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
o
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

 o
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 H

e
a
tw

a
ve

 P
la

n
 

fo
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 

b
e
fo

re
 n

e
x
t 
s
u
m

m
e
r.

•
 

A
ll 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

p
ro

m
o
te

 u
p

ta
k
e
 o

f 
T
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
’s

 

‘F
lo

o
d

lin
e
 W

a
rn

in
g

s
 

D
ir
e
c
t’
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

tt
p

s
:/
/f
w

d
.

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t-

a
g

e
n
c
y.

g
o
v.

u
k
/a

p
p

/o
lr
/h

o
m

e
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

to
 h

e
lp

 p
re

p
a
re

d
n
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

fl
o
o
d

in
g

. 
 T

h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
 l
in

k
 

to
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

le
rt

s
 o

n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
’ 
in

te
rn

e
t 
s
it
e
s.

•
 

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
H

R
P

),
 a

n
d

 

L
o
c
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 F

o
ru

m
 

(L
R

F
),

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
u
d

it
 l
o
c
a
l 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
’ 
p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
s
e
ve

re
 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

, 
a
n
d

 e
n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

.

3
.8

 D
e

si
g

n
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 

u
rb

a
n

 s
p

a
ce

s 
a

n
d

 p
la

ce
s

Je
re

m
y 

W
ig

h
t 

an
d 

Lo
ui

se
 B

re
w

in
s,

 

S
h

ef
fi

el
d 

C
it

y 
C

ou
nc

il
 

W
h

y
 i
s
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t?

T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

u
rb

a
n
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 a

 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
ro

le
 

to
 p

la
y
 i
n
 h

e
lp

in
g

 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 

o
f 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 t
o
 a

d
o
p

t 
lif

e
s
ty

le
s
 

th
a
t 
a
re

 b
o
th

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
a
n
d

 h
a
ve

 

a
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t,
 b

o
th

 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

a
t 
b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 m

o
re

 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
t 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
 

B
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
u
r 

u
rb

a
n
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
w

e
 c

a
n
 h

e
lp

 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 g

re
e
n
e
r,
 s

tr
o
n
g

e
r 

a
n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

. 
O

u
r 

C
it
y
 

n
e
e
d

s
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 p
la

c
e
 t
h
a
t 
is

 

n
o
t 
o
n
ly

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 a

d
ve

rs
e
 

e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
, 

b
u
t 
a
ls

o
 o

n
e
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

th
a
t 
im

p
ro

ve
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
 W

e
 n

e
e
d

 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 a
n
d

 s
tr

e
n
g

th
e
n
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
’s

 ‘
g

re
e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
’ 
b

y
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

la
n
d

, 
o
p

e
n
 

s
p

a
c
e
s
, 
w

a
te

r 
a
n
d

 p
u
b

lic
 

b
u
ild

in
g

s
 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 C

O
2
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 

to
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

e
ff

e
c
ts

 a
n
d

 

p
ro

m
o
te

s
 h

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
p

la
c
e
s
 i
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

. 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

T
h
e
 E

u
ro

p
e
a
n
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

d
e
fi
n
e
s
 g

re
e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

s
 

‘t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
c
o
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
g

re
e
n
 

s
p

a
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 w
a
te

r 
in

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

la
n
d

 u
s
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

lif
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
It
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

a
rk

s
, 

o
p

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
, 
p

la
y
in

g
 fi

e
ld

s
, 

w
o
o
d

la
n
d

s
, 
w

e
tl
a
n
d

s
, 
ro

a
d

 

ve
rg

e
s
, 
a
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 p
ri
v
a
te

 

g
a
rd

e
n
s.

 G
re

e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

c
a
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
, 

n
a
tu

ra
l 
d

is
a
s
te

r 
ri
s
k
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
, 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
fl
o
o
d

in
g

 a
n
d

 

e
ro

s
io

n
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
.’

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

S
o
u
th

 Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 

(2
0
1
1
) 

s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 g

re
e
n
 

c
a
p

it
a
l 
o
f 

S
o
u
th

 Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 (

i.
e
. 

n
a
tu

ra
l 
a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
o
n
g

e
s
t 
a
n
d

 m
o
s
t 

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
ve

 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
, 

b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f
a
lli

n
g

 s
h
o
rt

 o
f 

re
a
c
h
in

g
 t
h
is

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l.
 K

e
y
 g

a
p

s
 

in
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 c

o
u
ld

 

b
e
 a

c
ti
n
g

 a
s
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 f
u
tu

re
 

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t.
 T

w
o
 m

a
jo

r 
a
s
p

e
c
ts

 

o
f 

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 d

e
-

c
e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d

 e
n
e
rg

y
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

a
n
d

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 u

rb
a
n
 d

ra
in

a
g

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s.

W
h

a
t 

c
a
n

 w
e
 d

o
?

In
 t
h
e
 U

K
, 
a
n
d

 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

, 
o
u
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 

c
e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d

 a
n
d

 r
e
lia

n
t 
o
n
 

im
p

o
rt

e
d

 f
o
s
s
il 

fu
e
ls

. 
W

e
 w

a
n
t 

to
 b

e
 t
h
e
 fi

rs
t 
d

e
c
e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d

 

e
n
e
rg

y
 c

it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 U

K
, 
to

 b
e
 

s
e
lf
-s

u
ffi

c
ie

n
t 
in

 e
n
e
rg

y,
 d

e
ri
ve

d
 

fr
o
m

 l
o
w

 c
a
rb

o
n
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
, 
a
n
d

 

to
 o

ff
s
e
t 
a
ll 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s.

 T
h
e
 

C
it
y
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d

 a
s
 a

 l
e
a
d

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 fi

e
ld

 o
f 

d
e
c
e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d

 

e
n
e
rg

y,
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
it
s
 w

e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 c
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

e
n
e
rg

y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 E

n
e
rg

y
 R

e
c
o
ve

ry
 

F
a
c
ili

ty
 a

t 
B

e
rn

a
rd

 R
o
a
d

, 
a
n
d

 

th
e
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 s

m
a
lle

r 
s
c
a
le

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

e
a
ti
n
g

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

it
y.

 N
e
ve

rt
h
e
le

s
s
 w

e
 

a
ls

o
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 o

th
e
r 

re
n
e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 o

r 
la

rg
e
r 

s
c
a
le

, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk

 o
f 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 R
e
n
e
w

a
b

le
s.

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
is

.

M
o
d

e
rn

 c
it
ie

s
 s

tr
u
g

g
le

 t
o
 c

o
p

e
 

w
it
h
 h

e
a
v
y
 r

a
in

fa
ll,

 w
h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 

le
a
d

 t
o
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 fl

o
o
d

in
g

. 
M

o
s
t 

ra
in

w
a
te

r 
th

a
t 
is

 d
iv

e
rt

e
d

 i
n
to

 

o
u
r 

d
ra

in
s
 d

o
e
s
 s

o
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

p
a
v
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
a
rd

 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
. 
O

u
r 

s
e
w

e
rs

 

a
re

 n
o
t 
la

rg
e
 e

n
o
u
g

h
 t
o
 c

o
p

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

w
a
te

r 
th

a
t 

ru
n
s
 o

ff
 o

u
r 

ro
o
fs

. 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

u
rb

a
n
 d

ra
in

a
g

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 (

S
U

D
s
) 

o
ff

e
r 

a
n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
ve

 t
o
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 

u
n
d

e
rg

ro
u
n
d

 d
ra

in
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

a
lle

v
ia

te
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 

d
ra

in
a
g

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 

fl
a
s
h
 fl

o
o
d

in
g

. 
M

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

c
o
n
tr

o
lli

n
g

 r
a
in

w
a
te

r 
a
t 
s
o
u
rc

e
 

(t
h
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
s
ta

lli
n
g

 w
a
te

r 
b

u
tt
s
 

in
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 b
u
ild

in
g

s
 

w
it
h
 g

re
e
n
 r

o
o
fs

, 
a
n
d

 u
s
in

g
 

p
e
rm

e
a
b

le
 p

a
v
in

g
),

 b
u
ild

in
g

 

in
fi
lt
ra

ti
o
n
 t
re

n
c
h
e
s
, 
fi
lt
e
r 

d
ra

in
s
, 

s
w

a
le

s
 a

n
d

 b
a
s
in

s
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti
n
g

 

m
o
re

 p
o
n
d

s
 a

n
d

 w
e
tl
a
n
d

s.
 

T
h
e
 p

la
n
ti
n
g

 o
f 

m
o
re

 t
re

e
s
 a

n
d

 

s
h
ru

b
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 u

rb
a
n
 d

ra
in

a
g

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 h

e
a
t 

is
la

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ts

. 
T
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 

a
tt
ra

c
t 
w

ild
lif

e
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
, 
th

u
s
 

b
e
n
e
fi
tt
in

g
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d

 m
e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
.

A
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 

th
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

, 
a
 m

a
jo

r 
s
h
if
t 
fr

o
m

 

m
o
to

ri
s
e
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 t
o
 a

c
ti
ve

 

tr
a
ve

l,
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 p

ri
v
a
te

 c
a
rs

 

to
 p

u
b

lic
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
c
o
u
ld

 

b
o
th

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 

o
f 

a
ir
 p

o
llu

ti
o
n
) 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 

h
e
a
lt
h
. 
O

u
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 p

u
b

lic
 

tr
a
n
s
p

o
rt

 o
ve

r 
p

ri
v
a
te

 c
a
r 

u
s
e
, 

a
n
d

 w
a
lk

in
g

 a
n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 o

ve
r 

b
o
th

.

S
h

ar
ro

w
 p

ri
m

ar
y

 s
ch

o
o

l 
is

 a
n

 
ex

ce
ll

en
t 

ex
am

p
le

 o
f 

a 
sm

al
l 

p
ro

je
ct

 o
n

 a
 s

in
g

le
 p

u
b

li
c 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 
th

at
 w

a
s 

d
es

ig
n

ed
 t

o
 h

av
e 

m
a

x
im

u
m

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
en

ta
l 

an
d

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 b
en

efi
ts

. 
A

 k
ey

 f
ea

tu
re

 
is

 t
h

e 
S

ch
o

o
l’s

 g
re

en
 r

o
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

h
el

p
s 

to
 a

ll
ev

ia
te

 e
x

tr
em

e 
ra

in
fa

ll
, 

h
u

m
id

it
y,

 n
o

is
e,

 p
o

ll
u

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
p

ro
v

id
e 

in
su

la
ti

o
n

. 
#

e 
ro

o
f 

w
a

s 

d
es

ig
n

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
m

u
lt

i-
fu

n
ct

io
n

in
g

, 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 l

o
w

 i
n

p
u

t,
 n

o
 a

rt
ifi

ci
al

 
fe

rt
il

is
er

 o
r 

ir
ri

g
at

io
n

, 
to

 
u

se
 l

o
ca

ll
y

 s
o

u
rc

ed
 r

e-
cy

cl
ed

 
m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
cr

ea
te

 a
 g

ar
d

en
 a

n
d

 b
e 

re
si

li
en

t 
to

 t
h

e 
lo

ca
l 

cl
im

at
e.

  #
e 

ro
o

f 
w

a
s 

d
ec

la
re

d
 a

 l
o

ca
l 

n
at

u
re

 
re

se
rv

e 
in

 2
0

0
9

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 m
a
n
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
 c

a
n
 

a
n
d

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t
a
k
in

g
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

a
 g

re
e
n
e
r,
 h

e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
a
n
d

 r
e
s
ili

e
n
t 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

 i
n
, 
b

u
t 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r:
 

•
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 b

u
ilt

 

in
to

 l
o
c
a
l 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 r
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 

a
n
d

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 a

d
a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 

W
E 

N
EE

D 
TO

 
DE

VE
LO

P 
A

N
D

 
ST

RE
N

GT
HE

N
 T

HE
 

CI
TY

’S
 ‘G

RE
EN

 
IN

FR
A

ST
RU

CT
UR

E’
.

W
E 

W
A

N
T 

TO
 

BE
 T

HE
 F

IR
ST

 
DE

CE
N

TR
A

LI
SE

D
 

EN
ER

GY
 C

IT
Y 

IN
 

TH
E 

UK
.

Page 93



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
3

0
3

1

4 
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
E

ac
h

 y
ea

r 
th

e 
D

P
H

 r
ep

o
rt

 m
a

k
es

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
a

b
o

u
t 

im
p

ro
v

in
g

 t
h

e 
h

ea
lt

h
 o

f 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

ir
ec

ts
 t

h
es

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
to

w
ar

d
s 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

o
r 

g
ro

u
p

s.
 I

n
 t

h
is

 c
h

a
p

te
r 

w
e 

b
eg

in
 b

y
 l

o
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e 
p

ro
g

re
ss

 m
ad

e 
a

g
ai

n
st

 t
h

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
in

 t
h

e 
p

re
v

io
u

s 
D

P
H

 r
ep

o
rt

 (
2

0
1

3
).

 #
is

 i
s 

fo
ll

o
w

ed
 b

y
 a

 s
u

m
m

ar
y

 o
f 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

m
ad

e 
in

 t
h

e 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
 s

ec
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
th

is
 2

0
1

4
 r

ep
o

rt
.

#
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

sh
o

u
ld

:
P

ro
g

re
ss

fo
c
u
s
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d

 

p
re

ve
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

E
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

lig
n
e
d

 w
it
h
 B

e
s
t 
S

ta
rt

 S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 m

o
d

e
l 
o
f 

p
re

ve
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 e
a
rl
y
 h

e
lp

 b
a
s
e
d

 a
ro

u
n
d

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s.

 A
 

n
e
w

 B
e
s
t 
S

ta
rt

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

vo
lu

n
te

e
rs

 

a
n
d

 f
o
r 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s.
 I
t 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 p
a
th

w
a
y
 

to
 h

e
lp

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 m
a
x
im

is
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s.
 

re
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
p

re
ve

n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 e
a
rl
y
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

a
n
d

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

A
 H

e
a
lt
h
 N

e
e
d

s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 a
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
p

re
ve

n
ti
o
n
 p

ilo
t 

a
t 
P

a
rk

 A
c
a
d

e
m

y
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
T
h
is

 p
ilo

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
ly

 e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d

 i
n
 a

p
p

ro
v
a
l 
to

 g
o
 a

h
e
a
d

 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 w
o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 3

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
lin

k
in

g
 w

it
h
 M

A
S

T
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
w

id
e
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 c

o
u
n
s
e
lli

n
g

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
n
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 Y

o
u
th

 T
e
a
m

s.
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d

e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
e
p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 S

e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

. 
A

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

lin
ic

a
l 

a
d

v
is

o
ry

 g
ro

u
p

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
n
d

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 S
e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y.

 T
h
is

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
p

e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 a
n
d

 g
o
ve

rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
b

o
u
t 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 b

ro
a
d

e
r 

s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 g

ro
u
p

 b
y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
 

#
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

sh
o

u
ld

:
P

ro
g

re
ss

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
ve

s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
  
b

e
in

g
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 a
c
ti
ve

 t
h
e
 n

o
rm

 b
y
 

b
u
ild

in
g

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
to

 d
a
ily

 

lif
e
. 

T
h
e
 ‘
M

o
ve

 M
o
re

’ 
B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 a
 

c
u
lt
u
re

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
fi
ve

 y
e
a
rs

. 
 

S
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 i
ts

 h
o
lis

ti
c
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
u
ild

in
g

 p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
to

 

d
a
ily

 l
if
e
. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 T

o
u
r 

d
e
 F

ra
n
c
e
 L

e
g

a
c
y,

 S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 e

n
te

re
d

 i
n
to

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 C

y
c
lin

g
. 
T
h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 s

a
w

 S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 h
o
ld

 i
ts

 fi
rs

t 
m

a
s
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

b
ik

e
 r

id
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

tt
e
n
d

e
d

 b
y
 2

,0
0
0
 p

e
o
p

le
.

fu
lly

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 a
 c

it
y
w

id
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 

s
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

ill
ic

it
 t
o
b

a
c
c
o
. 
 

A
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 o

u
tl
in

in
g

 k
e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 

a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

ill
e
g

a
l 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 2

0
1
2
-1

5
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
K

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

; 
D

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d

 e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d

 

re
g

io
n
a
l 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
; 
e
n
g

a
g

in
g

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 

to
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
; 
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 s
h
a
ri
n
g

 

in
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
o
f 

ill
e
g

a
l 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 u

s
e
; 
a
n
d

 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s.

 A
 s

m
a
ll 

te
a
m

 o
f 

To
b

a
c
c
o
 

a
n
d

 A
lc

o
h
o
l 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
O

ffi
c
e
rs

 a
re

 b
a
s
e
d

 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

Tr
a
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 T

e
a
m

. 
  

id
e
n
ti
fy

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
  
 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
 N

e
e
d

s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

 

h
o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
, 
a
n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 

fa
lls

 o
r 

n
e
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
N

in
e
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 h

a
ve

 s
ig

n
e
d

 u
p

 f
o
r 

a
 

p
ilo

t 
p

e
ri
o
d

 u
n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
. 
T
h
e
 C

a
re

 H
o
m

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 G

ro
u
p

 

w
ill

 u
s
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 d
a
ta

 t
o
 d

e
c
id

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 i
s
 t
h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
p

e
rt

in
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
 a

t 
th

is
 t
im

e
. 
C

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

s
k
e
d

 t
o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

ve
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
. 
  

s
e
e
k
 t
o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 
d

e
p

ri
ve

d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

. 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
n
ts

 o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 b

y
 d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 s
o
c
ia

l 

c
a
p

it
a
l.
 I
t 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ra
in

e
rs

 a
n
d

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s.

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

 a
s
 a

 n
e
w

 d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
’ 
p

ro
je

c
t.
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 b

y
: 
e
n
h
a
n
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

k
ill

s
 o

f 
fr

o
n
t 
lin

e
 

s
ta

ff
; 
c
re

a
ti
n
g

 a
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d

 D
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
p

o
s
t;
 

th
e
 ‘
M

a
k
e
 E

ve
ry

 C
o
n
ta

c
t 
C

o
u
n
t’
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
; 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 H
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 
 

re
n
e
w

 i
ts

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y.

T
h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

 n
o
w

 m
e
e
ts

, 
w

it
h
 l
o
ts

 o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
A

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 f
o
llo

w
, 

a
im

in
g

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 5

 w
a
y
s
 t
o
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
: 
C

o
n

n
e
c
t;

 

G
iv

e
; 

B
e
 a

c
ti

v
e
; 

T
a
k
e
 n

o
ti

c
e
; 

K
e
e
p

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

re
s
ili

e
n
c
e
. 
W

h
ile

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 J

o
in

t 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y,

 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 o

ve
rs

e
e
n
 a

n
d

 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

.

p
ro

m
o
te

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
S

C
C

 e
x
e
rt

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
h
a
rm

.

2
2
4
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 (
8
7
%

) 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
ft
e
r 

b
e
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
d

 w
it
h
 a

 F
ix

e
d

 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
. 
1
,3

2
7
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 b
ri
e
f 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 2
,0

2
5
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 a
lc

o
h
o
l 

tr
ia

g
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d

 S
in

g
le

 E
n
tr

y
 

a
n
d

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
P

o
in

t.
 T

h
e
 1

,8
1
0
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
p

la
c
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 b
ri
e
f 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 
‘t
a
lk

in
g

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

’ 
a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

b
a
s
e
d

 p
re

s
c
ri
b

in
g

. 
5
5
 o

ff
e
n
d

e
rs

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t.

4
.1

 P
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 2

0
1

3
 R

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

Page 94



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
 

3
2

3
3

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 i
n
 

th
e
 C

it
y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
. 
A

 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
a
rb

o
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 

n
e
e
d

s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

.

1
2
. T

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

 s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 t
o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

 

o
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
tw

a
ve

 P
la

n
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 b

e
fo

re
 n

e
x
t 

s
u
m

m
e
r.

1
3
. A

ll 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

p
ro

m
o
te

 u
p

ta
k
e
 o

f 
T
h
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
’s

 

‘F
lo

o
d

lin
e
 W

a
rn

in
g

s
 

D
ir
e
c
t’
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

tt
p

s
:/
/f
w

d
.

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t-

a
g

e
n
c
y.

g
o
v.

u
k
/a

p
p

/o
lr
/h

o
m

e
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

to
 h

e
lp

 p
re

p
a
re

d
n
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

fl
o
o
d

in
g

. 
T
h
is

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
 l
in

k
 

to
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

le
rt

s
 o

n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
’ 
in

te
rn

e
t 
s
it
e
s.

1
4
. T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
L
H

R
P

),
 a

n
d

 

L
o
c
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 F

o
ru

m
 

(L
R

F
),

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
u
d

it
 l
o
c
a
l 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
’ 
p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
s
e
ve

re
 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

e
ve

n
ts

, 
a
n
d

 e
n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

d
e
q

u
a
te

.

1
5
. T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 b

u
ilt

 

in
to

 l
o
c
a
l 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d

 r
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 

a
n
d

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
n
g

 a
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 

4
.2

 R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 

2
0

1
4

1
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 d
e
ve

lo
p

 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

o
f 

s
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n
g

 w
a
lk

in
g

 r
o
u
te

s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 i
t 
ta

k
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 

th
e
 d

e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
.

2
. 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 p
e
o
p

le
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

tr
a
ve

lin
g

 s
h
o
rt

 

d
is

ta
n
c
e
s
 o

n
 f
o
o
t 
o
r 

b
y
 

b
ic

y
c
le

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 b

y
 c

a
r,
 

a
n
d

 s
ig

n
 u

p
 t
o
 ‘
M

o
ve

 M
o
re

’ 

a
t 
w

w
w

.m
o
ve

m
o
re

s
h
e
ffi

e
ld

.

c
o
m

.

3
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
m

m
it
 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

2
0
 m

p
h
 z

o
n
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 

a
s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
.

4
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 l
o
c
a
l 

h
o
s
p

it
a
l 
Tr

u
s
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 

d
e
ve

lo
p

 t
h
e
ir
 f
o
o
d

 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d

 

h
e
a
lt
h
 f
a
c
to

rs
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 r
e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 m

e
a
t 

a
n
d

 d
a
ir

y
 i
n
 m

e
n
u
s.

5
. 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 p
e
o
p

le
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

m
e
a
t 
th

e
y
 e

a
t 
b

y
 

a
d

o
p

ti
n
g

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 m

e
a
t 

fr
e
e
 d

a
y
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k
.

6
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

 

fu
e
l 
p

o
ve

rt
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 s

te
p

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
in

s
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 s

e
c
to

r,
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 S

A
P

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

s
e
c
to

r 
is

 6
5
 b

y
 2

0
2
0
, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

m
in

im
u
m

 S
A

P
 i
s
 6

5
 b

y
 2

0
2
5
.

7
. 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 c
a
re

 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 s
h
o
u
ld

 

s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
o
 f
u
e
l 
p

o
ve

rt
y,

 

a
n
d

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h
a
t.

8
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 fi

n
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

in
i-

S
te

rn
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
re

 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

lo
w

 c
a
rb

o
n
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
ve

s
tm

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

lo
w

 

c
a
rb

o
n
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s.

9
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 w
o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 

vo
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
in

  
lo

c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s.

1
0
. T

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

, 
a
n
d

 S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

’s
 

N
H

S
 F

o
u
n
d

a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
ts

, 

s
h
o
u
ld

 a
d

o
p

t 
a
n
 e

x
p

lic
it
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 p
o
lic

y
 a

im
e
d

 

a
t 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 
S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 

m
e
e
ts

 i
ts

 c
a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
b

lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 2

0
2
0
. 
T
h
is

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
n
e
d

 

b
y
 t
h
e
 a

d
o
p

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 m
a
n
if
e
s
to

 f
o
r 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y.

1
1
. T

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

B
o
a
rd

 s
h
o
u
ld

 g
iv

e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
s
 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n
t 

#
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

sh
o

u
ld

:
P

ro
g

re
ss

in
c
re

a
s
e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s.

 

S
e
c
u
re

d
 f
u
n
d

in
g

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ilo
t 
w

it
h
 S

C
C

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n
d

 

S
k
ill

s
 t
e
a
m

, 
J
o
b

 C
e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 a

n
d

 G
P

s
 i
n
 N

o
rt

h
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
. 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 a

n
d

 A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

, 

th
e
 C

C
G

 a
n
d

 V
C

F
 s

e
c
to

r. 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
n
e
d

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d

 

N
o
ve

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1
4
, 
p

a
th

w
a
y
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 b
y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 S

p
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
5
. 
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 i
m

p
ro

ve
d

 u
p

ta
k
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
. 

H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

C
G

’s
 ‘
b

a
s
k
e
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
’ 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
c
o
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
a
ll 

G
P

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 S

h
e
ffi

e
ld

. 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 s

e
rv

in
g

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
d

is
a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e
d

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p

p
o
rt

 i
n
 s

e
tt
in

g
 

u
p

 a
n
d

 r
u
n
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 
T
h
e
re

 a
re

 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 S

C
C

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
te

e
ri
n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 a
b

o
u
t 
h
o
w

 H
e
a
lt
h
 C

h
e
c
k
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
. 
  

PR
OG

RE
SS

 
IS

 B
EI

N
G 

M
A

DE
IN

 S
HE

FF
IE

LD
 

BU
T 

TH
ER

E 
IS

 
ST

IL
L 

A
 LO

T 
M

OR
E

TO
 D

O.

Page 95



C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
  |

  
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

S
h
e
ffi

e
ld

 2
0
1
4

  |
  

C
LI

M
A

TE
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 A

N
D

 H
E

A
LT

H
3

4
3

5

5 
 G

lo
ss

ar
y

A
d

a
p

ta
ti
o
n
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
) 

A
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 m

a
d

e
 t
o
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
u
m

a
n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t
o
 c

lim
a
ti
c
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
d

u
c
e
s
 r

is
k
s
 o

r 
e
x
p

lo
it
s
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s.

A
e
ro

a
lle

rg
e
n
s

A
n
y
 a

ir
b

o
rn

e
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 p

o
lle

n
 o

r 
s
p

o
re

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 t
ri
g

g
e
rs

 a
n
 a

lle
rg

ic
 

re
a
c
ti
o
n
 (

e
.g

. 
h
a
y
 f
e
ve

r)
.

A
rt

h
ro

p
o
d

s
A

n
 i
n
ve

rt
e
b

ra
te

 a
n
im

a
l 
h
a
v
in

g
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
s
k
e
le

to
n
, 
a
 s

e
g

m
e
n
te

d
 b

o
d

y,
 a

n
d

 j
o
in

te
d

 

a
p

p
e
n
d

a
g

e
s.

 A
rt

h
ro

p
o
d

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
s
e
c
ts

, 
s
p

id
e
rs

, 
a
n
d

 c
ru

s
ta

c
e
a
n
s.

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

T
h
e
 d

e
g

re
e
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
lif

e
.

C
a
rb

o
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 “

m
e
a
s
u
re

” 
a
m

o
u
n
ts

 o
f 

c
a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 e
m

it
te

d
 

b
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s.

C
a
rb

o
n
 c

a
p

tu
re

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(a
n
d

 s
to

ra
g

e
)

T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
a
p

tu
ri
n
g

 w
a
s
te

 c
a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 f
ro

m
 l
a
rg

e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 f
o
s
s
il 

fu
e
l 
p

o
w

e
r 

p
la

n
ts

, 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

in
g

 i
t 
to

 a
 s

to
ra

g
e
 s

it
e
, 
a
n
d

 d
e
p

o
s
it
in

g
 i
t 
w

h
e
re

 i
t 
w

ill
 

n
o
t 
e
n
te

r 
th

e
 a

tm
o
s
p

h
e
re

, 
n
o
rm

a
lly

 u
n
d

e
rg

ro
u
n
d

. 

C
a
rb

o
n
 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t

T
h
e
 “

to
ta

l”
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 

e
ve

n
t,
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 
o
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
.

C
a
rb

o
n
 s

in
k

A
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

a
rt

ifi
c
ia

l 
re

s
e
rv

o
ir
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
c
u
m

u
la

te
s
 a

n
d

 s
to

re
s
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
rb

o
n
-

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 c

h
e
m

ic
a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
u
n
d

 f
o
r 

a
n
 i
n
d

e
fi
n
it
e
 p

e
ri
o
d

.

C
ry

p
to

s
p

o
ri
d

io
s
is

A
 p

a
ra

s
it
ic

 d
is

e
a
s
e
  
th

a
t 
a
ff

e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

s
ti
n
e
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 t
y
p

ic
a
lly

 a
n
 a

c
u
te

 s
h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

 

in
fe

c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
is

 o
ft
e
n
 s

p
re

a
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 w

a
te

r.

D
e
fo

re
s
ta

ti
o
n

R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

a
 f
o
re

s
t 
o
r 

s
ta

n
d

 o
f 

tr
e
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d

 i
s
 t
h
e
re

a
ft
e
r 

c
o
n
ve

rt
e
d

 t
o
 a

 

n
o
n
-f

o
re

s
t 
u
s
e
. 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
ve

rs
io

n
 o

f 
fo

re
s
tl
a
n
d

 t
o
 f
a
rm

s
 o

r 
fo

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
.

F
o
s
s
il 

E
n
e
rg

y
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 f
o
rm

e
d

 b
y
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 d

e
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
b

u
ri
e
d

 

d
e
a
d

 o
rg

a
n
is

m
s.

 T
h
e
y
 c

o
n
ta

in
 h

ig
h
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
c
a
rb

o
n
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
a
l,
 

p
e
tr

o
le

u
m

, 
a
n
d

 n
a
tu

ra
l 
g

a
s.

G
lo

b
a
l 
w

a
rm

in
g

T
h
e
 o

b
s
e
rv

e
d

 r
is

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e
 E

a
rt

h
’s

 c
lim

a
te

 s
y
s
te

m
.

G
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s

A
 g

a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

tm
o
s
p

h
e
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
b

s
o
rb

s
 a

n
d

 e
m

it
s
 r

a
d

ia
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t
h
e
rm

a
l 

in
fr

a
re

d
 r

a
n
g

e
. 
T
h
e
 m

a
in

 g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rt

h
’s

 a
tm

o
s
p

h
e
re

 a
re

 w
a
te

r 

v
a
p

o
r,
 c

a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
, 
m

e
th

a
n
e
, 
n
it
ro

u
s
 o

x
id

e
, 
a
n
d

 o
z
o
n
e
. 
G

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
e
s
 

g
re

a
tl
y
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 t
e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e
 E

a
rt

h
.

In
fi
lt
ra

ti
o
n
 t
re

n
c
h
e
s

A
 s

h
a
llo

w
, 
e
x
c
a
v
a
te

d
 d

it
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 fi

lle
d

 w
it
h
 r

u
b

b
le

 o
r 

s
to

n
e
 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 a
n
 

u
n
d

e
rg

ro
u
n
d

 r
e
s
e
rv

o
ir.

L
e
g

io
n
n
a
ir
e
’s

 d
is

e
a
s
e

A
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 l
u
n
g

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
n
 c

a
u
s
e
d

 b
y
 l
e
g

io
n
e
lla

 b
a
c
te

ri
a
. 
T
h
e
 b

a
c
te

ri
a
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
o
n
ly

 

fo
u
n
d

 i
n
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
w

a
te

r,
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 r

iv
e
rs

 a
n
d

 l
a
k
e
s.

 H
o
w

e
ve

r,
 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 r

a
p

id
ly

 

m
u
lt
ip

ly
 i
f 

th
e
y
 fi

n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 w

a
y
 i
n
to

 a
rt

ifi
c
ia

l 
w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
ly

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

ir
 

c
o
n
d

it
io

n
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s.

L
e
p

to
s
p

ir
o
s
is

A
 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
b

a
c
te

ri
a
l 
in

fe
c
ti
o
n
 s

p
re

a
d

 b
y
 s

o
il 

o
r 

w
a
te

r 
c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 u

ri
n
e
 

o
f 

a
n
im

a
ls

 (
c
o
m

m
o
n
ly

 r
o
d

e
n
ts

).
 I
n
 i
ts

 m
o
s
t 
s
e
ve

re
 f
o
rm

, 
le

p
to

s
p

ir
o
s
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 

k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 W

e
il’

s
 d

is
e
a
s
e
.

L
y
m

e
 d

is
e
a
s
e

A
 b

a
c
te

ri
a
l 
in

fe
c
ti
o
n
 s

p
re

a
d

 t
o
 h

u
m

a
n
s
 b

y
 i
n
fe

c
te

d
 t
ic

k
s.

 T
ic

k
s
 a

re
 t
in

y
 a

ra
c
h
n
id

s
 

fo
u
n
d

 i
n
 w

o
o
d

la
n
d

 a
re

a
s
 t
h
a
t 
fe

e
d

 o
n
 t
h
e
 b

lo
o
d

 o
f 

m
a
m

m
a
ls

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

u
m

a
n
s.

M
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

(C
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
)

S
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 o

r 
p

re
ve

n
t 
h
u
m

a
n
 i
n
d

u
c
e
d

 e
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
g

re
e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 g

a
s
e
s
 

a
n
d

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 s

in
k
s
 (

e
.g

. 
n
e
w

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 
re

n
e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y,
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g

 

c
o
n
s
u
m

e
r 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r)

. 

P
a
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
o
lin

g
B

u
ild

in
g

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
fo

c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 h

e
a
t 
g

a
in

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d

 h
e
a
t 
d

is
s
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

in
 a

 b
u
ild

in
g

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 t
h
e
 i
n
d

o
o
r 

th
e
rm

a
l 
c
o
m

fo
rt

 w
it
h
 l
o
w

 o
r 

n
il 

e
n
e
rg

y
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
. 

P
a
th

o
g

e
n
s

In
 t
h
e
 b

ro
a
d

e
s
t 
s
e
n
s
e
 a

 p
a
th

o
g

e
n
 i
s
 a

n
y
th

in
g

 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 d

is
e
a
s
e
. 
T
y
p

ic
a
lly

 

th
e
 t
e
rm

 i
s
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 m

e
a
n
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
u
s
 a

g
e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 b

a
c
te

ri
a
 o

r 
v
ir

u
s
e
s.

P
e
rm

a
fr

o
s
t

S
o
il 

a
t 
o
r 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
re

e
z
in

g
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

w
a
te

r 
fo

r 
tw

o
 o

r 
m

o
re

 y
e
a
rs

 a
n
d

 m
o
s
tl
y
 

lo
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 h

ig
h
 l
a
ti
tu

d
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 l
a
n
d

 c
lo

s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o
u
th

 p
o
le

s.

R
e
s
ili

e
n
c
e

A
n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l’s

 o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
’s

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 p

ro
p

e
rl
y
 a

d
a
p

t 
to

 s
tr

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

ve
rs

it
y.

S
a
lm

o
n
e
lla

A
 g

ro
u
p

 o
f 

b
a
c
te

ri
a
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 c

a
u
s
e
 f
o
o
d

 p
o
is

o
n
in

g
. 
F
o
o
d

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 e

g
g

s
, 
c
h
ic

k
e
n
, 

p
o
rk

 a
n
d

 d
a
ir

y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 c

a
n
 c

a
rr

y
 s

a
lm

o
n
e
lla

s.
 F

ru
it
 a

n
d

 v
e
g

e
ta

b
le

s
 c

a
n
 a

ls
o
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 i
f 

th
e
y
 h

a
ve

 b
e
e
n
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 l
iv

e
s
to

c
k
, 
m

a
n
u
re

 o
r 

u
n
tr

e
a
te

d
 w

a
te

r.

S
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
p

it
a
l

T
h
e
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 a
n
d

 i
n
te

n
s
it
y
 o

f 
n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 n

o
rm

s
, 
v
a
lu

e
s
 

a
n
d

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ri
s
e
 f
ro

m
 a

n
d

 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 c
o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 a
n
d

 a
m

o
n
g

 

th
o
s
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s.

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
  
  
  

p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

 (
S

A
P

)

M
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 t
h
e
 B

u
ild

in
g

 R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 

c
o
m

p
a
re

 t
h
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
d

w
e
lli

n
g

s.
 T

h
e
 S

A
P

 

q
u
a
n
ti
fi
e
s
 a

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

’s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
e
n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
 p

e
r 

u
n
it
 fl

o
o
r 

a
re

a
, 
a
 

fu
e
l-
c
o
s
t-

b
a
s
e
d

 e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
c
y
 r

a
ti
n
g

 a
n
d

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
C

O
2
. 
T
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
e
 

S
A

P
 r

a
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 b

e
tt
e
r.

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 u

rb
a
n
  
  
  
  
  

d
ra

in
a
g

e
 s

y
s
te

m

A
 s

e
q

u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o
 d

ra
in

 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
in

 a
 m

o
re

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 f
a
s
h
io

n
 t
h
a
n
 s

o
m

e
 c

o
n
ve

n
ti
o
n
a
l 
te

c
h
n
iq

u
e
s.

S
w

a
le

s
 a

n
d

 b
a
s
in

s
S

w
a
le

s
 a

re
 g

ra
s
s
e
d

 d
e
p

re
s
s
io

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 l
e
a
d

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
ru

n
o
ff

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

d
ra

in
e
d

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
 t
o
 s

to
ra

g
e
 o

r 
a
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 (

e
.g

. 
a
 b

a
s
in

) 
ty

p
ic

a
lly

 u
s
in

g
 

th
e
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 r

u
n
 a

lo
n
g

s
id

e
 a

 r
o
a
d

 o
r 

d
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t.
 A

 b
a
s
in

 i
s
 a

 d
ry

 

o
r 

w
e
t 
p

o
n
d

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
u
a
te

 s
to

rm
 w

a
te

r 
ru

n
o
ff

 f
o
r 

a
 f
e
w

 h
o
u
rs

 a
n
d

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 

th
e
 s

e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

s
o
lid

s.

Te
le

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 t
e
le

c
a
re

Te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
a
la

rm
s
 a

n
d

 h
e
a
lt
h
-m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 d
e
v
ic

e
s
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 

p
e
o
p

le
 l
iv

e
 m

o
re

 i
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tl
y
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
. 
T
h
e
y
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
g

u
la

r 
v
is

it
s
 s

o
m

e
o
n
e
 m

a
y
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

P
 o

r 
h
o
s
p

it
a
l.

T
h
e
rm

a
l 
e
ffi

c
ie

n
c
y

H
o
w

 w
e
ll 

a
 d

e
v
ic

e
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 b
o
ile

r 
o
r 

re
fr

ig
e
ra

to
r,
 c

o
n
ve

rt
s
 e

n
e
rg

y
 i
n
to

 h
e
a
t.

U
-V

a
lu

e
A

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 

h
e
a
t 
lo

s
s
 i
n
 a

 b
u
ild

in
g

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 w
a
ll,

 fl
o
o
r 

o
r 

ro
o
f. 

A
 l
o
w

 U
 

v
a
lu

e
 u

s
u
a
lly

 i
n
d

ic
a
te

s
 h

ig
h
 l
e
ve

ls
 o

f 
in

s
u
la

ti
o
n
.

U
rb

a
n
 h

e
a
t 
is

la
n
d

s
A

 m
e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n
 a

re
a
 t
h
a
t 
is

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
tl
y
 w

a
rm

e
r 

th
a
n
 i
ts

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d

in
g

 r
u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 h

u
m

a
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s.
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 u

rb
a
n
 h

e
a
t 
is

la
n
d

 e
ff

e
c
t 
is

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 m

o
d

ifi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
la

n
d

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 u

s
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
ve

ly
 s

to
re

 s
h
o
rt

-

w
a
ve

 r
a
d

ia
ti
o
n
.

V
e
ro

c
y
to

to
x
in

 p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
  
  
  
 

E
-C

o
li 

(V
T
E

C
)

A
 g

ro
u
p

 o
f 

b
a
c
te

ri
a
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
u
s
e
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
u
s
 g

a
s
tr

o
e
n
te

ri
ti
s.

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 s
o
u
rc

e
 f
o
r 

V
T
E

C
 i
s
 c

a
tt
le

 a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

ru
m

in
a
n
ts

. 
Tr

a
n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 h

u
m

a
n
s
 o

c
c
u
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 f
o
o
d

 o
r 

w
a
te

r,
 o

r 
e
x
p

o
s
u
re

 t
o
 a

 c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
in

vo
lv

in
g

 d
ir
e
c
t 
o
r 

in
d

ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 a

n
im

a
ls

 o
r 

th
e
ir
 f
a
e
c
e
s.

W
e
tl
a
n
d

s
L
a
n
d

 a
re

a
 t
h
a
t 
is

 s
a
tu

ra
te

d
 w

it
h
 w

a
te

r,
 e

it
h
e
r 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 o

r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
a
lly

, 
s
u
c
h
 

th
a
t 
it
 t
a
k
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 o

f 
a
 d

is
ti
n
c
t 
e
c
o
s
y
s
te

m
. 
M

a
in

 t
y
p

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

s
w

a
m

p
s
, 
m

a
rs

h
e
s
, 
b

o
g

s
 a

n
d

 f
e
n
s.

Page 96



CLIMATE CHANGE AND HEALTH  |  Director of  Public Health Report for Sheffield 2014 36

Your views
We are keen to hear your views on this report. If you 
would like to make any comments please contact the 
Director of Public Health:

Dr Jeremy Wight
Director of Public Health
Sheffield City Council
Town Hall
Pinstone Street 
Sheffield 
S1 2HH

Telephone: 0114 205 7462
Email: jeremy.wight@sheffield.gcsx.gov.uk

More information

An online version of this report, 
and the full report with references, is available at: 
www.sheffield.gov.uk/publichealthreport

This document can be supplied in alternative formats,

please contact 0114 205 7457 

Sheffield City Council

www.sheffield.gov.uk 

DP16106

This document is printed
on 80% recycled paper

When you have finished with
this document please recycle it

80%

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:  Dr Jeremy Wight, Director of Public Health 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:   26th March 2015 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:  Air Quality and health in Sheffield 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Dr Olufunke Adedeji, Consultant in Public Health 0114 2057464 

Dr Ogo Osammor, Air Quality Officer 0114 273 4655 
 Magdalena Boo, Health Improvement Principal  

0114 205 7470 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
This report is to inform the Health & Wellbeing Board (HWB) about Air quality as a public 
health priority in Sheffield, to draw attention to the level of air pollution in the city, 
particularly with respect to nitrogen dioxide (NO2) gas and PM10 fine dust particles, and to 
provide an update on progress towards achieving target outcomes of: 
 

- A reduction in pollutants; 
- A measurable improvement in air quality; and, 
- A reduction in mortality attributable to air quality; 

 
Poor air quality adversely affects human health, and has recently been estimated to 
account for up to 500 premature deaths per year in Sheffield, with health costs of around 
£160 million per year (PHE, April 2014, SCC, 2012, Environment Select Committee, 2010). 
 
Sheffield declared an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) in 2010, across the entire 
urban area of the city, for breaching the health based EU limit values for NO2 and PM10. 
 
As a result, the Council produced an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) 2015 to cover, the 
period up to 2015, with the aim of reducing NO2 and PM10 levels in order to improve the 
health of local people. Simon Green, Executive Director of Place Portfolio is the Delivery 
Champion. The Director of Public Health is the Vision Champion and is reporting in this 
capacity to HWB. The AQAP will be refreshed in 2015. 
 

SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

BOARD PAPER 

Agenda Item 10

Page 99



2 
 

£54k from the PH Grant is currently invested in this work annually to support public health 
priorities.  The service will be reviewed, re-scoped, re-specified and tendered in 2015 to 
ensure this investment supports public health outcomes. 
 
This report will briefly summarise: 
What we know about air quality in Sheffield e.g. trends from baseline 
What we are doing to improve air quality in Sheffield, by implementing the AQAP 2015 and 
what is the likely impact on health, in terms of both morbidity and mortality 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Questions for the Health and Wellbeing Board: 
 

This report is intended to facilitate discussion by the HWB on: 
- What is the likely impact on air quality, in quantitative terms, of the implementation of 

the AQAP 2015 and will that have sufficient impact on reducing ill health and 
mortality? 

 
- If what we are doing is not likely to have sufficient impact on reducing morbidity and 

mortality, how can we secure these outcomes, including through investing more or 
differently? 

 
Recommendations: 
 

• The Health & Wellbeing Board notes the current data on air quality in Sheffield; 

• The Health & Wellbeing Board supports the ongoing investment from the public 
health grant in this work; 

• That further work is undertaken to assess what the likely impact of implementation of 
the AQAP on air pollution is likely to be, and further, what the impact will be of any 
consequent reduction in air pollution on health. 

• The Health & Wellbeing Board is involved in the review and refresh of the Air Quality 
Action Plan 2015, in particular to consider whether it is sufficiently ambitious given 
the scale of the public health problem. 

 
Reasons for Recommendations: 
 

• Improving air quality in Sheffield will contribute to reducing morbidity and mortality 
attributable to air pollution; 

• £54,000 of the public health grant is annually invested in this work; 

• We cannot currently be confident about the likely impact of the AQAP on health in 
Sheffield. 

• The Air Quality Action Plan 2015 refresh is an opportunity for the Health & Wellbeing 
Board to engage in this agenda which impacts on many key aspects of population 
health; 
 

Background Papers: 
Sheffield Air Quality Action Plan 2015 
Air Aware Campaign Materials 

Page 100



3 
 

AIR QUALITY AND HEALTH IN SHEFFIELD 
 
1.0 SUMMARY 

This report is to inform the Health & Wellbeing Board (HWB) about air quality as a 
public health priority in Sheffield, also to draw attention to the level of air pollution in the 
city, particularly with respect to nitrogen dioxide (NO2) gas and PM10 fine dust particles, 
and to provide an update on progress towards achieving target outcomes of: 

 
- A reduction in pollutants; 
- A measurable improvement in air quality; and, 
- A reduction in mortality attributable to air quality; 

 
Poor air quality adversely affects human health, and has recently been estimated to 
account for up to 500 premature deaths per year in Sheffield, with health costs of around 
£160 million per year (SCC, 2012, Environment Select Committee, 2010). 
 
Sheffield declared an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) in 2010, across the entire 
urban area of the city, for breaching the health based EU limit values for NO2 gas and PM10. 
 
As a result, the Council produced an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) 2015 to cover the 
period up to 2015, with the aim of reducing NO2 and PM10 levels in order to improve the 
health of local people. Simon Green, Executive Director of Place Portfolio is the Delivery 
Champion. The Director of Public Health is the Vision Champion and is reporting in this 
capacity to HWB. The AQAP will be refreshed in 2015. 
 
£54k from the PH Grant is currently invested in this work annually to support public health 
priorities.  The service will be reviewed, re-scoped, re-specified and tendered in 2015 to 
ensure this investment supports public health outcomes. 
 
This report will briefly summarise: 
What we know about air quality in Sheffield e.g. trends from baseline 
What we are doing to improve air quality in Sheffield – implementing the AQAP 2015, and 
what is the likely impact on health, in terms of both morbidity and mortality 
 
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE? 

 
2.1 Air quality is a major public health issue for the city.  An estimated 300-500 

premature deaths per year in Sheffield are attributable to poor air quality (PHE, 
April 2014, SCC, 2012). 
 

Page 101



4 
 

 
 

2.2 The impacts on life expectancy and ill health are unequal, with more effects on 
the young, the old and those with pre-existing heart and lung conditions. For 
individuals who are particularly sensitive and exposed to the most elevated 
levels of air pollution, the reduction in life expectancy is estimated to be as high 
as nine years (SCC, 2012). 

 
2.3 Air quality is worse along busy road corridors and in the more disadvantaged 

areas.  Poor air quality is therefore a significant contributor to health inequalities 
in the City. 

 
2.4 Reducing exposure of individuals to air pollution, as well as reducing the 

production of pollutants may reduce health effects, although further research is 
needed on the relationship between long and short term exposure and health 
impacts (DH, 2006). Therefore, public information and awareness on reducing 
exposure, such as the recent “Air Aware” campaign in Sheffield, may be 
beneficial. The campaign information can be accessed from the website 
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/environment/air-quality/air-aware-sheffield.html 
 

 
 

Page 102



5 
 

3.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 
 

3.1 This report will briefly summarise:  
 

- What we know about air quality in Sheffield e.g. trends from baseline 
- What we are doing to improve air quality in Sheffield, by implementing the 

AQAP 2015 and what is the likely impact on health, in terms of both 
morbidity and mortality 
 

3.2 What we know about air quality in Sheffield? 
 

3.3 Reflecting national trends and many other major cities in the UK, Sheffield 
currently breaches UK and European Union (EU) health-based thresholds for 
air quality, particularly NO2 and PM10, and declared an Air Quality Management 
Area (AQMA) in 2010, across the entire urban area of Sheffield. The deadline 
for compliance with EU and National Law on Air Quality Limit Values was 01 
January 2015 and the Council is not likely to be compliant of these regulations 
until 2020 at the earliest (House of Commons, 8 December 2014, SCC 2013).  
 

3.4 Road transport is the most significant overall single contributor to Sheffield’s 
NO2 emissions. Addressing traffic related emissions, with a particular focus on 
the most polluting vehicles (buses, taxis and OGVs) would therefore have a 
significant beneficial impact on Sheffield’s air quality (data from Sheffield LEZ 
study).  
 

3.5 In line with Government regulation, Sheffield City Council has continuously 
monitored air quality over the past decade through its’ monitoring programme 
including, Local Transport Plan (LTP), Local Sustainable Transport Fund 
(LSTF) and specific schemes funded programmes. 
 

3.6 Sheffield City Council owns six automatic air quality monitors sited at Tinsley 
Infant School (PM10, PM 2.5, NO2) , Lowfield School (PM10, SO2, NO2), King 
Ecgbert old School site (PM10,  03, NO2), Firvale School (PM10, SO2, NO2), 
Waingate (PM10, NO2) and The Wicker (PM10, NO2, O3). In addition DEFRA 
own a further two sites in the city centre and at Tinsley.  Further detail of what is 
monitored at each site and maps of air quality are available through the 
Sheffield City Council website: https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/environment/air-
quality/monitoring.html 
 

3.7 Sheffield City Council also funds ‘East End Quality of Life (EEQOL)’ to conduct 
community monitoring of NO2 using diffusion tubes and to communicate the 
results to community groups and interested individuals in Sheffield. The sites 
are selected and managed by volunteers based on their perceptions of where 
air quality is likely to be poor or require monitoring; laboratory analysis of the 
diffusion tubes and data analysis of the results is provided by the project. The 
data provides a useful addition to the automatic monitoring sites results. 
 

3.8 Data is therefore collected at hundreds of sites across the Sheffield area. 
Analysis of the data from these sites identified 51 locations within the AQMA, 
where the 40µg/m3 health-based annual average limit for NO2 was breached in 

Page 103



6 
 

one or more of the 3 years for which the AQ data was studied (2010-2012) 
(Sheffield LEZ Study, 2013).  
 

3.9 The Table below shows an estimate of how much these sites are likely to 
exceed the 40µg/m3 EU limit in 2013 (Sheffield LEZ Study, 2013). It shows that 
41 out of 51 (80.39%) sites would require NO2 reduction to comply with EU limit 
and protect health (SCC LEZ Study, 2013). 

 

PERCENT REDUCTION REQUIRED NUMBER OF SITES 

0% 10 

0-5% 8 

5-10% 12 

10-20% 13 

20-30% 8 

Total 51 

 
3.10 Analysis of Sheffield’s hospital admissions for ‘Circulatory diseases’ and for 

coronary heart disease also both show a strong correlation with the annual 
average concentration of small particulate matter in the relevant 
neighbourhoods – see Appendix A for details. This observation is important, 
given there is no safe level for particulate matter, particularly, PM2.5 (SCC LEZ 
Study, 2013). 

 
3.11 Results from Sheffield air quality monitoring can be accessed through the 

Sheffield City Council website https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/environment/air-
quality.html, which links to a Sheffield Air Quality monitoring website with an 
interactive map https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/environment/air-
quality/monitoring.html  
 

3.12 EEQOL monitoring information demonstrates a number of neighbourhoods 
are breaching NO2 European annual limit values, particularly areas around busy 
roads such as Abbeydale Road Corridor 
http://www.sheffieldeastend.org.uk/AQmonitoring.htm 

 
3.13 Although the majority of the local data is for NO2, linked to the EU health limit 

value, the best evidence for health harms from poor air quality concerns fine 
particulate matter (PM2.5) (DH, 2006). The Public Health Outcomes Framework 
indicator for air pollution 3.01 Fraction of mortality attributable to particulate air 
pollution concerns PM2.5 for this reason. COMEAP cites emerging evidence of 
the health effects of NO2 alone, rather than as part of ambient air pollution, but 
further research is required to quantify the specific health effects (COMEAP, 
March 2015). 

 
3.14  Sheffield Air Map showing site and type of air quality monitoring (source: 

http://www.sheffieldairmap.org/view_map.html, accessed 16/03/15) 

Page 104



7 
 

 
 

3.15 What we are doing to improve air quality in Sheffield, including the 
AQAP actions? 
 

3.16 Sheffield produced an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) for Sheffield in July 
2012, approved by Cabinet, which sets out how problems with air quality in the 
city will be tackled. 
 

3.17 The AQAP sets out 7 key actions with designated lead officers who are 
represented on the AQAP Steering Group - chaired by the Director of 
Regeneration and Development – and on the AQAP Working Group. Progress 
against each of these 7 key actions is set out in 

(appendix1)  
 

3.18 The governance of the Air Quality Action Plan is described in the diagram 
below. The senior leads are the Director of Public Health, who is the Vision 

Page 105



8 
 

Champion (as part of his role on the City’s Health and Wellbeing Board) and the 
Executive Director of the Place Portfolio, who is the Delivery Champion of the 
Air Quality Action Plan. 
 

 
 
 

3.19 The success of the AQAP is dependent on a major shift away from the use of 
diesel fuel in the urban area of Sheffield. Without significant investment it is 
likely that NO2 limit values will continue to be breached. The success or 
otherwise of Sheffield in attracting OLEV funding for ultra-low emission vehicles 
is therefore a critical success factor for the AQAP in Sheffield. 

 
3.20 If the recommended LEZ Strategy, a key action of AQAP 2015, was 

implemented, the Table below shows an estimate of how by much these sites 
are likely to exceed the 40µg/m3 EU limit (SCC LEZ Study, 2013). 
 

PERCENT REDUCTION REQUIRED 
NUMBER OF SITES (PRE-

LEZ STRATEGY) 

NUMBER OF SITES 

(POST-LEZ STRATEGY) 

0% 10 33 

0-5% 8 2 

5-10% 12 6 

10-20% 13 8 

20-30% 8 1 

30-35% 0 1 

Total 51 51 

Page 106



9 
 

 
3.21 From the findings presented in the above Table, it can be concluded that the 

full implementation of the AQAP 2015 would make air quality better at 
approximately 33 out of 51 (45%) of the sites that exceed the 40µg/m3 limit, 
though not before 2020. The forecast improvement in air quality should also 
have a likely beneficial impact on health, in terms of both morbidity and 
mortality, though this cannot currently be quantified.   
 

3.22 The likely impact of implementation of the AQAP on particulate air pollution 
has not been estimated.  As a consequence, it is not possible to state by how 
much the implementation of the Plan will improve health in the City. 
 

3.23 Further modelling is required to estimate the health benefits that could be 
derived from the different air pollution reduction forecasts in 3.19 (above). In 
general terms, the best evidence of health impacts of air pollution is from long 
term exposure to ambient air pollution, therefore any action by Sheffield City 
Council to reduce exposure over time is likely to be beneficial 

 
4.0 QUESTIONS FOR THE BOARD 

 
4.1 This report is intended to facilitate discussion by the HWB on: 

 
4.2 Whether the implementation of the AQAP will that have sufficient impact on 

reducing ill health and mortality? 
 

4.3 If what we are doing is not likely to have sufficient impact on reducing morbidity 
and mortality, how can we secure these outcomes, including through investing 
more or differently? 

 
5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

5.1 The Health & Wellbeing Board notes the current data on air quality in Sheffield; 
5.2 The Health & Wellbeing Board supports the ongoing investment from the public 

health grant in this work; 
5.3 That further work is undertaken to assess what the likely impact of 

implementation of the AQAP on air pollution is likely to be, and further, what the 
impact will be of any consequent reduction in air pollution on health. 

5.4 The Health & Wellbeing Board is involved in the review and refresh of the Air 
Quality Action Plan 2015, in particular to consider whether it is sufficiently 
ambitious given the scale of the public health problem. 

 
6.0 REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1 Improving air quality in Sheffield will contribute to reducing morbidity and 
mortality attributable to air pollution; 

6.2 £54,000 of the public health grant is annually invested in this work; 
6.3 We cannot currently be confident about the likely impact of the AQAP on health 

in Sheffield. 
6.4 The Air Quality Action Plan 2015 refresh is an opportunity for the Health & 

Wellbeing Board to engage in this agenda which impacts on many key aspects 
of population health; 
 

Page 107



10 
 

The estimate of annual average concentrations of 
particulate matter (PM2.5) in each Sheffield 
neighbourhood in 2010 was plotted against the 
number of hospital admissions per 100,000 
population from these neighbourhoods for: a) 
circulatory diseases and b) coronary heart disease 
emergencies. The results and the corresponding 
best-fitting trends are illustrated in the figures below. 

City Centre

y = 0.21x2.87

R² = 0.38

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

PM2.5 (2010)

CHD Emergency Admissions (All ages)

y = 0.34x2.66

R² = 0.38

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

PM2.5 (2010)

CHD Emergency Admissions (All ages)

y = 45.5x1.42

R² = 0.32

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

PM2.5 (2010)

Circulatory Diseases Admissions

Report Appendix A – Health Data Analysis 

P
age 108



11 
 

References: 
 
COMEAP (March 2015) Statement on the evidence for the effects of nitrogen dioxide 
on health. 
 
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, September 2014, Air Pollution in the UK 2013, Crown 
Copyright 2014 
 
Department of Health, February 2006, Cardiovascular Disease and Air Pollution: A report by the Committee 
on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants, Crown Copyright 2005 
 
House of Commons Environmental Audit Committee, 8 December 2014, Action on Air Quality Sixth Report of 
Session 2014-15, The Stationery Office Limited 
 
Sheffield City Council, 2012, Air Quality Action Plan 2015  
 
Sheffield City Council’s interpretation of the Evidence of Robert Vaughn from DEFRA to Environment Select 
Committee 2010 accessed at http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-
select/environmental-audit-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/air-quality-a-follow-up-report/ 
 
Public Health England, April 2014, estimating local mortality burdens associated with particulate air pollution  

  
 

Page 109



 
 
 
 
 

12 
 

APPENDIX B - DASHBOARD OF PERFORMANCE MEASURES COLLECTED FOR SHEFFIELD AIR QUALITY 

O
v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 t
h
e
m

e
: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

Sheffield City Council Air 
Quality Actions 

Update as of March 2015 

Action 1: Assess feasibility 
for a Low Emission Zone 

Task and finish Work Packages have been developed for the Sheffield Low Emission Zone (LEZ) Strategy 

and designated leads identified to take forward the recommendations of the LEZ Feasibility Study. A 

range of pollutant emissions reduction measures are being implemented, including: the introduction of 40
1
 

new hybrid and 45 new Euro V buses through Sheffield Bus Partnership investment;  Clean Vehicle 

Technology Funded retrofitting of 41
2
 buses with Thermo Management Technology;  and 175 Yorkshire 

Ambulance Rapid Response Vehicles to be fitted with Solar Roof Panels. 

Action 2: Develop 
infrastructure for refuelling 
low emission vehicles 

The Office of Low Emission Vehicles (OLEV) announced a £500m Ultra Low Emissions Vehicle (ULEV) 
scheme funding package. Sheffield City Council hopes to take advantage of this funding to develop initiatives 
around Taxi and Bus themes. As part of the scheme OLEV recently announced the launch of a £35m fund (go 
ultra-low city scheme) to promote the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and invites bids from Local 
Authorities by 20th February 2015.  
Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) and OLEV funding has been used to support small and medium 
enterprises to switch to electric vehicles and for the installation of rapid charging points across South 
Yorkshire. 

Action 3: Promote smarter 
travel choices 

The council uses a range of information to monitor the methods people use to travel.  We aim to reduce the 
car-related proportion share by providing an attractive range of alternatives, whilst securing the most effective 
performance of our existing roads through effective Network Management and Control. This has the benefit of 
reducing congestion and hence reducing air pollution. 
 
Capital investment in Network Management includes improved telecommunications between computerised 
traffic signals operation and major junctions to optimise signal settings and manage the network; a series of 
parking management schemes to make sure roads aren't unnecessarily obstructed at peak times; and a 
programme of lorry route management schemes to minimise the impact of lorries in residential or other 
sensitive areas. 
 
Bus Boost schemes are promoted as part of LSTF programmes. Sheffield Bus Partnership has to date 

                                            
1
 This is estimated to represent 22% of the Stagecoach fleet. 

2
 This is estimated to represent 8% of the First fleet to low emission vehicles. 

P
age 110



 
 
 
 
 

13 
 

delivered 9% increase in the number of fare-paying passengers. SCC will bid for Low Emission Vehicles 
funding from Government to improve the quality of the bus travel experience. A review of the Sheffield bus is 
underway, to improve co-ordination between operators and frequency of services, the changes likely to be 
introduced in September. 
 
Cycle and Walk boost schemes aimed at commuters are promoted as part of LSTF programmes, alongside 
School Travel Change Programmes. Progress on improving cycling and walking includes: investment in 
pedestrian crossings and cycle routes, Streets Ahead-related pedestrian enhancements and opportunities, 
refresh of SCC cycling strategy/strategic network and the Cycles boost initiative. We await new National 
Guidance regarding Cycling Delivery Plan. 
 
An air quality public awareness campaign, “Air Aware” www.sheffield.gov.uk/AirAware has provided 
information to local residents on main air quality pollutants, active travel as a means of reducing air pollutants 
and advice on avoiding personal exposure.  
 
Other schemes include: Green Driving, Eco Stars and Plugged in S Yorkshire, Car Club and Car Share. 

Action 4: Improve engine 
performance of commercial 
diesel vehicles 

Focusses on improving emissions produced by taxis, buses and other goods vehicles (>3.5tons). Progress to 
date includes achieving agreement from partner organisations – 40 x new Stagecoach hybrid buses; 41 x 
First Group double decker Euro 4 engines to be retrofitted with Thermo Management Technology. Other 
schemes include: Green driving, ECO stars and Plugged in S Yorkshire. 

Action 5: Mitigate the 
impact of the M1 motorway 
(particularly in the Tinsley Area) 

Smart motorway construction and discussions to build a barrier along M1 J34 south slip have started – 
ongoing partnership working with Highways England (previously Highways Agency). 

Action 6: Develop policies 
to support better air quality 

The focus of action is to restrict new sensitive uses (homes, schools) from being developed in areas where 
national air quality objectives are being exceeded, unless significant mitigation measures are included within 
those developments. Sheffield Local Plan will have policies aimed at improving air quality and will ensure air 
quality impacts from new developments across the City are minimised. 

Action 7: Control industrial 
emissions 

The focus of action is to regulate installations which are permitted under the Environmental Permitting 
Regulations. Formalised site specific Permit conditions are used, which lay down emission limits and 
measures for industry to comply with. Inspection regimes are undertaken to determine whether the emissions 
limits and pollution control measures are complied with. 

 

P
age 111



 
 
 
 
 

14 
 

  

This figure shows that over time, at two of the sites, NO2 levels are gradually coming down but has remained stubbornly high at the 

third site. 

 

 

P
age 112



 
 
 
 
 

15 
 

Public Health Outcomes Framework Indicator 3.1 

There has been no update since 2012, the baseline year for Sheffield Air Quality Action Plan. Sheffield performs better than the 

England average and in the top 3 of core cities. The percentage of mortality attributable to particulate air pollution has reduced 

since 2010. However, as this is a % of all mortality this could be due to an increase in mortality from other causes rather than a 

reduction in mortality attributable to air pollution. Particulate air pollution in this context means PM2.5 

 

Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF) Indicator 3.1 

3.1       Percentage of mortality attributable to particulate air pollution  

Baseline period 2010   

Sheffield        4.7                    England         5.1                    (2012) 

Sheffield        5.1                    England         5.4                    (2011) 

Sheffield        5.5                    England         5.6                    (2010) 

 

Indicator 3.1 Percentage of 
mortality 
attributable to 
particulate air 
pollution 

Better 
compared to 
England 
(not 
statistically) 

Sheffield 
General Trend 

Sheffield 
Change Last 
period 

Baseline year: 
2010 

Latest period: 
2012 

Core Cities 
rank (1= best) 
 
3/8 

P
age 113



 
 
 
 
 

16 
 

APPENDIX C - Estimating morbidity or illness and mortality or death from air 
pollution 
 
Ground-level ozone (O3) and fine particulate matter (PM2.5) are associated with increased risk of 
mortality. 
There is strong evidence of an association between acute exposure to particulate air pollution 
(PM10) and daily mortality, one day later. 
 
This association is strongest for respiratory and cardiovascular causes of death. 
The association cannot be attributed to other pollutants including NO2, CO, SO2 or O3 not due to 
weather. 
 
There is also evidence that the health effect of poor air quality is not limited to mortality or deaths 
only. Admissions to hospital for respiratory conditions, cardio-vascular conditions, and accident and 
emergency visits for exacerbation of Asthma (with variation of up to 30-fold for PM2.5, and 11-fold for 
O3, by neighbourhood), have been shown to increase. 
 
[Ref:  The Health Effects Institute (HEI) has recently released an announcement that Johns Hopkins 
University investigators of the National Morbidity, Mortality and Air Pollution Study (NMMAPS) have 
updated their previous estimates of the mortality effects of acute exposure to particulate air 
pollution.] 
 
Cohort studies across major cities have estimated an increase in total mortality of roughly 4% and 
5% per 10 microgram per m3 of increase in the long-term level of particulates, after chronic and 
acute exposures respectively. [Ref: The major U.S. cohort studies are the American Cancer Society 
Study (Pope et al. 2002) and the Six Cities Studies (Dockery et al, 1993)] 
 
Animal (mice) experiments have also suggested that long-term exposure to air pollution can lead to 
physical changes in the brain, as well as learning and memory problems, and even depression ( L K 
Fonken, X Xu, Z M Weil, G Chen, Q Sun, S Rajagopalan, R J Nelson. Air pollution impairs 
cognition, provokes depressive-like behaviours and alters hippocampal cytokine expression and 
morphology. Molecular Psychiatry, 2011; DOI: 10.1038/mp.2011.76). 
 
The above indicate that despite significant improvements in air quality in recent decades, air 
pollution and ozone still pose a non-trivial risks to the public health. 
 
Challenges remain around communicating results and implications to the public. Also, the 
attributable fraction of each pollutant is difficult to disentangle because their analysis varies with 
patterns of exposure e.g. single, repeat, short-term or long-term; requires many impact assessment 
strategies, e.g. time series, cohort; assumptions and complex, multi-stage analyses for developing 
robust and valid risk estimates. 
 
The UK COMEAP (Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants) acknowledges this 
complexity in its 2010 report, by summing up that as everyone dies eventually, no lives are ever 
saved by reducing environmental exposures, but – deaths are delayed resulting in increased life 
expectancy. Also, measures to reduce air pollution result in effects that are averages or aggregates 
across the population, and it is not known how the effects are distributed among individuals 
 
Adedeji Olufunke 
Consultant in Public Health 
Olufunke.Adedeji@sheffield.gov.u 

Page 114



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

Meeting held 11 December 2014 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Julie Dore (in the Chair), Leader of the City Council 

Dr Tim Moorhead (Co-Chair), Chair of the Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) 
Dr Nikki Bates, Governing Body Member, Sheffield CCG 
Maggie Campbell, Healthwatch Sheffield 
Councillor Jackie Drayton, Cabinet Member for Children, Young People 
and Families 
Councillor Mazher Iqbal, Cabinet Member for Communities and Public 
Health 
Councillor Mary Lea, Cabinet Member for Health, Care and Independent 
Living  
Dr Zak McMurray, Clinical Director, Sheffield CCG  
John Mothersole, Chief Executive, Sheffield City Council   
Dr Jeremy Wight, Director of Public Health, Sheffield City Council 

 
In attendance: 
 

Joe Fowler, Director Of Commissioning, Sheffield City Council 
Tim Furness, Director Of Business Planning and Partnerships, Sheffield 
CCG 
Steven Todd, Strategic Commissioning Manager, Sheffield City Council 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from Ian Atkinson, Jayne Ludlam, Laraine 
Manley and Dr Ted Turner. 

 
2.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 Dr Tim Moorhead declared a personal interest in the item numbered 7 on the 
agenda for this meeting (Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for Sheffield 2015-
18) on the grounds that his Practice dispenses medicines and this formed part of 
the income of the Practice. 

 
3.  
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 

 Mr John Darwin asked a question concerning the role of the Mindfulness 
approach, particularly with regard to mental health. He stated that he had taught 
mindfulness for four years and it was clear that mindfulness based approaches 
had a role in relation to therapy and enhancing peoples’ lives. There was no 
reference to this in the Mental Health Strategy papers as submitted to this meeting 
of the Board. He asked what role the Board saw with regard to mindfulness 
approaches, which were good for people and cost effective for the health service. 
He asked for the Board’s comments. He commented that there were a growing 
number of courses relating to mindfulness, which were concerned with education, 
rather than theory and were relevant to everyone. 

  

Agenda Item 11

Page 115



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 2 of 13 
 

 Councillor Julie Dore (Co-Chair of the Board) responded that the item on the 
agenda relating to Outcome 2 “Health and Wellbeing is Improving” included an 
action to promote a city wide approach to emotional wellbeing. The issue of 
mindfulness which Mr Darwin had raised was something which could be looked at 
within the emotional wellbeing theme and when the Board considered Outcome 2 
later at this meeting. She said that she was not aware of other references to 
mindfulness within the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

  
 Tim Furness stated that mindfulness approaches were not something which had 

been raised as part of the engagement concerning the Sheffield Strategy for 
Mental Health being developed by the Mental Health Partnership Board. There 
was still opportunity to incorporate the issue into the Strategy.  

  
 Councillor Jackie Drayton stated that emotional wellbeing was something which 

was linked to positive behaviours in parents and children. 
  
 Dr Nikki Bates stated that the IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological 

Therapies) team did use mindfulness based approaches and such approaches 
were also sometimes recommended by GPs in their consultations with patients.  

 
4.  
 

UPDATE ON THE JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY: OUTCOME 
2 - HEALTH AND WELLBEING IS IMPROVING 
 

 The Board considered a report of the Co-Chairs of the Board concerning the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Outcome 2 – ‘Health and Wellbeing is 
Improving’. The report set out what had happened in relation to the 8 key actions 
over the past year and areas in which the Health and Wellbeing Board could 
make a difference.  

  
 The report was presented by Tim Furness, Director of Business Strategy and 

Partnerships, NHS Sheffield CCG. 
  
 Members of the Board discussed the two main themes of the ‘Health and 

Wellbeing is Improving’ outcome area, which were: 

• emotional wellbeing; and  

• living longer. 
  
 In discussing particular actions under each theme, the Board considered what 

progress had been made in the past year; the main issues and opportunities for 
the action and what the Board/ Members of the Board could do over the next 
year in relation to that action. A summary of the discussion is as follows:- 

  
 Emotional wellbeing 
  
 Action 2.1: Promote a city-wide approach to emotional wellbeing and mental 

health, focusing on promotion of wellbeing and resilience and early support, and 
embed this into strategies, policies and commissioning plans. 

  
 With regard to the challenge to protect investment in emotional wellbeing, 

prevention and early intervention, the circumstances of reducing funding meant 

Page 116



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 3 of 13 
 

that this may become more acute. However, the commissioning plans for mental 
and physical health aimed to increase investment and community activity and 
spend more on prevention.  

  
 The City did not have a strategy relating to suicide and a more focussed 

approach was required in that regard. This could be considered as part of the 
Strategy for Mental Health. There was also a link to transition from childrens to 
adults’ services. The need for work to prevent suicides and promote awareness 
thereof and the transition from children’s to adults’ services were recognised in 
the report as submitted. 

  
 Action 2.2: Commission a needs-led response to support children and young 

people’s emotional development to enable them to develop personal resilience 
and manage transition from childhood to adulthood. 

  
 There were no additions or further comments. 
  
 Action 2.3: Support the implementation of the new city Parenting Strategy which 

focuses on positive parenting and developing resilient families and communities 
so that all children have a stable and enriching environment in which they will 
thrive. 

  
 The relationship with parents and carers was vital and parents should be viewed 

as partners in parenting initiatives. Work was being done in early years to help 
develop positive parenting, which was being monitored. 

  
 It was not clear whether the ambition of the Strategy was to deal with immediate 

issues relating to parenting or whether it was intended to deal with breaking the 
cycle of where parenting breaks down. 

  
 There was a strategic programme for early prevention and intervention at the 

point of crisis to enable families to stay together and prevent children and young 
people from being brought into care. The Best Start work also included peer 
support and mentoring to help people before they reached a point of crisis. The 
strategy was intended to cover both early intervention and universal parenting 
concerns.  

  
 There were actions that individual schools, such Arbourthorne and Tinsley 

Primary schools were taking in targeting particular activities for the needs of 
children and families in their communities. This was best practice which could be 
shared. Arbourthrone Primary had used LAP (Local Area Partnership) funding 
and private sector funding to transform the former caretaker’s house into a 
lifeskills centre, where young people could learn to look after themselves with 
activities such as cooking. 

  
 Under the ‘issues and opportunities’ heading on page 8 of the report, the first 

bullet point should be amended by the inclusion of the word “initiatives” after the 
words “The delivery of Parenting”. 

  
 Living Longer 

Page 117



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 4 of 13 
 

  
 Action 2.4: Support the ‘Move More’ initiative to encourage people to be more 

physically active as part of their daily lives. 
  
 Whilst the Move More strategy was intended to encourage people to be more 

physically active, some people were not able to afford to participate in some 
physical activities as they were priced-out by the cost, for example, of gym 
membership. 

  
 The Move More strategy included physical activity which might not take place in 

a gym, such as gardening and dancing. However, the cost of gym memberships 
did need to be addressed. The chair of the food and physical activity Board, Dr 
Ollie Hart, had met with schools to try to use them to encourage young people 
into sport.  

  
 The addition of an action under section 3, page 10, as follows:-  

 
To invite Graham Moore and Ollie Hart of the Food and Physical Activity Board 
to the next Health and Wellbeing Board strategy development meeting.  

  
 The Green Commission had heard evidence concerning the approach in Bristol 

to active travel and Calderdale also had an active travel planning mechanism to 
encourage walking and cycling. People might increase their physical activity by 
walking between tram or bus stops. It was also thought that people 
overestimated how long it took to walk to a destination.  

  
 The Board was not necessarily in a position to hold the city to account with 

regards physical activity, although it should consider how it was able to influence 
people to engage with the work relating to increasing physical activity. This 
included making sure that partner organisations were promoting increased 
physical activity. 

  
 The Learning Disabilities Partnership Board was also considering how physical 

activity might be promoted, including improving access to sports and health 
services and facilities. 

  
 Action 2.5: Implement an integrated approach to reducing levels of tobacco use 

through integrating work on: smoke-free environments; helping people to stop 
smoking; using mass media by reducing the promotion of tobacco; regulating 
tobacco products; reducing the affordability of tobacco; and substance misuse 
services. 

  
 A programme of tobacco control had been launched in April 2014. The 

introduction of smoke free spaces to protect children under 5 years from 
exposure to harmful tobacco smoke had been successful. A question was 
whether people who used electronic cigarettes viewed themselves as non-
smokers. There had been a slight increase in the number of women smoking 
during pregnancy and this also needed to be addressed through the stop 
smoking relapse prevention service for pregnant women.  

  

Page 118



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 5 of 13 
 

 Tobacco was a major cause of early death and it was also a large cost to health 
and social care. It was noted that Greater Manchester Pensions Authority had 
taken a decision to dis-invest in tobacco. One of the actions for the Board was to 
ask the South Yorkshire Pensions Authority to review its investment in tobacco. 
The Board should state in writing that it would wish for the Pensions Authority to 
seriously consider dis-investment in tobacco and request the Pensions Authority 
to respond.  

  
 In relation to the idea of a similar request to the pensions authority but relating to 

alcohol, there was a logic in tobacco being put first as it was the biggest single 
issue.    

  
 Action 2.6: Commission appropriate interventions to reduce harm and promote 

pathways to structured treatment services for those abusing alcohol or misusing 
illicit or illegal substances, including reducing the ‘hidden harm’ to children living 
in households where adults abuse alcohol or drugs. 

  
 Consideration would be given to the timetable and logistics in the preparation of 

a new alcohol strategy and approach to the commissioning of alcohol treatment 
and prevention services. Alcohol related admissions to hospital had increased in 
2012-13. There was concern that the licensing rules were quite restrictive. Other 
local authorities used planning consents as a means of controlling the availability 
of cheap alcohol. The extent to which it may be possible to restrict the hours of 
the sale of alcohol would depend upon a strong case and would be subject to 
policy. These were issues which could be taken into account in the development 
of the new alcohol strategy. The involvement of the CCG in addition to the drug 
and alcohol co-ordination team (DACT) was endorsed and it was recognised that 
alcohol abuse had a cost to health services in terms of the treatment of in-
patients. 

  
 Action 2.7: Commission a joint plan and integrated pathway across the city 

including schools and the commercial sector to act preventatively and with 
lower-tier interventions to tackle obesity, providing accessible information. 

  
 It was likely that the CCG would be tasked with commissioning tier 3 community 

obesity services, in the next year or two. This was, at present, a complicated 
pathway and it was likely the CCG would be given responsibility depending upon 
the financial resources that were available. There was concern that the 
Government approach was to use surgical procedures in relation to obesity and 
that the funding and targets to combat obesity would follow this approach and 
there would not be sufficient funding available to the CCG, which would be 
driven by the Government target. There was evidence to suggest that surgery 
was effective as a ‘rescue’ treatment for obesity and whilst it was expensive, it 
was cost effective. That did not mean that prevention shouldn’t be undertaken. If 
the CCG had control of the entire obesity pathway, an integrated approach to 
obesity would then be possible. Family nutrition should be recognised in addition 
to improvements to school food. The Let’s Change for Life programme included 
work in schools to improve nutrition.   

  
 The addition to the list of public health initiatives of a reference to community 

Page 119



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 6 of 13 
 

initiatives concerning food under section 3, page 16 was suggested. 
  
 It was noted that there had been a report regarding the number of people in 

receipt of prescription medication, including statins. It was said that in certain 
cases, the equivalent benefit would be achieved from not taking the medication, 
but taking other action, for example doing more physical activity. The 
prescription of antacids was raised as a concern as they masked the problem of 
people eating the wrong types of food and drink. However, it was acknowledged 
that the medication did make people feel better. 

  
 Self-care was a minimal intervention approach, which encouraged people to look 

after themselves and could be relevant in helping people control their weight and 
general health. 

  
 An example was given of Devon CCG, which had decided to deny people 

operations until their BMI measured below 37. This was driven by cost and 
budget considerations and rationed access to elective operations and was also 
evidence of policy makers choosing which interventions they wished to use first. 

  
 There was a high incidence of women being prescribed anti-depressants and a 

question was asked as to whether there was a link to other conditions such as 
cardio vascular disease. In answer to which it was considered that in cases of 
severe depression, there was also a greater risk to physical health. 

  
 Action 2.8: Continue to prioritise and focus attention on cancer and 

cardiovascular disease, the main causes of premature mortality in Sheffield. 
  
 There were no additional comments. 
  
 Outcome Indicators 
  
 The percentage of patients aged over 18 years with a new diagnosis of 

depression had increased from 6.93 in 2012-13 to 7.43 in 2013-14. This may be 
due to better diagnosis and treatment of patients with depression or there may in 
fact be a higher number of cases. Sheffield had a higher rate of depression than 
the national average, but the increase was in tandem with the national trend.  

  
 The Tackling Poverty Strategy consultation had shown that key workers and 

debt advisers had seen an increase in depression and mental ill health 
connected to poverty. Women were described as ‘shock absorbers’ in that they 
protected their families and the impact of poverty and debt may be a higher 
incidence of mental ill health. Research into child poverty had been undertaken 
by the Joseph Rowntree Trust indicating the importance of removing people 
from poverty and providing stable homes. 

  
 There was a need to understand for adults, in the same way as had been done 

for children and young people, the problems and solutions regarding access to 
services. 

  
 There was better diagnosis relating to mental ill-health and activity to reduce the 

Page 120



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 7 of 13 
 

stigma around poor mental health. Other programmes such as the Move More 
initiative, which aimed to make people more active might also mean they had 
more opportunities to meet other people. Consideration also had to be given to 
prevention of mental ill health.  

  
 The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment provided evidence of where there was 

need and consideration was given to how services were provided to meet that 
need and identify which interventions would work and in relation to which area of 
need in the most cost effective way. 

  
 The weight management contract was to be put out to tender and a question 

was how this linked with other aspects of a healthy lifestyle, such as food and an 
individual’s journey mapped out in order to build a clear pathway. 

  
 The Board needed to make sure there was a market before it made investment. 

Learning should take place from, for example, the retail sector in order to 
overcome problems such as the inverse care law, where availability of care was 
often inverse to needs of the population. Such learning might be applied to the 
work on stopping smoking.  

  
 Thought had been given to the most cost effective methods of prevention and 

national and international research had been taken into account and 
interventions based accordingly. However, some approaches were found not to 
be delivering. Thought was being given to how people accessed services and 
how intervention might be made most effective. Interventions needed to be 
targeted to particular communities where they were most needed. 

  
 The same people may be in each indicator area and there may be many 

interventions into one household, which would require a holistic approach to 
dealing with the causes of health conditions, such as alcohol consumption and 
smoking, in that household. The estimated prevalence of smoking for 2011 
(19.5%) was thought to be unrealistic as it was out of line with the estimates for 
2010 and 2012 (which were 23.8% and 23.2% respectively). The indicator for 
the proportion of 10 to 11 year olds overweight or obese was more or less static 
over 3 years. The indicators for alcohol related admissions to hospital and 
breastfeeding of babies at 6 to 8 weeks were worsening. Nonetheless, Sheffield 
was comparatively good in terms of the rate of breastfeeding. Activity to increase 
breastfeeding was targeted at particular communities. 

  
 Issues relating to poverty and inequality were reoccurring concerns throughout 

the outcome, which also had connections with the City’s Health Inequalities 
Action Plan. 

  
 Resolved: that the Health and Wellbeing Board: 

 
1. Actively supports the recommendations made under each action in the report 

as submitted, subject to the following additions having discussed report in 
some depth: 

 
Action 2.3: 

Page 121



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 8 of 13 
 

Under the ‘issues and opportunities’ heading on page 8 of the report, the first 
bullet point should be amended by the inclusion of the word “initiatives” after 
the words “The delivery of Parenting”. 
 

• The delivery of Parenting initiatives in Sheffield is well established.  

There is now an opportunity to develop targeted programmes and 

projects that respond to local need.  We also have an opportunity to 

consider the marketing and promotion of parenting programmes to ensure 

the service is accessible to families from all backgrounds.   

 
Action 2.4: 
The addition of an action under section 3, page 10, as follows:-  
 

• To invite Graham Moore and Ollie Hart of the Food and Physical Activity 
Board to the next Health and Wellbeing Board strategy development 
meeting. 

 
Action 2.7: 
The addition to the list of public health initiatives of a reference to community 
initiatives concerning food under section 3, page 16. 
 

• Support public health initiatives that indirectly contribute to the agenda, for 

example, 20mph areas, playing out schemes, including regular road 

closures to allow for active play, improvements to school food, ensuring 

that public sector catering provides healthy and sustainable food; and 

community initiatives concerning food etc. 

 
2. Supports the ongoing programme of needs assessment. 

 

3. Requests another update on this outcome in December 2015. 

 
5.  
 

UPDATE ON THE INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING PROGRAMME (BETTER 
CARE FUND) 
 

 The Board considered a report of the Director of Business Planning and 
Partnerships, NHS Sheffield CCG and the Director of Commissioning, Sheffield 
City Council, concerning the progress of the Integrated Commissioning 
Programme (Better Care Fund).  

  
 Joe Fowler, the Director of Commissioning, Sheffield City Council, introduced the 

report, stating that the Clinical Commissioning Group and the City Council had 
agreed to establish a pooled budget in 2015/16 to cover four key areas of work 
and with the aim of improving service user experience and outcomes and making 
the best decisions concerning the use of the available resource. He outlined the 
key developments relating to the 4 following  areas:- 

  

Page 122



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 9 of 13 
 

 − Keeping People Well in their Community 

− Independent Living Solutions 

− Active support and Recovery 

− Long Term High Support 
  
 The governance for the pooled budget would require the alignment of Clinical 

Commissioning Group and City Council decision making.   
  
 Resolved: that the Health and Wellbeing Board notes progress and confirms its 

support for the establishment of integrated commissioning and a pooled budget, 
as set out in the report, as submitted. 

 
 
 
 
6.  
 

SHEFFIELD STRATEGY FOR MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 The Board considered a report of the Director of Business Planning and 
Partnerships, NHS Sheffield CCG (and Chair of the Mental Health Partnership 
Board) concerning the draft Sheffield Strategy for Mental Health. The Mental 
Health Partnership Board had developed the draft Strategy, which covered the 
promotion of good mental health and treatment and care for people with mental 
health problems.  The Health and Wellbeing Board was asked to comment upon 
the principles and priorities in the Strategy and to consider whether it would inform 
and guide the provision of appropriate mental health service provision over the 
next 5 years. 

  
 Tim Furness, Director of Business Planning and Partnerships, NHS Sheffield CCG 

(and Chair of the Mental Health Partnership Board) presented the report. Stephen 
Todd, Strategic Commissioning Manager, Sheffield City Council (with 
responsibility for Adult Mental Health) was also present. 

  
 Members of the Board commented and asked questions, as follows:- 
  
 The South Yorkshire Police and Sheffield Health and Social Care Foundation 

Trust had established a Street Triage pilot to improve joint working in cases of 
mental health crisis and which was funded by the CCG. It was hoped that this 
would continue.  

  
 Some issues had begun to be identified during the development of the Strategy 

which would require further consideration by commissioners. These included: 
 

• What people had said about mental health services and how they should 
change including “Whether care plans still existed?” and “The system 
makes me feel a nuisance”. 

• The relationship between primary care and secondary care. 

• Treating people as a whole person and undertaking treatment in 
partnership with the patient. 

  
 The estimated prevalence of psychosis amongst adults aged over 16 in Sheffield 

Page 123



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 10 of 13 
 

of 50 per 1000 adults was thought to be a life-time prevalence, rather than the 

number at any one time. 

  
 The vision and aims set out in section 7 of the report should be amended so that 

the sentence “Helping to make Sheffield a place that supports and improves the 
mental health of all its people” was listed as the first item. 

  
 Whilst prevention was a priority, it was not emphasised within the draft Strategy. 

The prevention of early death of people with psychiatric illness was important and 
most deaths were caused by smoking related diseases. The Health and Social 
Care Foundation Trust had decided not to tolerate smoking by employees or 
patients.    

  
 The draft Strategy did not include an action plan. However, the Mental Health 

Partnership Board would ask all providers and commissioning organisations to 
respond to the Strategy and to state what, in positive terms, they will do to achieve 
the Strategy’s aims. An action plan would be developed following this process. 

  
 Mindfulness approaches should be included in the strategy outcomes. 
  
 The inclusion of transitions in the Strategy was positive. There were several 

recent developments which might be included, which would ensure the Strategy 
was up to date. These included the Select Health Committee report on Child and 
Adolescent services of 5 November 2014; the recommendations of the Health 
Scrutiny Committee relating to Mental Health; the consideration by the Children’s 
Trust Executive Board regarding mental health; and capturing young people’s 
views at the workshop. 

  
 Young people suffering a mental health crisis might be taken into custody, which 

was the wrong place for them and action was needed for the 16 to 25 age group 
in particular. One school had a pilot scheme, whereby specialist mental health 
work had taken place.  

  
 The Strategy document was not explicit about the age range which it covered. 

Issues concerning transition and connections needed to be highlighted. It was 
also considered that it would be beneficial to hold a joint meeting of the Children 
and Young People and Adult Mental Health Boards. 

  
 Adults in mental health crisis were also taken into custody. In cases of crisis, a 

person might be detained and taken to a place of safety. 
  
 Work to develop a care pathway and packages in mental health services brought 

with it challenges. This aimed to create an outcome based contract and pay for 
people in ‘clusters’ of care on the basis of need. The challenge was a financial 
one in that the new process could create cost pressures, and a technical one, as it 
was important to define outcomes in a way that could be robustly measured. 

  
 There was an attempt to focus on individual need and also examine how personal 

health budgets might apply to mental health. 
  

Page 124



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 11 of 13 
 

 It was clarified that the action plans would identify what was going to be done with 
regard to each priority. 

  
 Resolved: That the Board endorses the work of the Mental Health Partnership 

Board in developing the Sheffield Mental Health Strategy and supports the work of 
the Mental Health Partnership Board in finalising and publishing this Strategy. 

 
 
 
7.  
 

PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOR SHEFFIELD 2015-18 
 

 The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health concerning the 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) for Sheffield 2015-18. The 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment provided a framework to allow the strategic 
development and commissioning of pharmaceutical services to help meet the 
needs of the local population. The report provided an introduction to the PNA and 
presented key findings and the draft PNA was appended to the report. 

  
 Dr Jeremy Wight, the Director of Public Health, presented the report. The duty to 

produce a PNA was placed on Health and Wellbeing Boards by the Health and 
Social Care Act 2012. The first Assessment was to be produced by 1st April 2015 
and in accordance with the National Health Service (NHS) (Pharmaceutical 
Services and Local Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013.  

  
 The PNA concluded that Sheffield was well served by pharmacies and dispensing 

doctors. There were good links with other NHS services. Nonetheless, it was 
recognised that there was potential to develop this much further, particularly in the 
context of developing integrated primary care services. Local pharmacies were 
already contributing extensively to raising awareness and understanding of health 
risks.  

  
 There was likely to be increased demographic and cost pressures from patients 

with long-term conditions and the PNA acknowledged pharmacy’s continuing role 
in helping to meet that need. It found that further development of the public health 
role of pharmacy and commissioning of relevant services could secure additional 
improvements in health. Known future other developments were unlikely to 
generate a significant level of need or demand for additional pharmaceutical 
provision over the next 5 years. 

  
 A question was whether there were aspects of pharmacy provision of which more 

could be made such as developing a role in contributing to messages about the 
help and support which was available to people. 

  
 Resolved: that the Health and Wellbeing Board, having sought assurances that 

the PNA has been produced in line with the 2013 regulations; that relevant needs 
and services have been assessed and gaps, as appropriate, identified; and the 
PNA is on track to be published by 1 April 2015, notes that the final version of the 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment will be submitted to the Board for approval in 
March 2015. 

 

Page 125



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 12 of 13 
 

8.  
 

BRIEFING ON PREPAREDNESS FOR WINTER AND THE EBOLA VIRUS 
 

 The Board considered a report of the Co-Chairs of the Board which provided a 
briefing on preparedness for winter and the Ebola Virus. The report summarised 
issues relating to preparedness for winter for health and social care services. This 
included national resilience funding to provide additional resources to target 
admissions avoidance and to streamline the admissions process with major 
providers of healthcare. There were also some complimentary projects that were 
often community based, which aimed to keep people well and reduce the demand 
on GPs and hospitals. Additional funds specifically focused on achieving the 4-
hour Accident and Emergency target had been allocated to Sheffield Teaching 
and Sheffield Children’s Hospitals by NHS England.  

  
 The Surge Planning Group, a sub-group of the System Resilience Group, had 

been established to facilitate knowledge of winter plans and understanding of 
interdependencies across the system by the respective health and social care 
organisations. 

  
 In respect of social care, there was a joint business continuity plan between the 

City Council, Sheffield Teaching Hospitals Primary and Community Services and 
Sheffield Health and Social Care Trust and Continuing Health Care to support 
existing service users and vulnerable people. Care homes had individual 
contingency plans in the event of an enforced emergency closure or evacuation. 
In relation to prevention and early intervention, Community Support Workers 
would liaise with GPs to identify vulnerable people and if necessary, refer them to 
support. The Workers would also manage a network of volunteers to support frail 
and vulnerable older people with no access to formal or family support. The report 
outlined other aspects of winter preparedness relating to social care.  

  
 The report also provided a briefing on the Ebola Virus outbreak in West Africa. 

Sheffield CCG and the Foundation Trusts had taken part in an exercise to test the 
preparedness of health services and partners for dealing with a case of Ebola and 
the wider consequences for communities. The Royal Hallamshire Hospital 
Infectious Diseases department was one of the 4 High Level Isolation Centres 
across the country that could, if required, receive a case of Ebola. South Yorkshire 
Local Resilience Forum had discussed Ebola preparedness and Public Health 
England had produced information and guidance. 

  
 Resolved: that the Health and Wellbeing Board receives the report and thanks 

those, especially volunteers, who will support the frail and unwell over the winter 
period. 

 
9.  
 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 Resolved: that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2014 be 
approved as a correct record, subject to the following amendments: 

  
 Page 3  Paragraph 5.2, second to last bullet point: to amend the sentence “The 

Council had established a Green Commission to look at how the cost of energy 
could be reduced” so that it read “The Council had established a Green 

Page 126



Meeting of the Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 11.12.2014 

Page 13 of 13 
 

Commission, the remit of which included fuel poverty and the cost of energy”. 
  
 Page 5 Paragraph 6.7. Part 2 of the Resolution be amended after the words 

“service users” so as to replace the word “to” with the word “and”. 
  
 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	4 Update on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Outcomes 4 and 5
	5 Health, Disability and Employment in Sheffield
	6 Update on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Work Programmes
	7 Children and Young People's Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health
	Appendix - Scrutiny Update

	8 Health and Wellbeing Plans for Sheffield in 2015/16: Sheffield City Council and NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group
	9 Director of Public Health Annual Report 2014
	Director of Public Health Annual Report 2014

	10 Air Quality and Health in Sheffield
	11 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

